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AUDIO/VIDEO AND DOCUMENT PRESERVATION REQUEST
MEMORANDUM OF NOTICE

To: City of Mammoth Spring Records Custodian (served to:
cityofmammothspring@gmail.com)
(also served to: City Attomey Dewayne Plumiee at plumleelaw@gmail.com);
(hand-delivered on 04/15/24 to Mammoth Spring City Hall)

From: Dave and Dawn Campbeli

440 Main Street ‘ ,
Mammoth Spring, Arkansas 72554 Nefendaats
blues24seven@ymail.com Exhibit
(870) 907-0572 1

Date: April 15, 2024
Subject:

Litigation Hold Notice and/or Preservation of Documents Request For All
Documents Associated with Dave and Dawn Campbell (440 Main Street, Mammoth
Spring, Arkansas) In All Media Formats From December of 2020, Through Present
Date. This Notice Is to Specifically Preserve the Audio and Video of the Mammoth
Spring City Hall meeting room and foyer from 5:00 p.m until 9:00 p.m on 04/01/24
and the March 26, 2024 Phone Call Between Officer Barnett and The Campbells.

This Memorandum of Notice is to inform you about potential litigation involving Dave
and Dawn Campbell (the “Dispute ) and your legal obligation to preserve documents
related in any way to the Dispute. In addition to paper and electronic documents
associated with Dave and Dawn Campbell, please preserve any video and audio
recordings pertaining to Dave and Dawn Campbell. Specifically preserve the audio and
video of the 04/01/24 City Hall meeting room and foyer from 5:00 p.m. until 9:00 p.m.
Please preserve any documentation (i.e: recordings, notes, etc.) pertaining to the March
26, 2024 phone call between Officer Bamnett and Dave and Dawn Campbell. You have
been identified as a person who may possess relevant documnents and/or data and you are
required by law to preserve all documents related to the Dispute.

You are directed to preserve documents, information and all data pertaining to
Dave and Dawn Campbell and the ongoing case (this includes any video recordings,
audio recordings, emails, documents, notes, or other correspondence) relating to the
Dispute as provided in this Memorandum.

EXHIBIT 1



These obligations will remain in effect uatil you receive a subsequent written notice
that this Litigation Hold has been updated, modified, or released. It is our
understanding, failure to preserve documents and information relating to a known dispute
could potentially expose one to sanctions and/or legal liability. Accordingly, if you have
any questions, or concems about the obligation to preserve documents and information,
please contact Dave and/or Dawn Campbell at one of the options listed.

Thank you in advance for your cooperation.
Respectfully
'\
, G,
l )] d

Dave and Dawn Campbell

CofY REEINEDQ CitqHal)

Defendants
Exhibi+
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Dave and Dawn Campbell

440 Main Street

Mammoth Spring, Arkansas 72554
Blues24Seven@ymail.com

(870) 907-0572

April 15, 2024 RE: Letter of Rebuke to Misrepresentations and Request
(Served Via Email and Hand Delivery on 4/15/24)

Police Chief James Turnbough

Mammoth Spring Police Department Defendants

160 1 Street Exhibt

Mammoth Spring, Arkansas 72554 Z

Turnbough783@yahoo.com

Attention Chief Turnbough:

We both adamantly dispute your defamatory and false light misrepresentation that 1
touched Dawn inappropriately on 04/01/24. We object to and rebuke your accusation, as
set forth below:

False Representation No. 1: In an open meeting, from the back of the room, you loudly
ordered that I (Dave) am never to touch my wife in that way again, which we believe
framed us in the false light of being participants in domestic violence. We believe your
demand erroneously implied 1 had acted abusively to my wife.

False Representation No. 2: In relentlessly attempting to force me into the 04/01/24
Mammoth Spring City Meeting, at one point you stated to me to “be @ man” and go back
into the city meeting where I had been told I could no longer speak.

Misrepresentation No. 1 is False, Because:

Your false allegation and/or misrepresentation of domestic violence against me and my
wife is false for the following reasons: 1) No evidence exists to justify such a false and
. slanderous misrepresentation. 2) Your words indicated to people (who had their backs
toward us and could only witness your words) that I acted abusively to my wife when I

1
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Defenoonts Exhibit 2

did niot, §) ¥ ou abused your authonty by demanding | never again touch my wife on the
arm; 4) My wite notified you quickly after the aforesaid false misrepresentation, I have
nermission to touch her anv time when lettino her know T am readv ta leave S)1In the
April 01, 2024, Mammoth Spring City Hall Meeting, T was prohibited from talking
further by Mayor Busch. Therefore, 1 wanted to leave, so I touched my wife on the arm
wiiic suggesiing we go. 0) Tou hiave never wiinessed me aciing vioient tv Dawn. 7) 1
(Dawn), realized Mayor Busch was not going to directly answer my question as to the
details of the alleged accusations against us. so I was ready to leave also. 8) Dave had
already waited with me after having let me know he was ready to go and Dave listened as
1 questioned Mayor Busch about the details of his alleged allegations against us. Mayor
Busch’s response was to accuse us of not getting along with any of our neighbors, which
was briefly argued. Dave then touched me on the arm, called me an affectionate name
and suggested we leave, to which I complied. 9) T (Dawn) requested to return to the
meeting, because I wanted to confront your misrepresentation on the record in front of
the same body of witnesses. On 04/01/24, 1 (Dawn) informed you of the fact Dave has
never been aggressive to me. 10) On 04/01/24, you responded to my report, Dave has
never been aggressive to me by twice whispering, “/ know. ” 11) The 04/01/24 video
and audio of the City Hall meeting will show [ (Dave) was not acting violently and/or
abusively toward my wife. 12) Your false misrepresentation and false light framing, as
stated in the aforesaid False Representation No. 1 was made within moments after Dave’s
speech was shut down while speaking about the Mammoth Springs Police Department’s
handling of two situations we were involved in on Bethel Street, indicating the false and
defamatory attacks against us were retaliatory and as a result of our complaints. The
foregoing twelve items evidence your aforesaid misrepresentations and/or false light
framing of us being participants of domestic violence is blatantly false.

Misrepresentation No. 2 is False, Because:

Your misrepresentation that [ (Dave) am not a man as a result of not going into a city hall
meeting is false for the following reasons: 1) Going into a meeting is not what is required
to “be aman.” 2) You were sitting in the same room I was standing in. 3) Men
respectfully communicate with honest information during times like this and when
reports are made. 4) Men do not seek a conflict, which is what I believe I would have
done upon going back into a meeting where 1 was deprived of speaking. The foregoing
four items evidence your aforesaid allegation that I am not a man as a result of choosing
to refrain from a hostile environment is blatantly false.

Your False Misrepresentations were Spread As Follows:

Your false misrepresentations, which are set forth above, were stated during the April 01,
2024 City Hall meeting, which was witnessed by numerous individuals.

EXHIBIT 2



Defendants Exhibit £

The Damages Arising Out of False Misrepresentations/Slander/F alse Light:

In September of 2023, we began selling Kettle Corn on Main Street in Mammoth Spring.
Being falsely accused of domestic violence against my wife is devastating to our
business, in addition to being devastating to us. Unless your false misrepresentation is
cured/rectified we are suffering and will continue to suffer from the loss of sales and the
loss of a substantial investment (for us). False witnessing against us byyouisa
substantial devastation to us and our business.

Request:

We believe this unfortunate issue can be resolved/cured by your immediate resignation;
therefore, we hereby request you to immediately resign from the Mammoth Spring Police
Department. Should you choose not to resign, we request a written response within 11
(eleven) days providing justification for your intervention into Dawn Campbell’s rights
on 04/01/24 in loudly ordering her husband to never again touch her on the arm while
suggesting they go home. We request strict proof to justify this bold demand.

Actions Ordered to Cease:
Immediately cease any action which places us in a false light, or is defamatory.

In closing, in addition to believing you have slandered us and harmed our business in
Mammoth Spring, we also believe you abused power by advising us to get an attomey.
Said advice implies you are privy to something against us while we have not been
notified. On or about 12/06/23, Mr. Peterson threatened we would be getting into trouble
for something he did not then know. While attending the 04/01/24 Mammoth Spring
City Hall Meeting where we were on the agenda to discuss Mr. Peterson’s wall and/or
fence, we believe you threatened we watch what we say on the website; STLdirect.net.
On 04/01/24, you placed us in the false light of being participants of domestic violence,
which is an alarming action against us. Due to your injurious false witnessing against us
on 04/01/24, we fear for our lives and safety and hereby notify you of this fact so all is
governed accordingly.

Thank you for your time and attention to this matter, which we hope will be amicably
resolved for the best interests of all parties involved.

gL
Campbell

EXHIBIT 2
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Dave and Dawn Campbeil .
440 Main Street Exhbit
Mammoth Spring, Arkansas 72554 3
(870) 907-0572

April 17,2024 Re: Official FOIA Request #1 :: ~ Courtroom Audio, Video,
Complaints, etc. ~

(erttied Yol 7022 04/0 80CC 11RO 79/ 2

System of Records Manager

City of Mammoth Spring

160 N First St

Mammoth Spring, Arkansas 72554

Dear Records Manager:

This is an official FOLA Request under the Freedom of Information Act and a request
under the Privacy Act of 1974. (2010 Arkansas Code Title 25 — State Government
Chapter 19— Freedom of Information Act § 25-19-105 — Examination and Copying of
Public Records). Any questions or needed clarifications may be emailed to
Blues24Seven@ymail.com, or we can be reached at the telephone number above. To
assist you in locating the requested records; we had contact with various representatives
of Mammoth Spring on the following dates: 03/05/22; 05/02/22; 09/15/23; 10/30/23;
12/06/23; 03/21/24; 03/22/24, 3/26/24 and 04/01/24. This FOIA Request covers
01/01/2021 to the day you reccived this request.

The information requested should be mailed to: Dave / Dawn Campbell, 440 Main Street,
Mammoth Spring, AR 72554-8800, or emailed to blues24seven@ymail.com. We request
a copy of the following documents, and all related documents, either be provided to us, or
allow us to duplicate the following requested documents:

1. Werequ&tacopyofallmomds(handwﬁmdecmnic,typed,reooMorotha
data, to include audio recorded and video recorded and other wise) about Dave or
Dawn Campbell maintained by the City of Mammoth Spring, the Mammoth
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Spring Police Department, and the Mammoth Spring mayor’s office and city
council.

. We request a copy of all records (handwritten, electronic, typed, recorded, or other
data, to include audio recorded and video recorded and other wise) of all
additional information, related to Dave or Dawn Campbell available under

the Freedom of Information Act.

. We request a copy of all records (handwritten, electronic, typed, recorded, or other
data, to include audio recorded and video recorded and other wise) of all records
made, kept or stored pertaining to the April 1%, 2024 City Hall meeting, by the
City of Mammoth Spring, the Mammoth Spring Police Department, the Board of
council members, the mayor of Mammoth Spring and the mayor’s assistant,.

. We request a complete copy of video and audio recording of the Mammoth Spring
City Hall’s courtroom and foyer/lobby from 4:40 p.m. until one hour after
adjournment of the April 1%, 2024 city board meeting.

. We request a copy of all Mammoth Springs Police Department’s body cam
footage of all police officers recorded on April 01, 2024 from 5:00 p.m. until 15
minutes after the April 01, 2024 City Board Meeting adjourned.

. We request a copy of the audio recording dated March 26, 2024 of the
conversation between Officer Bamnett and Dave and Dawn Campbell. Please
include any documentation, or other data related to Mayor Busch’s allegation,
Dave Campbell “cussed out” Officer Barnett, which Mayor Busch accused during
the April 01, 2024 city hall meeting. Please provide all papers, recordings, etc.
pertaining to this incident, including the legal authority for Mayor Busch’s
determination Dave Campbell “cussed out” Officer Barnett.

. We request a copy of all records (handwritten, electronic, typed, recorded, or other
data, to include audio recorded and video recorded and other wise) of the
complaint, or complaints which Mayor Busch alleged during the 04/0 1/24 City
Hall Meeting were made against Dave and Dawn Campbell of 440 Main Strect,
which appeared to pertain to: breaking and entering, having an unrestrained
aggressive dog, threatening violence, failing to register a trailer, driving with
expired tags and driving with out-of-state tags, etc. We specifically request a copy
of all records (handwritten, electronic, typed, recorded, or other data) of any and
all documentation in support of the allegation of trespassing through the yard of
335 Bethel, which Mayor Busch appeared to make on 04/01/24 against Dave and
Dawn Campbell.
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8. We request a copy of all records (handwritten, electronic, typed, recorded, or other
data, to include audio recorded and video recorded and other wise) of all
complaints, or reports pertaining, or related to Dave and/or Dawn Campbell, to
include responsive police reports and status of any possible reports.

9. We request a copy of all records (handwritten, electronic, typed, recorded, or other
data, to include audio recorded and video recorded and other wise) pertaining to
two specific incidents against Dave and/or Dawn Campbell, where police were
summoned by Shayne and/or Renetta Peterson. The dates are on, or about
December 06, 2023 and March 22, 2024. We request all incident-related data.

In order to help to determine our status when assessing fees for this request, you should
know we are individuals seeking information for personal use and not a commercial use.

We are willing to pay fees for this request up to a maximum of $10.00. If you estimate
the fees will exceed this limit, please inform us first.

We request a waiver of all fees for this request. Disclosure of the requested information
to us is in the public interest, because it is likely to contribute significantly to public
understanding of the operations, or activities of the government and is not in our
commercial interest. Please note: 5 U.S.C. Section 552(a)(4XAXiv)(1I) requires you
provide the first 100 copies to us at no charge. We are requesting a waiver of all fees
under 5 U.S.C. Section 552(a)(4)}A)Xiii).

We believe we meet the criteria for a fee waiver recognized by the U.S. Justice

t — in its policy guidance of April 1987 — and by the federal courts,
See Project on Military Procurement v. Department of the Navy, 710 F. Supp. 362 363,
365 (D.C.D. 1989). In your deliberations, plcase take note of the following
cases: Campbell v. U.S. Department of Justice, 334 U.S. App. D.C. (1998)administrative
and seemingly repetitious information is not exempt from fee-waiver
consideration); Project on Military Procurement (agencies cannot reject a fee waiver
based on the assumption the information sought is covered by a FOILA exemption;
and Landmark Legal Foundation v. Internal Revenue Service, 1998 U.S. Dist. LEXIS
21722 (D.C.D. 1998) (the fact the inf jon will soon be tumed over to a public body
does not exempt material from fee-waiver consideration).

" We look forward to your response within 20 working days, as outlined by statute.

you in ce for your cooperation,
().}*k > ~4r
Cipi 1\ Wl ¢ 7
Da(re andbDawn am beLl)lq‘
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City of Mammoth Spring

wavoRoen 325 MAIN ST. O s
JUNE GRANT P.O. BOX 185 THOMAS OWSLEY
RECORDER / TREASURER MAMMOTH SPRING, ARKANSAS 72554 R:::;’:::T
DEWAYNE PLUMLEE PHONE: (870) 625-3518
CITY ATTORNEY FAX: (870) 625-7566
E-mail: cityofmammothspring@gmail.com

Dave & Dawn Campbell .

440 Main Street Jants

Mammoth Spring, AR 72554 chc:h.. bit

April 23, 2024 4’

Mr. & Mrs. Campbell,

Please find the following in response to your Freedom of Information Act request dated 4/17/2024 and
received via mail on 04/22/2024.

* The city does not maintain handwritten, electronic, typed, audio recorded records of activities within
Mammoth Spring City Hall or the Mammoth Spring Police Department. Video only recordings are kept only
within the Mammoth Spring City Hall Lobby. This information has been requested (see included document)
from the company who maintains our security system. The security company will pull this footage, however
previous pulls have cost the city between $93.00 - $145 per incident. This amount includes the pulling of the
footage, the USB drive, and all applicable taxes. This cost will be passed on to the party making the request.
Please advise the City if you would like to continue with this request.

* In regards to the April 1% Council Meeting held inside the Courtroom of the Mammoth Spring City Hall, video
only footage has been requested, again, for a fee that will be passed on to the party requesting the footage.
Please find the minutes for the April council meeting included. These minutes have not been received final
approval from the council members, therefore, the attached minutes are unofficial.

« The Mammoth Spring Police Department does not wear body cameras.

« The City of Mammoth Spring and the Mammoth Spring Police Department does not record phone calls;
therefore, no information is available regarding the conversation with Officer Barnett.

« Complaints between two parties are verbalized to officers or city officials. Unless criminal charges are
involved, documentation is not present and should be treated as a civil matter. No documents are present
regarding citizen complaints on Mr. and Mrs. Campbell as no criminal charges have been made.

e Concerning the dates of December 6, 2023 and March 22, 2024, police were present in an effort to prevent
criminal activity. The issues present were a civil matter, not criminal, therefor no documentation exists.

R@Aly,
M7 BM
Mayor Danny Busch \
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M Gmail Melissa Rogers <melissar0601@gmail.com>

Recording request
1 message

Melissa Rogers <melissar0601@gmail.com> Mon, Apr 22, 2024 at 11:35 AM
To: "Chip@guarddogsecurity.net” <Chip@guarddogsecurity.net>

Good moming! | am with the City of Mammoth Spring and we have been given an audio/video preservation request. Can
you get us the footage from April 1, 2024 between 5:00 and 9:00 pm in our council/courtroom and the lobby? We have
the audio turned off, which is fine, we just need the video.

Thank youl

Melissa Rogers

Defendants
Exh. b+

11.,
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Council Meeting
April 1, 2024 .
5:30 p.m. Desendants
E Xh Y b' +
ll.

Call to order by Mayor

Roll call - Alderman Thomas Owsley; present, Alderman Barry O'Dell; present, Alderman Adam Davis; present,
Alderman Robby Bennett; present

Reports approved ~ motion by Alderman Thomas Owsley, 2" Alderman Robbie Bennett; all aye
Minutes approved as presented — motion by Alderman Adam Davis, 2™ Alderman Thomas Owsley; all aye

Council heard from citizens Dave & Dawn Campbell regarding a variety of concerns. D'iscl.JSSidn'By‘t':o'uhcil on
the possibility of implementing an ordinance outlining property fence restrictions, and revising ordinance on
dogs/vicious dogs.

Permission requested to destroy 2016 records — motion by Alderman Barry O’Dell, 2™ Alderman Robbie
Bennett; all aye

Ordinance 2024-01; closing 10™ street from Archer Avenue to Walker Avenue placed on 1% read — motion by
Robbie Bennett, 2™ Adam Davis; all aye. Roll Call Vote: Alderman Thomas Owsley — Yes, Alderman Adam

Davis - Yes, Alderman Barry O’'Dell - Yes, Alderman Robbie Bennett — Yes. Ordinance will be placed on May
agenda for 2™ read.

Permission to hire summer workers Garet O’Dell and Blake Rogers for 24 hours/week at $11.00/hour
beginning at the end of the schoo! year — motion by Alderman Adam Davis, 2™ Alderman Robbie Bennett; all
aye.

Due to the May Council Meeting conflicting with the Mammoth Spring High School Graduation, the council
meeting will be on May 7t at 5:30pm — motion by Alderman Thomas Owsley, 2™ Alderman Barry O’Dell; all

aye.

Motion to adjourn made by Alderman Adam Davis, 2™ by Thomas Owsley; all aye.

Danny Busch, Mayor M. June Grant, Recorder/Treasurer
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Dave or Dawn Campbell

440 Main Street A&( en éqq.}s '
Mammoth Spring, AR 72554-8800 Exh.b .+
(870) 907-0572 5

Blues24Seven@ymail.com

June 17, 2024 REF: Freedom of Information Act (FOIA) Request #2

A R T e et
AR AP
i :

c/:‘)3 mmoth Spring City Hall
160 North Main St

Mammoth Spring, AR 72554
870-625-3518

C'm_QfMammotthring@gmaiI.com

Dear City Treasurer: ™

Good Morning. This is an official request under the Freedom Of Information Act (FOIA).

On June 10, 2024, throughout the official city council meeting, we were slandered,
ridiculed and forbidden under the color-of-law to defend ourselves in an open meeting
of 50 to 100 citizens of Mammoth Spring. We object to the mayor and council’s abuse.
Please find attached a verbatim transcript of the June 10, 2024 meeting and note the
first paragraph of the third page; “But, when you didn’t get your way at city hall - And
you have — and it’s on video — when — it’s on video — you lied about you touching your
wife’s elbow. It’s on video. That’s not what happened. And you were called out for your
aggressive behavior. Rightfully so. And so you’ve thrown around a few codes and
you’ve thrown around a few lines like, ‘color of law.”” And, “Uh, you acted like children.”
Further, “I can share the email exchange where you guys are again petulant — “
Councilman Davis and Mayor Busch appeared affirmatively nodded throughout Mr.
O’Dell’s harassment against us during the 06/10/24 council meeting. Therefore, we
hereby demand strict proof of Mr. O’Dell’s foregoing words.

|
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Under the FOIA, we officially request a copy of the video to which Mr. O’Dell relies on in
his slander against us. Originally, the City was going to charge us around $100 for this
video. We respectfully request a gratis copy due to the circumstances. To make things
easier on the City’s budget, we have enclosed a factory-sealed thumb drive.

We hereby request the following under the FOIA: Defendan e

Eshibit
e April 01, 2024 City Council Meeting Full Video; 5

e Signed copy of council meeting minutes for April 01, 2024;

e Signed copy council meeting minutes for the June 10, 2024;

e Copy of every document the city council made available to citizens prior to the
June 10, 2024 meeting;

e Please provide any receipts obtained in producing the aforesaid documents
which were distributed before the 06/10/24 meeting, including clarification on
who paid for the documents (ie: did the City of Mammoth Spring pay to print the
documents?).

e The following videos from June 10, 2024:

o The lobby of City Hall from 4:30 p.m. until 6:00 p.m.;
o The City Hall clerk’s office from 4:30 p.m. until 6:00 p.m.;
o The city council’s meeting room from 4:30 p.m. until 6:00 p.m.

e The following videos from April 01, 2024:

o The lobby of City Hall from 4:30 p.m. until 6:30 p.m.;
o The City Hall clerk’s office from 4:30 p.m. until 6:30 p.m.;
o The city council’s meeting room from 4:30 p.m. until 6:30 p.m.

Thank you in advance for your time and response. You are appreciated. Please let us
know if the drive we included is not large enough for the requested files and we will be
happy to provide another one.

&cﬁfully Submitted, d’gj“ >1Cvi.)1c ) ULQﬂ

Dave / Dawn Campbell
Enclosure: Computer Thumb Drive & Transcript of 06/10/24

2
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June 10, 2024 Mammoth Spring City Council Meeting
Preacher/Councilman Barry O’Dell Segment:

PREACHER COUNCILMAN BARRY O’DELL: There’s a lot of information out there when
y’all walked in — some paperwork. Some issues—Well, | mean the —So, it’s — Basically,
what it is — It’s a request by the Campbells who are here tonight, for all the city council,
the mayor, the police department and the county attorney to resign because of
corruption. Now, they have no legal standing. They have nothing by which they have
any right to make that request. Uh, so it — it — it means nothing. But there have been
quite a few issues. And | asked if | could speak, because my name’s on their little
billboard right now. Uh, it's been — The billboard has been rather petty, immature. Uh, |
have other adjectives, but that’s sufficient; petty and immature. Uh, they proclaim
themselves to be defenders of the 1% Amendment. But, we've all got the 1
Amendment. Uh, but when you start attacking people personally — So, multiple names
have been put on that. My name is up there currently. Uh, as you know, | was voted in
on city council. I’'ve also been in this community for 10 years as a gospel preacher at the
Mammoth Spring Church of Christ. The current sign says, Barry: Leader of City and
Church confirms flitty self — flitty self posts pictures of Dave’s rear on WW — World Wide
Web. So, if any of you take time to look up the meanings of terms, the word flitty
means ostentatiously homosexual. So, they have on their billboard --

DAWN CAMPBELL: You need to tell them about all the definitions; the first and second.

PREACHER COUNCILMAN BARRY O’DELL: You're not -- This is not your time. This is not
your time. So their billboard is accusing me of being, uh, homosexual.

DAWN CAMPBELL: It is not. Thatis a lie.

MAYOR DANNY BUSCH: Ma’am.

PREACHER COUNCILMAN BARRY O’DELL: This is not your turn to speak.
DAWN CAMPBELL: Well, don’t lie about it.

PREACHER COUNCILMAN BARRY O’DELL: I'm not. The word flitty — Anybody can — you
got Google. Search it. Okay? Search it.

UNKNOWN CITIZEN: It does say that.
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DAVE CAMPBELL: It’s one of the definitions.

PREACHER COUNCILMAN BARRY O’DELL: SHHHHHHH.
DAWN CAMPBELL: Unstable.

PREACHER COUNCILMAN BARRY O’DELL: That’s enough.
MAYOR DANNY BUSCH: One more —

BARRY O’DELL: Unstable.

MAYOR DANNY BUSCH: One more outburst -- Jamie.

PREACHER COUNCILMAN BARRY O’DELL: So, | know what it means, because the sign
says, “posted a picture of Dave’s rear.” Well, he happened to be — | was driving by. See,
a friend of mine told me he said, hey, they’re putting up a sign. And So, I've got two
pictures of him in the process of making the sign. It wasn’t finished yet. And when |
drove by —uh, this other sign -- He was bending over picking up the letters and so | just
snapped a picture of the sign. | wasn’t snapping a picture of his rear, which they put on
their little sign. So, this is what they’re accusing me of. They’ve put my name, my work,
my reputation on their board. And again, it’s childish. | understand that. Part of the
problem, though — Part of the problem is that too many good people — oh, just let it go.
Just let it go. Well, several signs have let -- been let go. And that’s fine. Uh, 'm not
letting this go, just so you know. We had a good relationship. | bought — How many
times have | been to your place? | bought your product.

DAVE CAMPBELL: Too many. He asked me a question.
MAYOR DANNY BUSCH: (Laughing)

PREACHER COUNCILMAN BARRY O’DELL: Okay. Well, apparently you don’t like money
then.

DAVE CAMPBELL: Not your money.

PREACHER COUNCILMAN BARRY O’DELL: But, uh, we had friendly conversations. | met
you at Steve Atkins Saw Shop is the first time | met you. |invited you to our worship
services. Everything’s been fine. But when you didn’t get your way at city hall -- And
you have — and it’s on video — when -- it’s on video -- you lied about you touching your
wife’s elbow. It’s on video. That’s not what happened. And you were called out for
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your aggressive behavior. Rightfully so. And so you’ve thrown around a few codes and
you’ve thrown around a few lines like, “color of law.” And you have no legal basis. Uh,
you acted like children. Uh, —and -- and -- and now you’ve put my name and my
reputation up on your little board. And if you think that as a Christian my job is just to
take it, you‘re -- you’re wrong. So Christians are not pushovers, nor are we doormats.
And you put something like that up there about me. And, uh, | mean people can see it.
And people have all the information. | can share the email exchange where you guys
are again petulant -

DAWN CAMPBELL: (whispering) This is weird.

PREACHER COUNCILMAN BARRY O’DELL: -- petulant and self aggrandizing, arrogant.
Uh, again, | have several words, but you accused City Hall of several things that are just
untrue. Again you have no legal standing. | don’t know what you think you have, but
you have nothing. And so you can record, you can post your signs, you can do whatever
you want. Butit’s been, you know, several signs. Several names have been pointed out
and -- well, uh, it would be nice if people would act like adults and, uh, act like
responsible citizens and not — not be so petulant. That’'s — That’s -- That’s what | have to
say. And — and — and I'll say this, too. Thank you for being here. | appreciate -- City Hall,
thank you all for being here. These meetings are for everybody. It's for the community,
you know, so we want you here. If you have questions or issues, that’s why we’re here.
We’'re here to dialogue with you. So, feel free, now when you come in with a dialogue of
— of — how would you say it? When you come with a dialogue of aggression and after
you’ve made your accusations against us and against the police department, after every
accusation you have a childish insult, you’re — you’re probably going to get shut down,
because we’re not here to tolerate — we don’t have to tolerate that kind of behavior.

So, thank you for being here.

(There was sporadic clapping.)

(END OF PROCEEDINGS)
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City of Mammoth Spring

avor - ocH 325 MAIN ST. O oS
JUNE GRANT P.O. BOX 185 THOMAS OWSLEY
RECORDER / TREASURER MAMMOTH SPRING, ARKANSAS 72554 R:::;:;"D:T
PHONE: (870) 625-3518
EWA!
oY ATTORNEY FAX: (870) 625-7566
E-mail: cityofmammothspring@gmail.com
Defendants
Dave & Dawn Campbell F xhi bit
440 Main Street b

Mammoth Spring, AR 72554
June 21, 2024
Mr. & Mrs. Campbell,

Please find the following in response to your Freedom of Information Act request dated
06/17/2024 and received via mail on 06/18/2024 packaged in an eBay envelope with
no return address.

e The April 1, 2024 meeting video is no longer available.

« A signed copy of the April 1, 2024, council meeting minutes, as approved by the
Mammoth Spring City Council on May 7%, 2024, is included.

* A copy of the June 10, 2024, meeting minutes are included, but are “UNOFFICIAL”".
These minutes will be approved or modified on July 1%, 2024, at the regular monthly
council meeting.

o The documents made available to the public during the meeting were letters sent to
individual employees and council members along with the mayor’s request to resign.
Also made available to the public was an email exchange between the Campbell’s and
Alderman O’Dell. Because these documents were sent to the persons; the city does
not have a copy. We are including the copies of the letters that were presented to the
city that were displayed for the public at the open meeting. Also included is a copy of
the meeting agenda which was also made public. Information for the public is laying
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on a table in the lobby and is free to anyone wishing to pick it up prior to coming into
the council room or on the way out following the meeting.

« Copies are completed for citizens free of charge. This policy was changed when
former Mayor Charles Vaughn took office in 2019. Prior to that, copies were .05 per

page.

e Video was downloaded on 06/19/2024 by our security company. A bill for the
footage will be forwarded via mail for the download when it is received. Upon receipt
of payment, the video will be mailed to your address. This video is for the lobby of city
hall and the council meeting room from 4:30p.m. to 6:00p.m. Cameras are not
available inside the “clerk’s office”. Recorder/Treasurer Grant is on video recording the
audio of the meeting, however, upon request of the recording, City Hall was notified
that the audio was no longer available due to the recorder being dropped during the
meeting. At this time, audio is unavailable and this incident is being looked into. If the
audio is retrieved, a copy will be mailed to your address promptly.

« As stated above, the owner of the security system advised you with the previous
FOIA request that video is no longer available for the April 1, 2024 meeting.

« The drive that was provided is being returned. Upon untapping it, it was no longer
“factory sealed” and we were not able to put it into our system.

Respectfully, :DC‘C maon-l—s
@ E xh bit

Mayor Danny Busch
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Dave or Dawn Campbelil ‘

nts
440 Main Street De&jnéi‘ N
Mammoth Spring, AR 72554-8800 Exh b
(870) 907-0572 b

Blues24Seven ail.com

June 17, 2024 REF: Freedom of Information Act (FOIA) Request #2

c/o Mgmhggaﬁng City Hall
160 North Main St

Mammoth Spring, AR 72554
870-625-3518

CityOfMammothSpring@gmail.com

i

Dear City Treasurer: ~
Good Morning. This is an official request under the Freedom Of Information Act (FOIA).

On June 10, 2024, throughout the official city council meeting, we were slandered,
ridiculed and forbidden under the color-of-law to defend ourselves in an open meeting
of 50 to 100 citizens of Mammoth Spring. We object to the mayor and council’s abuse.
Please find attached a verbatim transcript of the June 10, 2024 meeting and note the
first paragraph of the third page; “But, when you didn’t get your way at city hall - And
you have — and it’s on video — when — it’s on video — you lied about you touching your
wife’s elbow. It’s on video. That’s not what happened. And you were called out for your
aggressive behavior. Rightfully so. And so you've thrown around a few codes and
you’ve thrown around a few lines like, color of law. ** And, “Uh, you acted like children.”
Further, “I can share the email exchange where you guys are again petulant —*
Councilman Davis and Mayor Busch appeared affirmatively nodded throughout Mr.
O’Dell’s harassment against us during the 06/10/24 council meeting. Therefore, we
hereby demand strict proof of Mr. 0’ Dell’s foregoing words.

y
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Under the FOIA, we officially request a copy of the video to which Mr. O’Dell relies on in
his slander against us. Originally, the City was going to charge us around $100 for this
video. We respectfully request a gratis copy due to the circumstances. To make things
easier on the City’s budget, we have enclosed a factory-sealed thumb drive.

We hereby request the following under the FOIA:

e April 01, 2024 City Council Meeting Full Video;

o Signed copy of council meeting minutes for April 01, 2024;

o Signed copy council meeting minutes for the June 10, 2024;

e Copy of every document the city council made available to citizens prior to the
June 10, 2024 meeting;

e Please provide any receipts obtained in producing the aforesaid documents
which were distributed before the 06/10/24 meeting, including clarification on
who paid for the documents (ie: did the City of Mammoth Spring pay to print the
documents?).

e The following videos from june 10, 2024:

o The lobby of City Hall from 4:30 p.m. until 6:00 p.m.;
o The City Hall clerk’s office from 4:30 p.m. until 6:00 p.m.;
o The city council’s meeting room from 4:30 p.m. until 6:00 p.m.

e The following videos from April 01, 2024:

o The lobby of City Hall from 4:30 p.m. until 6:30 p.m.;
o The City Hall clerk’s office from 4:30 p.m. until 6:30 p.m.;
o The city council’s meeting room from 4:30 p.m. until 6:30 p.m.

Thank you in advance for your time and response. You are appreciated. Please let us
know if the drive we included is not large enough for the requested files and we will be
happy to provide another one.

Respectfully Submitted, &m )
Qe (s £00

Dave / Dawn Campbell
Enclosure: Computer Thumb Drive & Transcript of 06/10/24

S
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June 10, 2024 Mammoth Spring City Council Meeting
Preacher/Councilman Barry O’Dell Segment:

PREACHER COUNCILMAN BARRY O’DELL: There’s a lot of information out there when
y'all walked in —some paperwork. Some issues—Well, | mean the —So, it’s — Basically,
what it is — It's a request by the Campbells who are here tonight, for all the city council,
the mayor, the police department and the county attorney to resign because of
corruption. Now, they have no legal standing. They have nothing by which they have
any right to make that request. Uh, so it — it — it means nothing. But there have been
quite a few issues. And | asked if | could speak, because my name’s on their little
billboard right now. Uh, it’s been — Tjishiltts Nl sy Ub, !
have other adjectives, but that’s sufﬁcienfiwpétty and immature. U, they p?gcl im
themselves to be defenders of the 1 Amendment. But, we've all got the 1*
Amendment. Uh, but when you start attacking people personally - So, multiple names
have been put on that. My name is up there currently. Uh, as you know, | was voted in
on city council. I've also been in this community for 10 years as a gospel preacher at the
Mammoth Spring Church of Christ. The current sign says, Barry: Leader of City and
Church confirms flitty self — flitty self posts pictures of Dave’s rear on WW — World Wide
Web. So, if any of you take time to look up the meanings of terms, e
S So, they have on their billboard -

DAWN CAMPBELL: You need to tell them about all the definitions; the first and second.

PREACHER COUNCILMAN BARRY O’DELL: You're not — This is not your time. This is not
your time. So their billboard is accusing me of being, uh, homosexual.

DAWN CAMPBELL: it is not. Thatis a lie.

MAYOR DANNY BUSCH: Ma’am.

PREACHER COUNCILMAN BARRY O’DELL: This is not your turn to speak.
DAWN CAMPBELL: Well, don’t lie about it.

PREACHER COUNCILMAN BARRY O’DELL: m not. The word flitty — Anybody can — you
got Google. Search it. Okay? Search it.

UNKNOWN CITIZEN: it does say that.
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DAVE CAMPBELL: It's one of the definitions. Defendants

PREACHER COUNCILMAN BARRY O’DELL: - So, | know what it means, because the sign
says, “posted a picture of Dave’s rear.” Well, he happened to be — | was driving by. See,
a friend of mine told me he said, hey, they’re putting up a sign. And So, I've got two
pictures of him in the process of making the sign. It wasn’t finished yet. And when |
drove by —uh, this other sign - He was bending over picking up the letters and so | just
snapped a picture of the sign. | wasn’t snapping a picture of his rear, which they put on
their little sign. So, this is what they’re accusing me of. They’ve put my name, my work,
my reputation on their board. And again, it’s childish. | understand that. Part of the
problem, though — Part of the problem is that too many good people - oh just let it go
Just let |t go. Well, several si :ns have let - been let go. And that's fine. W

Py how’ We had a good relationship. | bought - How many‘
tlmes have | been to your place? | bought your product.

DAVE CAMPBELL: Too many. He asked me a question.
MAYOR DANNY BUSCH: (Laughing)

PREACHER COUNCILMAN BARRY O’DELL: — Okay. Well, apparently you don’t like
money then.

DAVE CAMPBELL: Not your money.

PREACHER COUNCILMAN BARRY O’DELL: — But, uh, we had friendly conversations. |
met you at Steve Atkins Saw Shop is the flrst tlme I met you I mvuted you to our
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reputatlon up on your I|ttle board And if you think that as a Christian my job is just to
take it, you're -- you’re wrong. So Christians are not pushovers, nor are we doormats.
And you put something Ilke that up there about me. And uh, | mean people can see |t

you have nothing. And so you can record you can post your signs, you can do whatever
you want. But nt's been, you know several signs. Several names have been pomted out

ot . < oo

séy And —and - and I'll sa\r this, too. Thank you for being here. | appreciate - City Hall,
thank you all for being here. These meetings are for everybody. It's for the community,

So, thank you for being here.

(There was sporadic clapping.)

(END OF PROCEEDINGS)
g
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Council Meeting

April 1, 2024 .
5:30 p.m. ‘Dcccné ants
Exhibi+
Call to order by Mayor b

Roll call — Alderman Thomas Owsley; present, Alderman Barry O'Dell; present, Alderman Adam Davis; present,
Alderman Robby Bennett; present

Reports approved — motion by Alderman Thomas Owsley, 2" Alderman Robbie Bennett; all aye
Minutes approved as presented — motion by Alderman Adam Davis, 2™ Alderman Thomas Owsley; all aye

Council heard from citizens Dave & Dawn Campbell regarding a variety of concerns. Discussion by council on

the possibility of implementing an ordinance outlining property fence restrictions, and revising ordinance on
dogs/vicious dogs.

Permission requested to destroy 2016 records — motion by Alderman Barry O’Dell, 2™ Alderman Robbie
Bennett; ail aye

Ordinance 2024-01; closing 10" street from Archer Avenue to Walker Avenue placed on 1% read — motion by
Robbie Bennett, 2™ Adam Davis; all aye. Roll Call Vote: Alderman Thomas Owsley — Yes, Alderman Adam
Davis - Yes, Alderman Barry O’'Dell - Yes, Alderman Robbie Bennett —Yes. Ordinance will be placed on May
agenda for 2" read.

Permission to hire summer workers Garet O’Dell and Blake Rogers for 24 hours/week at $11.00/hour
beginning at the end of the school year — motion by Alderman Adam Davis, 2" Alderman Robbie Bennett; all

aye.

Due to the May Council Meeting conflicting with the Mammoth Spring High School Graduation, the council
meeting will be on May 7™ at 5:30pm — motion by Alderman Thomas Owsley, 2" Alderman Barry O’'Dell; all
aye.

Motion to adjourn made by Alderman Adam Davis, 2™ by Thomas Owsley; all aye.

D gt oo,

Danny Busch, ayor
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Mammoth Spring City Council Meeting D - -C Crda(ﬂ—s'
June 10,2024 Exch b +

5:30 p.m. 6
Meeting called to order by Mayor Busch

Roll Call: Alderman Robbie Bennett: present; Alderman Barry O’Dell; present; Alderman Adam
Davis present; Alderman Tom Owsley; Present.

Alderman Davis made a motion to accept all reports; Alderman O'Dell seconded the motion;
Motion Carried, Alt Ayes.

Alderman Owsley made a motion to accept last months minutes; Alderman O’Dell seconded the
motion. Motion Carried, All Ayes.

Mayor Busch advised that there was going to be an increase in the trash service. its $11.50 now will
increase .56 cents $12.06) per household on the upcoming bill. Out of town rates will not be
impacted and will stay the same.

Review Title 6 of the Mammoth Spring Municipal code: Animais
Review Chapter 7:44 of the Mammoth Spring Municipal Code: Disturbing the Peace
Discussion on Emptoyees being off on the 4 & 5 of July.

Alderman Bennett made a motion for the employees to be off July 4" and 5*; Alderman O’Dell
seconded the motion. Motion Carried, All Ayes.

Alderman O’Dell spoke about resignation request.
Mayor Busch asked if any other Council members had anything to say before adjourning.

Alderman O'Dell made a motion to adjourn. Alderman Davis seconded the motion. Motion Carried,
All Ayes

Meeting Adjourned

Danny Busch/ Mayor M. June Grant/ Recorder/Treasurer

oFF IC AR

ID
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City of Mammoth Spring

City Council Dekerdants
June 10, 2024 Esch bt
5:30 p.m.
@ Mammoth Spring City Hall 6
**160 N. 1t Street**
Call meeting to order
Review reports

Approve minutes from previous meeting

Trash Rate Increase

Discussion on July 4t holiday

Review Title 6 of the Mammoth Spring Municipal Code: Animals

Review Chapter 7.44 of the Mammoth Spring Municipal Code: Disturbing
the Peace

Adjourn
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Dave and Dawn Campbell Defendams

440 Main Street I xh’ bt
Mammoth Spring, Arkansas 72554-8800 6
June 06, 2024 Re:Fraud Rebuke / Cease Notice / Resignation Request

(Also served via email: cityofmammothspring@gmail.com)

Mayor Danny Busch

City of Mammoth Spring

160 N First Street

Mammoth Spring, Arkansas 72554

Dear Mayor Busch:

We request your immediate resignation, for the following reasons:

We reviewed your response to our April 17, 2024 FOIA request and will let Mrs. June
Grant know if and when the preserved video footage dated April 01, 2024 is ordered. We
will also notify Mrs. Grant’s office when the preservation request is lifted. It is odd you
are completing Mrs. Grant’s tasks. We did not send our FOIA request to you; it was sent
to a specific department we have been informed is in the jurisdiction of Mrs. Grant.
Someone said she is locked out of the City Hall. An elected Mammoth Spring Official
should not be locked out of the Mammoth Spring City Hall.

We notify you of our objection to your fraud April Fools Day in order to suppress our

opposition to the neighboring junkyard-style wall. You blatantly licd by stating the car
lot was removing the wall, because “they want to get along.” If fraud was not enacted
please answer why another tall wall is standing beside us. The same people who put the
new wall up are the same ones who took the other wall down. You blatantly lied to us.

Your response dated April 23, 2024 evidences your fraud against us during the April 01,
2024 City Hall Meeting when you falscly and maliciously alleged there have been
numerous complaints made against us. You falsely alleged the same issues we raised on
04/01/24 have been raised against us. Therefore: your absurd foregoing allegation against
us equates to you falsely alleging: 1) we have a Pit Bull dog roaming unleashed; 2) we
permit a Pit Bull dog to jump on an clderly person; 3) we broke into an elderly person’s

11 (b)
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home while they were in the hospital; 4) we haul vehicles on a trailer with no license
plate; 5) we have Kentucky tags on our personal vehicle; and 6) we haul vehicles using
an expired dealer tag (12/23) In addition to the aforesaid absurd allegations we believe
you made against us on 04/01/24, you falsely accused us of trespassing through the back
yard of a Pit Bull dog in order to kick the dog and be verbally assanited and physically
threatened by the dog’s owner. You erroncously alleged it was impossible for the dog to
have been in the alley, due to the alleged electric fence FYI: Another of our neighbors,
whom you falsely alleged we do not get along with, informed us they do not believe there
is an electric fence where the aggressive pit bull resides. Your fraud in alleging we were
the trespassers is an attack we rebuke and oppose with fervor! We rebuke all your fraud!

Under FOIA, you failed to produce one single complaint you cited during the April
Fool’s Day meeting. April Fools Day, you also attacked us with the false allegation,
Officer Bamett was “cussed out” in a phone call as a result of hearing the word, “sh*t.”
We believe you and Officer Bamett are committing fraud against us in falsely alleging
Officer Barnett was “cussed out” when we spoke with him on the phone. Officer Barnett
instigated the word “sh*z” by retorting; he was “trying” to show respect. Either you
show respect, or you do not show respect. Officer Barnett showed us a great lack of
respect when he threatened to tow our truck for being in the alley’ and also last October,
when SEIEPs home was broken into by her estranged son, which he was reminded
of during the phone call. You shut us down when we tried explaining this scenario
during the April 1* City Hall meeting. The fact you (confirmed April Fools Day) and
your officer believe hearing the word “sh*#” constitutes a “cussing out” causes doubt as
to the suitability of your roles, especially when neither of you apologized for false
witnessing against us. Saying “sh*t” does not constitute a “cussing out.” You
insidiously alleged we’ve been charged with the violations we attested and then failed to
substantiate your fraud/false witness. The facts for our allegations are evidenced. We
object to you and your police chief trying to provoke us into a fight in order to make an

unconstitutional “color of law ” abusive arrest.

We arc aware of the fact you are without immunity to commit gross negligence upon
citizens, as you did on April Fool’s Day against us and 11/06/23 against SNNY
MBm. Arkansas law says “no tort action shall lie against any such political subdivision
because of the acts of its agents and employees. ” Arkansas law also says, “Although the
law applies 1o torts in general, the Arkansas Supreme Court has interpreted it to mean
only negligence (Deitsch v. Tillery, 309 Ark. 401, 833 S.W.2d 760 (1992); Battle v.
Harris, 298 Ark. 241, 766 S.W.2d 431 (1989)). Negligence means that a person did not
act with reasonable care, bul negligence does not cover intentional acts such as batiery,
slander, invasion of privacy and many other acts. The Arkansas Supreme Court has
indicated, however, that it may refuse 1o grant immunity in cases of ‘gross negligence.’
(Doc v. Baum, 348 Ark. 259, 72 S.W.3d 476 (2002)). Gross negligence is defined as ‘[1]
he imtentional failure to perform a manifest duty in reckless disregard of the
consequences as afffecting the life or property of another.” Thus, the court has siated that
12 EXHIBIT 6
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only negligence, as opposed to intentional acts (or possibly gross negligence), receives
immunity from suit. This applies o the city's employees as well as the city itself, but only
to the extent that the act was committed while the employee was carrying out his or her
official duties.(Spears v, City of Fordvee, 351 Ark. 305, 311-12, 92 S.W.3d 38, 42
(2002); Waire v. Joseph, 308 Ark. 528, 534, 825 S.W.2d 594, 598 (1992); and Cousins v.
Dennis, 298 Ark. 310, 312, 767 S.W.2d 296, 297 (1989)).

It is evident to us, your fraudulent attacks against us on 04/01/24 were committed to
harass, annoy and alarm us in order to provoke a violent or disorderly response in order
to make a “color of law” axvest, which we object to. You lacked good cause to attack us.

Arkansas Code, Section 5-71-208 (a) (4) under “Harassment” states. “A person commits
the offense of harassment if, with purpose 1o harass, annoy, or alarm another person,

without good cause, he or she: In a public place repeatedly insults, taunts, or challenges
another person in a manner likely to provoke a violent or disorderly response.”

Mrs. I shared a letter you sent her 05/08/24. You admitted, “On November 6, 2023,
Amanda Dunn notified City Hall, who verified with the Mammoth Spring Police
Department, that her grandmother-in-law, Wy SER, was ill and unconscious following
afall. At that time Amanda Dunn presented POA papers. Also at this time Amanda
Dunn paid the required deposit of $150 and a connect fee of $10 to have water left on in
her name at 488 R Averue. Upon receiving this deposit, City Hall changed the
name on the account 1o Amanda Dunn from SRS (deceased). The account had
an $8.00 deposit which was applied to the water bill.” (See Attachment)

Your letter indicates you were notified and believed Mrs. Tillrwas unconscious from at
least 10/26/23 through 11/06/23, which you confessed you verified with your police
department. The issue is, Amanda Dunn executed a POA against Mrs. il on
11/02/23, which you admitted Amanda Dunn showed you on 11/6/23. 11/6/23 is the
same day Amanda stated (and you verified with your police department) Jlj had been
unconscious since falling (10/26). (See Attachment) You gave evidence, you authorized
the name change on an account of a LIVING, approx-40-year resident and used a POA

you believed was executed when the principal/resident was unconscious. This is
unfymgtous,Mr Busch, especially when it appears your police department did not
investigate her complaint pursuant to Arkansas statutes. We belicve you had the
Wuﬂ-mhauymmvmﬂ:el&rabmwhnhmmﬂyoemdn‘-
YU Avenue if you would have 1) prohibited pit bulls pursuant to the ordinance; 2)
spoke up about Amanda’s patently faulty POA document. Your position placed a burden
on you 10 stop the biatant elder sbuse you witnessed and also places a burden on you to
report it now since you failed to then. (See Attachment ~ Elder Abuse Statute)
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Attached is a document with the “Adult Maltreatment Hotline” and a list of mandated
reponters, to include “law enforcement officer.” An updated list includes “an employee
who enforces code requirements for a city, township, or municipality.” We attempted to
submit a report about the suspected abuse againstdiliiby Amanda Dunn and received a
404 exror message. We found the following address to send written reports:

Adult Protective Services, Director Natasha Lucas, P.O. Box 1437 — Slot W241

Little Rock, AR 72203-1437, Natasha Lucas@dhs.arkansas.gov, (501) 686-9164

SRR and/or her late husband’s water bill should never have been in Amanda
Dunn’s name; POA or not. You admitted MliJs water bill was in the name of her
deceased husband. Amanda was a caretaker and caretakers do not normally put their
names on an elderly’s account. Amanda did not have a POA for Charles Dunn
(deceased); therefore, how can the 11/06/23 name change be justified? We are confused
as to how a POA authorized Amanda Dunn to transfer an account from a deceased person
to Amanda using a POA written for the sole benefit of “the principal,” who is Tl
@8, not Amanda Dunn, and when S was reportedly unconscious. (See
Attached POA) Amanda Dunn had no stake in the residence at SESSGEP Avenue. It is
ambiguous as to why Mrs. S account was billed an additional $160.00. A statement
you issued on 05/06/24 which has confused Nirs. SilllRis: “On May 2, 2024, Amanda
Dunn came into City Hall requesting that the water at SEEEEEEP Avenue be turned off in
her name.” Your May 08 letter indicates there is $150.00 deposit Amanda Dunn paid for
s address and fails to address what happened to the $150.00 previously paid on
SR> account by Amanda Dunn. If you cannot apply the $160 refind to TR water
bill, it would be nice if Mrs. M@ were notified of said money’s dispersal. Her account
should not have been charged a reconnect fee.

It is ambiguous for a police officer to attempt to keep peace while screaming a demand to
a citizen at a city hall meeting the citizen is to never again touch his wife like that, when
the citizen merely touched his wife’s elbow while snggesting they leave. We perceive
yomsﬂencemdfnﬂmmstandupagainstevﬂtobeaninsidiousdimﬁonofymn
consent to the mistaken and reprehensible acts against us by Chief Tumbough. Your
fraud against us prior to James® bizarre and pimp-like behavior indicates you conspired
with him against us endeavoring to provoke us into a in order to be arrested under
the“colorqﬂaw,"aswasappuuﬂydonetoMm.MisshmefnL

More ambiguity resulted on 04/01 by Chief Turnbough when he attempted to order Dave
back into the meeting, advised we hire an attorney and told Dave to “be aman.” Your
frightful behavior against us follows the threat and abuse we received last December by a
neighboring business owner who threatened bodily harm and alleged we would be getting
into trouble for something he did not then know. We then recorded said business owner
and his wifc installing three surveillance cameras which were pointed at our home, one
which was tied to a banner structure and aimed into our screened front porch. We later
began snd advertised a website in the name of said adversary. It is suspicious Chief
|4
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TnmbonghstatedoanOlfz4webeucrwatchwhatwesayonmwebsitc,whenmr
website was about the issues with our adversary, leaving an appearance of aiding our
adversary by your office, especially when considering your fraud in alleging the wall was
coming down because they “want 1o get along. ™ This indicates you spoke with our
adversary before the April Fool’s meeting. Your false allegation we do not get along
wdﬂlomneighbotsappwsmhavestunmedﬁommadmmy’sfalsewimusin
alleging the same thing. In December of 2023, our adversary trespassed across our yard
where we were on the other side of the 6’ fence, which separates our two buildings. The
adversary began a conversation by saying “they” told him he needed to come talk to us
and make friends. He then alleged after the treatment he’d witnessed us giving our
neighbor (Mrs g he did not want to be treated the same way. We immediately set
Mr. Peterson straight and let him know what had really occurred last October.
Appumﬂy,hedidnaﬁsten.bemseitsecmsyouwucpumﬁngsaidﬁlsewiunssm
April Fool’s Day!

The fraud against us, which began last year has cansed us to record all interactions with
your office and other known false witnesses. Your frandulent allegations against us on
04/01 (which seemed to represent our adversary) and your command on 4/01 that we
were “done,” being followed by your officer’s eroneous, unconstitutional, defamatory,
provoking, retaliatory and malicious demand and the city council members and two peace
officers silent consent is frightening and causes us to fear for our lives and safety.

Itis suspiciousandpmjudicialymroﬂiccpamitsknownunhwfnlnessatalocal
business. On 04/01/24, your police chief suggested we call the highway patrol’s office to
do his job. WhydoesMammothSptingneedapolicedcpamncntiﬁtwillnotenforcc
Arkansas laws? Your office is costing Arkansas its due revenue and it appears you are
permitting a family to drive uninsured. After what you confessed against Mrs. Sl
what else will you turn a blind eye to, which could cause someonc to suffer? Your
refusal to speak up against blatant frand and elder abuse appears to have cost Mrs ANSRE
over $4,400.00 from her bank account, her truck and many of her cherished possessions.
Knowingly aiding an uninsured motorist is bad. Your refusal to stand up againsta
bhmniy-ﬁwdnlcmPOAyoubdievcdwasmﬁzedwhmapﬁmipalwasmconscions
is uncomscionable. You erroncously attacked us for reporting being attacked by a Pit Bull
you failed/fail to protect citizeas from. Why did you run for mayor and then hurt people?

S SO iby AN 10 BRl NP OUl DYSINEIS
B Mammoth SPTiRg. ricay resipm a3 Maye Ymhadmanhstontnct/mol your
damaging lies against us. You reckiessly authority and harmed our business. A
written apology and/or excuse for your false witnessing is wasranted.

There is a discrepancy in the April 01, 2024 meeting minutes, in that Mrs. June Grant did
not attend the meeting. The minutes you sent in response to our FOIA request contain an
15
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the April Fool’s Day City Hall meeting. Please correct the meeting minutes for April 01,
2024 to reflect the actual author and the issues we raised.

Thank you for your time. We also are thankful to your wife for helping Mrs. Betty Dunn
with her medications. Betty speaks favorably of your wife and we are happy your wife is
there to help her. We expect you will notify the appropriate authorities of your belief
Amanda Dumn received a POA for on a date Mrs. SR was “ill and
unconscious,” since you are lawfully mandated to do so.

We rebuke your fraud/slander and harassment against us. It is our understanding,
“fraud” has a three-year statute of limitation in Arkansas. We request and will
appreciate if you cease and retract your fraud/false witnessing against us immediately and
do not commit anymore fraud/false witnessing/harassment against us. Please respond
and/or our allegations apainst us within eleven (11) da

Respectfully,

Dave/Dawn Campbell

Attachments:

1. May 08, 2024 Letter to SR
2. 11/02/23 Power of Attorncy By Amanda Dunn

3. Elder Abuse Hotline and List of Mandated Reporters
Cc:  Arkansas State Representative Trey Steimel

MoArkNews.com

' The City of Mammoth Spring prejudicially permits the car lot next door to us to block the
alleyway throughout the night and to also congest the street throughout the day and evening
hours. Often, the city permits the car lot’s vehicles to be parked facing the wrong direction.
Therefore, the City of Mammoth Spring (via its mayor) prejudiced Dave and Dawn Campbelt by
employing Assistant Chief Bamett to threaten to tow the Campbell’s truck away, due to parking
in the alleyway.
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440 Main Street Esch.bit

Mammoth Spring, Arkansas 72554

Blues24Seven@ymail com é)

(870) 907-0572

June 06, 2024 RE: Resignation Request/Fraud Rebuke
(served via email: cityofmammothspring@gmail.com)

Officer Hunter Crawford

Mammoth Spring Police Department

PO Box 462

Mammoth Spring, AR 72554

Officer Crawford:

We request you to resign from your position with the City of Mammoth Spring
effective immediately. Please preserve any notes you have pertaining to the 04/01/24
incident. You were present and saw Mayor Busch and Chief Tumbough attempt to
provoke us into rage during the April Fool’s city council meeting. By your silence and
failure to stand against wrong, you horribly consented to the mayor and chief’s abuse.

On 04/01/24, by your condoning, you insidiously and prejudicially dictated, a particular
husband is never again to touch his wife’s elbow, via your chief of police, who attacked
with the erroneous demand, “DON'T EVER TOUCH YOUR WIFE LIKE THAT AGAIN!”
immediately after a husband touched his wife’s elbow upon suggesting they leave the
meeting after the mayor stated they were “done.” You witnessed and sat in silence while
failing to stand up to Mr. Busch’s absurd false allegation of complaints against us which
the mayor falsely alleged are the same as the issues we presented before being shut up by
him. By your silence and failure to correct the record on 04/01/24, you aided Mr.
Busch’s false witnessing against us. You witnessed and consented by silence to Mr.
Busch falsely accusing us of trespassing through the yard of a pit bull dog in order to be

\7
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’m‘:ked,’ cause ace ording to Mr. Busch, the alleged electric fence prevented the dog
from being in the alley, yet the electric fence did not prevent us, which is incongmous.‘

You witnessed and consented by your silence to Chicf Tumbough attempting to escalate
the situation into becoming hostile in apparcatly attempting to make a “color of lo”
arrest against Dave and/or Dawn Campbell. You consented by silence to Mr. Turnbough
loudly goading Dave to “BE A MAN” and to go back into the mecting, despite

being told, no by Dave Carpbell. Mr. Tumbough’s commation in the lobby against
Dave was so disruptive, DawnCampbcllwmthtodtclobbyinanaﬂemP'mw‘f"
You had a chance to stand up ag!linsttheluum.r.smentcansedbyalm}"’"“dl’°ﬁ"e chief.

Arkansas Code, Section 5-71-208 (a) (4) under “Harassment” states: “A person commits
the offense of harassment if, with purpose 1o harass, annoy, or alarm another person,
without good cause, he or she: Ina public place repeatedly insults, taunts, or challenges
another person in a manner likely to provoke a violent or disorderly response.”

Apparently, Mr. Turnbough’s gross, pimp-like harassment against us and Mr. Bufh’s
defamatory harassment was to harass, annoy and alarm us in order to provoke & Ynolcnt or
disorderly response in order to make a “color of law » arrest, which the city oﬂ.icmls
lacked good cause to do. Nowﬂmtwchavelcamed‘tmifyms story,

we feel confident the City of Mammoth Springoﬁcialsintendtogofd.usintoanmest,
under the “color of law.” We believe each witness acting cowardly is in on the plot.

Webelievcyonhadadmytosmnduptoﬂlcco:mpﬁonyouwimesscdon04/01/24and

because you’'ve failed to take a stand against corruption, we hereby request your
immedi jon. Ifonedoesnotstandfonight.ﬂleyarecnablelsofwrong. We

immediate resignation. e
tebukcanﬁaudmdhmssmmtpapcmtcdugnmstnsmdchaﬂcngextmﬂlgusto.

Pleascseednccnclosedhmﬁfyingﬂ:rcc-pancxhibitinsuppoﬂ of SRS
complaint. Thank you for your time.

Cc: Arkansas State Representative Trey Steimel / MoArkNews.com

‘w.&udxupudedtanOIAmﬁrdlemhhs he alleged during 04/01/24 and he admitted
mmﬁmhwbenﬂdwmveudlumw. M. Busch did not apologize for
mumuowlmmmnmm.mmmmmmm

2
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Dave and Dawn Campbell / E}h ‘ JD T

440 Main Street \ é

Mammoth Spring, Arkansas 72554

Blues24Seven@ymail.com

(870) 907-0572

June 06, 2024 RE: Resignation Request/Fraud Rebuke
(Served via email to: cityofmammothspring@gmail.com)

Assistant Chief Barnett

Mammoth Spring Police Department

PO Box 462

Mammoth Spring, AR 72554

Assistant Chief Bamett:

We request you to resign from your position with the City of Mammoth Spring

effective immediately. Please preserve any notes you have pertaining to the 04/01/24
incident. You were present and saw Mayor Busch and Chief Tumbough attempt to

provoke us into rage during the April Fool’s city hall meeting. By your silence and
failure to stand against wrong, you horribly consented to the mayor and chief’s abuse.

On 04/01/24, by your condoning, you insidiously and prejudicially dictated, a particular
husband is never again to touch his wife’s elbow, via your chief of police, who attacked
with the erroneous demand, “DON’T EVER TOUCH YOUR WIFE LIKE THAT AGAIN!”
immediately after a husband touched his wife’s clbow upon suggesting they leave the
meeting after the mayor stated they were “done.” You witnessed and sat in silence while
failing to stand up to Mr. Busch’s absurd false allegation of complaints against us which
the mayor falsely alleged are the same as the issues we presented before being shut up by
him. By your silence and failare to correct the record on 04/01/24, you aided Mr.
Busch’s false witnessing against us. You witnessed and consented by silence to Mr.
Busch falsely accusing us of trespassing through the yard of a pit bull dog in order to be
attacked, because according to Mr. Busch, the alleged electric fence prevented the dog
from being in the alley, yet the electric fence did not prevent us, which is im:cmgnmns.l

! Mr. Busch responded to a FOIA request for the complaints he alleged during 04/01/24 and he admitted
no complaints have been filed against Dave and/or Dawn Campbell. Mr. Busch did not apologize for
slandering us during the 04/01/24 council mecting. Mr. Busch has not corrected the record.
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You witnessed and consented by your silence to Chief Turbough attempting to escalate
the situation into becoming hostile in apparently attempting to make a “color of law”
arrest against Dave and/or Dawn Campbell. You consented by silence to Mr. Turnbough
loudly goading Dave to “BE A MAN" and to go back into the mecting, despite repeatedly
being told, no by Dave Campbell. Mr. Turnbough’s commotion in the lobby against
Dave was so disruptive, Dawn Campbell went into the lobby in an attempt to deescalate.
You had a chance to stand up against the harassment caused by a mayor and police chief.

Arkansas Code, Section 5-71-208 (a) (4) under “Harassment” states: “A person commits
the offense of harassment if, with purpose to harass, annoy, or alarm another person,
without good cause, he or she: In a public place repeatedly insults, taunts, or challenges
another person in a manner likely to provoke a violent or disorderly response.”

Apparently, Mr. Turnbough’s gross, pimp-like harassment against us and Mr. Bush’s
defamatory harassment was to harass, annoy and alarm us in order to provoke a violent or
disorderly response in order to make a “colar of law"” arrest, which the city officials
lacked good cause to do. Now that we have learned Ul mignnBUSENP terrifying story,
we feel confident the City of Mammoth Spring officials intend to goad us into an arrest,
under the “color of law.” We believe each witness acting cowardly is in on the plot.

We believe you had a duty to stand up to the corruption you witnessed on 04/01/24 and
because you’ve failed to take a stand against evil and appear to be abetting evil, we
hereby request your immediate resignation.

If one does not stand for right, they are enablers of wrong. We also request you to
immediately resign due to the terribly awful 77-year-old S SSpwBarrcst and due to
being brothers-in-law with Councilman Adam Davis.

Please See the enclosed terrifying three-part exhibit for {mmmuiile complaint.
Lastly, we rebuke your fraud/harassment in alleging you were cussed out by one of us.
Respectfully,

W

[ San Q l%,lZLﬂ,Q,O
wn Campbe

Cc: MoArkNews.com
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City of Mammoth Spring

or 325 MAIN ST. COUNCIL MEMBERS:

RECORDER / TREASURER MAMMOTH SPRING, ARKANSAS 72554 R:AB:;YB;':,:T
PHONE: (870) 625-3518

DEWAYNE PLUMLEE

CITY ATTORNEY FAX: (870) 625-7566

E-mail: cityofmammothspring@gmail.com

included is the invoice for pulling video footage from the Mammoth Spring council
meeting on June 10, 2024. Upon receipt of payment, the flash drive will be
forwarded. Payment may be dropped off at City Hall or mailed to 160 N. 1"
Street, Mammoth Spring, AR 72554

Thank You

Defendants
Exh:bid
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: E“and nng INVOICE #6756
Baghel INVO!CE DATE Jun 24, 2024
GUARDDOG SECURITY PAYMENT TERMS On date
DUE DATE Jul 06, 2024 |
AMOUNT DUE $130.38
MAMMOTH SPRING CITY HALL

160 N. 1ST STREET
MAMMOTH SPRING, AR 72554

Fen:bfdé'
De Exh:b\+7

t_ (870) 625-3518 CONTACT US

&3 CITYOFMAMMOTHSPRING@GMAIL.COM MAILING ADDRESS: P.O. Box 34
ASH FLAT, AR 72513

X, (870) 266-3420

S

INVOICE

Pal

SERVICE CALL & LABOR TO DOWNLOAD FOOTAGE OF 6/10

UPPORT@GUARDDOGSECURITY.NET

128GB FLASH DRIVE
Subtotal $117.99
Total Tax $12.39

AR-Fulton-Mammoth

Spring (10.5%) $12.39
Job Total $130.38
Amount Due $130.38

REGULATED BY: Dep. of Arkansas State Police . er

GUARDDOG SECURITY CMPY.0001455 hitp://www.guarddogsecurity.net
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Dave / Dawn Campbell D@‘C@ H&Qn tg |

PO Box 13 E b bt
Mammoth Spring, AR 72554-0013

§70-907-0572 . &
Blues24 ail.co

September 15, 2023 REF: Staffordshire terrier Attack with Owner

Mammoth Spring City Hall
Mammoth Spring Police Department
100 Main Street

Mammoth Spring, AR 72554
870-625-3518

Good Moming: ™

We are filing a formal complaint against a man and his dog, who we believe reside at 355 Bethel Street.
We believe the dog Is a Staffordshire Terrier. On September 14, 2023, approximately between 9:00 and
10:00 a.m., we were walking home via the alley behind our home from the doctor’s office when a
Staffordshire Terrier, with blood in his eyes, charged into the alleyway at us obviously intending harm.
With only seconds to react Dave connected with a kick to the canine’s lower jaw, as the dog was about
to bite, causing the dog to velp and run the other direction. The apparent owner was right behind the
canine also with malice in his eyes verbally threatening us for kicking his uncontained and outlawed
Staffordshire Terrier.

We were busy yesterday and could notreponefﬁdenﬂy.Wetookﬂ\eﬂmelastnlditmleamofﬂ\e
destructive and outlawed character of this PIT BULL breed. The Staffordshire Terrier breed is illegal in
Mammoth Spring and we expect the canine to be picked up and banished from the city limits of
Mammoth Spring as required by Ordinance 6.04.19, titled vicious dogs, other animals.

Fortunately, we were the ones the canine attacked. On a follow-up walk we witnessed an elderly man
walkinghisllttlepupbvthearwashandcﬂngedatﬂueprospectln]nﬁeshadmeymmeddownthe
alley, or the Staffordshire caught wind of these passersby. Our elderly neighbor talks of watking
downtown and It terrifies us she could be attacked by this pit bull dog. When one walks by the yard of
theoutlmdanlnetheyareoblwbuswd\estarkdamerthatlurb.Weannotdlsﬂmlshﬁ\emm
ofthepalrameammanlmmmsmmwmmuemakwmhisanhewm\
threats of *kicking our ass’. No fence. No containment. No 4’ leash. No control with voice. The man did
not attempt to dissuade his dog from attacking us. We will be prepared next time we decide to walk

mem&nwwmmmmmnmmmwmm@mmm.
@QOJ’& u .
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| @ Dan Grant 5/13/24
To: Dave Campbell >

Re: Sign on main St.

Hey, sorry to hear about all of
your troubles.

June and | both had DR
appointments at 3PM in
Forsyth, Mo. Apr 1. We were not
only out of town but out of the
state.

| DON'T know why Ms, Mayor
put Junes name on the minutes.
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Jody Shackelford is with Crystal

Shackelford.
Dec 15,2023 - @

facebook.com
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About Lauren Siebert ...
Lauren is a an award-winning journalist who Q Search...
decided after 10 years of newspaper

experience to venture out. Hallmark Times was

born. Archives
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SMTWTEFS

123456
7 8 9 10111213
141516 17 18 19 20
21 222324 2526 27
282930 31

] EXHIBIT 12



Home Community Lifestyles Entertainment Events

W

It matters to us, too...

< Previous Next >

Archive Arcade

DcCcndarH"S
Exhib; +
| 2

Search

A- Q Search...

Archives

Select Month v

Calendar

July 2024
SMTWTFS
123456

7 8 9 10111213
141516 17 1819 20
21 222324252627
28293031

EXHIBIT 12



Home Community Lifestyles Entertainment Events Archive Arcade

Categories

Select Category v

De?@r\daﬂ*‘ﬂ»'
F xh bt
Ve

Turn the Tide:
Reversing
Prediabetes

Prediabetes might be weighin’ on your mind, but there's no

[..]

By Crystal Shackelford, APRN | July 25, 2024 | Community,
Health & Fitness | Comments Off
Read More
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Search

Lauren is a an award-winning journalist who decided after 10 years of nawspaper experience o Q Search..
venture out. Halimark Times was bom. :

Archives

Select Month

| Turning the Tide:
Reversing Prediabetes

Aiah.

Pr tes might be weighin’ on your mind, but there's no [..]

Calendar

July 2024
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The foregoing Screenshot was taken from the following website on 07/26/24:

https://hallmarktimes.com/auﬁtor/lauren—siebert/
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Dawn Campbell

~ lissa Rogers, a long-standing employee of the City of
mmoth Spring, has initiated legal action against David
C'émpbell and Dawn Campbell for defamation. This lawsuit
was filed to address the impact of a public message
displayed on the defendants’ property.
According to the complaint, on June 18, 2024, a defamatory
message concerning Mrs. Rogers was displayed on a sign
owned by the Campbells. The message has reportedly
caused significant distress and disruption to Mrs. Rogers and
her family. Mrs. Rogers, her husband, and their three
children have faced numerous texts and phone calls,
significantly impacting their personal lives.
The lawsuit seeks damages for the alleged defamation and
requests an injunction to prevent further defamatory
statements. Mrs. Rogers' attorneys, John T. McGinnes and
Jody Shackelford of The Iron Rock Law Firm, emphasize that
this action is taken by Mrs. Rogers in her individual capacity
to protect her personal and professional reputation.
In a related development, the Police Chief has also filed an
injunction and defamation suit against the Campbells in his
individual capacity. This action is in response to defamatory
statements displayed on the Campbells’ sign that allegedly
go beyond free speech and constitute defamation.
Mrs. Rogers has expressed her concerns for her family’s
well-being and safety. The defamatory message has caused
her to consider taking unpaid leave or requesting a work-
from-home arrangement due to the emotional and mental
strain. The disruption has not only affected her personal life
but also her professional duties at City Hall, where she has

P

Archive Arcade
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13

EXHIBIT 13



Home Community Lifestyles Entertainment Events Archive Arcade

Lauren is a an award-winning
journalist who decided after 10 years

of newspaper experience to venture
out. Hallmark Times was born.

‘Dcpem)ard-sl
Exh.b*
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By Lauren Siebert | July 18, 2024 | Featured | Comments Off

Share This Story, .
Choose Your f X ¢ in ® 4

t P w =
Platform!

About the Author: Lauren Siebert

Lauren is a an award-winning journalist who
decided after 10 years of newspaper experience
to venture out. Hallmark Times was born.

Related Posts
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KSAR 7/19/24
Verbatim words read by Siebert on 7/19/24and posted on station’s website:

TWO INJUNCTIONS HAVE BEEN FILED AGAINST MAMMOTH SPRING
RESIDENTS DAWN AND DAVID CAMPBELL AFTER THE COUPLE ERECTED A
SIGN ON THEIR PROPERTY ON MAIN STREET AND DISPLAYED SUGGESTIVE
MESSAGES ON IT.ACCORDING TO THE DOCUMENTS FILED IN FULTON
COUNTY JULY 16. THE INJUNCTIONS, FILED BY IRON ROCK LAW FIRM ON
BEHALF OF MAMMOTH SPRING POLICE CHIEF JAMES TURNBOUGH AND
MELISSA ROGERS, THE DEPUTY RECORDER/TREASURER AND ASSISTANT
TO THE MAYOR FOR THE CITY OF MAMMOTH SPRING, STATED THE
CAMPBELL’S HAD USED THEIR SIGNAGE TO WRITE AND DISPLAY
DEFAMATORY MESSAGES AGAINST BOTH ROGERS AND TURNBOUGH.
ONJULY 18, ROGERS BEGAN RECEIVING A SLEW OF PHONE CALLS AND
TEXT MESSAGES REGARDING A MESSAGE DISPLAYED ON THE
CAMPBELL’S WHICH READ “CITY HALL LET JAMIE PIMP ON MY WIFE IN 4/1
OPEN MEETING. WHAT’S HE ‘DONE’ WITH MELISSA?!”. THE INJUNCTION
FILED ON BEHALF OF ROGERS NOTED THE CONTINUED DISPLAY OF
DEFAMATORY MESSAGES HAS CAUSED SUBSTANTIAL DISRUPTION TO THE
LIVES OF HERSELF AND HER FAMILY, INCLUDING HER 18-YEAR-OLD SON
WHO ALSO WORKS FOR THE CITY OF MAMMOTH SPRING AS A
TEMPORARY SUMMER EMPLOYEE. IN THE INJUNCTION FILED ON BEHALF
OF TURNBOUGH, FOLLOWING AN INCIDENT AT THE APRIL 1 CITY COUNCIL
MEETING, “THE DEFENDANTS BEGAN A CAMPAIGN OF DEFAMATION
AGAINST PLAINTIFF, FALSELY ACCUSING HIM OF VARIOUS IMMORAL
ACTIVITIES INCLUDING BEING A PIMP AND AN ADULTERER.” ON JUNE 18,
TURNBOUGH ALSO BEGAN TO RECEIVE MULTIPLE PHONE CALLS AND
TEXT MESSAGES REGARDING THE SUGGESTIVELY ACCUSATORY
MESSAGE POSTED ON THE SIGN. THE INJUNCTIONS SEEK DAMAGES AND
TO PREVENT THE CAMPBELLS FROM POSTING ANY FURTHER
DEFAMATORY MESSAGES ON THEIR SIGN.NO COURT DATE HAS YET BEEN
SET.
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a sign on their property on Main Street and displayed
suggestive messages on it.
According to the documents filed in Fulton County July 16,
~*-1 injunctions, filed by iron Rock Law Firm on behalf of
immoth Spring Police Chief James Turnbough and Melissa
Roéers, the deputy recorder/treasurer and assistant to the
mayor for the City of Mammoth Spring, stated the Campbell’s
had used their signage to write and display defamatory
messages against both Rogers and Turnbough.
On July 18, Rogers began receiving a slew of phone calls and
text messages regarding a message displayed on the
Campbeil’s which read “City Hall let Jamie pimp on my wife in
4/1 open meeting. What's he ‘Done’ with Melissa?!”.
The injunction filed on behalf of Rogers noted the continued
display of defamatory messages has caused substantial
disruption to the lives of herself and her family, including her
18-year-old son who also works for the City of Mammoth
Spring as a temporary summer employee.
In the injunction filed on behalf of Turnbough, following an
incident at the April 1 city council meeting, “the Defendants
began a campaign of defamation against Plaintiff, falsely
accusing him of various immoral activities including being a
pimp and an adulterer.”
On June 18, Turnbough also began to receive muitiple phone
calls and text messages regarding the suggestively
accusatory message posted on the sign.
The injunctions seek damages and to prevent the Campbells
from posting any further defamatory messages on their sign.
No court date has yet been set.
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sign.
In response to the injunction filings, the Campbelis have
posted a new sign stating, "4/1 & 6/10 City Hall is now in
~=4rt. Counter claim will now reveal the truth! 4/1 & 6/10
'_eos!” The City of Mammoth Spring Mayor’s Office has
clarified that no city funds have been used for the lawsuits
and that the city is not a party to either the lawsuits or the
injunctions.

These cases highlight the importance of addressing the
impacts of public statements on individuals’ lives and
reputations.

For more information, please contact John T. McGinnes at
(870) 399-1440 or john@goironrock.com.

Prior to the press release, this news agency covered the
story, click the link to read the initial article:
https://hallmarktimes.com/injunctions-filed-in-fulton-county-
to-stop-defamatory-messages-posted-on-main-street-sign/

News Release

By News Release | July 25, 2024 | Featured | Comments Off
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eaturedArticles

Melissa Rogers and Pelice Chief Turnbough
File Defamation Lawsuits Against David and
Dawn Campbell

By News Release | July 25, 2024

Melissa Rogers, a long-standing employee of the City of Mammoth Spring, has initiated
legal action against David Campbell and Dawn Campbell for defamation. This lawsuit
was filed to address the impact of a public message [..]

WRH CEO Resigns, interim Announced

By News Release | July 25, 2024

White River Health (WRH) President and CEO Gary Paxson
announced his resignation from the organization to pursue another

career opportunity. Paxson, who has served as the CEO since
2018, will leave the organization iater next [...]

The CALL, helping foster children in Sharp
County

By Lauren Slebert | Juty 18, 2024

One organization new to Sharp County Is working to improve the
tives of children in the foster system and to recruit more foster homes to heip kaep
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09 MOVIE,

GROUP

YOU DON'T HAVE TO GRIEVE
ALONE. THESE MEETINGS
TAKE PLACE AT THE SFA
FELLOWSHIP HALL, SALEM
FIRST ASSEMBLY, 118 PINTO
PLACE, SALEM, AR EACH
MONDAY AT 6 P.M.

BILLIARDS, AND
SENIOR
COMMODITY
BOXES AT THE
IZARD COUNTY
SENIOR CENTER

BILLIARDS AND MOVIE
BEGIN AT 9 A.M. SENIOR
COMMODITY BOXES
AVAILABLE TO IZARD
COUNTY RESIDENTS OVER
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By News Reiease | July 25, 2024

Melissa Rogers, a long-standing
etnployée of the City of Mammoth Spring,
5 initiated legal action against David

_ mpbell and Dawn Campbell for
" defamation. This lawsuit was filed to

address the impact of a public message
{..]

Human
remains found
investigation
underway in
Cherokee

Viilage
By Lauren Siebert | July 10, 2024

The Cherokee Village Police Department
and Arkansas State Police are
Investigating an incident in Cherokee
Village where a body was found.
According to authorities, on July 8 they
were notified of the discovery of [...]

ARDOT
announces
highway
improvement

Arg
plans

By Lauren Siebert | July 8, 2024

The Arkansas Department of
Transportation (ARDOT) released its
Statewide Transportation improvement
Program (STIP) for 2025-2028 Federal
Fiscal Years, here is a fist of projects
scheduled to take place in the tri-county
area. FULTON COUNTY - Work [...}

Lifestyles
dreet sign
By Lauren Slebert | July 18, 2024

Entertainment Events

Two injunctions have been filed against
Mammoth Spring résidents Dawn and
David Campbell after the couple erected
a sign on their property on Main Street
and displayed suggestive messages on it.
According to the documents [...]

Sharp County
Fair opens
today offering
new
attractions,
improvements and options
for the public

By Lauren Slebert | July 9, 2024

The 2024 Sharp County Fair opens today
and runs thought July 13 at the Sharp
County Fairgrounds. Sharp County Fair
Board Member Andrea Vogt said the
board has worked hard preparing for this
year's fair, [...}

independence Day events
2024

By Lauren Siebert | June 26, 2024

Community’s around the nation are
preparing to celebrate Independence Day,
July 4. Here is a list of local events. The
19th annual Celebrate Freedom event will
be held July 3 in the Cave City park [...]
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| Ihjunctiohs filed in Fulton County to' stob
defamatory messages posted on Main Street
sign

By Lauren Siebert | July 18, 2024

Home Entertainment

o injunctions have been filed against Mammoth Spring residents Dawn and David
‘Campbell after the couple erected a sign on their property on Main Street and displayed
suggestive messages on it. According to the documents .1

Fuiton County Quorum Court hears disaster
update

By Lauren Siebert | July 18, 2024

The Fulton County Quorum Court meet in reqular session Tuesday
hearing an update from Office of Emergency Management Director Jeremy Langston.
Following the passage of minutes and the treasurer’s report, Langston reported as of

July [...}
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" LIMITATIONS. PLEASE BRING
1SSUED GOVERNMENT 1D.
FOR MORE INFO, CALL (870)
368-6011. LOTS GOING ON!
rAUGUST
02 BACK TO SCHOOL
e BASH EVENT

THE BACK TO SCHOOL BASH
IS SET TO BE A TIME OF FUN
AND CONSTRUCTIVE
ACTIVITY AUGUST 2 FROM 4-
8 P.M. AT SCHEEL FAMILY
PRACTICE AND LET'S TOX
ABOUT IT MED SPA 1932
HWY 62/412 HIGHLAND, AR

03 UNDERWOOD
we  BRANCH EVENT

UNDERWOOD BRANCH
EVENT VOLLEYBALL
TOURNAMENT, FOOD, AND
FUN AT THE HARDY GYM,
HARDY, AR. CLICK "LEARN
MORE" LINK BELOW OR
CALL/TEXT 870-291-4880
FOR MORE INFORMATION.

rime Articles

Stolen
property and
drugs found
after reported residential
glary and theft

By News Release | July 22, 2024

On July 16, 2024 Deputy D.J. Tiernan
ook a burglary, theft, and criminal
ischief report at a residence in Scenic
cres in Horseshoe Bend. The victim
ktated he had been out of town for a [..]

Man arrested
after placing
illicit fentanyl
into hospital
patient's IV

By Lauren Siebert | July 12, 2024

man is facing charges in Fulton County
after introducing Fentanyl into his wife's
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INTHE CIRCUIT COURT OF FULTON COUNTY, ARKANSAS 2 :22p1s

PROBATE DIVISION
In the Matter of:
Betty Dunn BSTATENO.25PR .3 4~7(,
Respondent.

STATE OF ARKANSAS )

) ss.
COUNTYOF ﬁ) oN )

I,Pauleﬁnan,MD.,beingﬁrstchﬁyswom,deposemduy:

1.1 practicing physician licensed by Q;gw:a (name
of state) a:::medioal doctorfsandspecializein i e i .
(family medicine, etc.). ‘ '

2. 0ndue __7[10° , 20241 completed a physical and
meﬂﬁmof%mmimatmemof
Lo Atrd Aes (family membez, interested party, etc.)

3.Asaresnhofsaidmmination,itismypmfessiona10pinionasa
Mmgphydmﬁcmeduamedieddom,mmesaidraﬁmls,by
rmmofndvanoedage,physicalincapacity,ormulwm,hmpable
of managing her own physical care.

(Rl Kan), ans
Paul Kauffman, M-,

Exhibit |
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3 Salem Family Clinic A
Name: Dunn _DOB:7/ 4oy  Date; v.u.24
i Blood'Pressure: Pulse; Weight: Height:5'7" |
, |Allergies: o g 0y __Temp: |
<| Chief Complaint: Hm,
Last Mammogram/PSA: | '
Last Colorectal Cancer Screening:  fw. e X Land .
| Last Colonoscopy: ﬁ: . wenr  Lrmewnodl
Last HgA1C and resuits: L " L[__._
Current Meds: o e AT

i
E
Ff
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EMS Agency Hame: Fulton County Hospital EMS EMS inddent M-502 Notified 07/16/2024
Number: Date/Time: 10:16:00

Destination:
EMS Responise 202407171329 EMS Unit Call 2102

Number: § Sion:

FultonCounty |

B S

Hospital===— EMS Pre-Hospltal Care Report

Patient Name: Dunn, Betty Age: @ Years vos: GHpHP
Address: R Bethel Ave Gender: Female

Mammoth Spring, AR 72554

Comptaint and Impressions

Provider Primary impression: Other general
symptoms and

signs

Complaint Well Person
Repotted by Check

”
Narrative: 07/17/2024 the Fulton County Hospital EMS service reported on incident M-502, call number
2024071713299. The incident occurrente was at the Residence - Single Family Home located at
address @i Bethel Ave in the city of Mammoth Spiing within the county of Fulton of the state of AR.

PSAP received the call at Not Recorded. The unit was notified at 10:16, responded at 10:17, arrived at
the scene at 10:18, left the scene at 10:49 and completed the call at 10:49,

The EMS Crew consisted of Mask, Matthew who was the Driver/Pilot-Response, Othes Patient
Caregiver-At Scene and FOWLER, RANDY who was the Primary Patient Caregiver-At 'Scene.

The Agency unit number used was 80048, The Use of ights and sirens to the scene was Emecgent
(immediate Response}.

The type of service was 3 911 Response {Scene).

e delivery of care were None/No Delay . Factors affecting dispatch were None/No

fFactors affecting th
ffecting turnaround were None/No

Delay . Factors affecting scene were None/No Delay , Factors a

Delay.

After arriving at the scene the unit Found a patient named Betty Dunn. The patient’s approximate age

was 86 years, The patient's chief complaint was No Complaint See Narrrative, The provider's inpression
oms and signs. The use of alcohol and drugs was None Reported.

was Other general sympt
Glucase Check - Blood was performed successfully after 1 attempt at 10;33:00 by crewmember
FOWLER, RANDY. The pallent’s response was unchanged. Pulse oximetry was performed successfully

after 1 attempt at 10:33:00 by crewmember Mask, Matthew. The patient’s response was tnchanged.
patient Assessment was performed successfully after 1 attempt at 10:18:00 by crewmember FOWLER,
RANDY. The patient's response was Unchanged.

Vitals were taken at 10:33:00. The pulse rate wasqp: The respiratory rate was i Blood pressure was
asik GCS was J(Eye =@} Opens Eyes spontaneously (all Age Groups), Verbal = #5
- Oriented >2 Years); Smites, oriented to sounds, follows objects, interacts, Motor= 46 - Obeys
commands (>2Years); Appropriate response to stimulation).
1

Patient Naraw: Dmn,BIEYXHIBIT 17
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EMS Agency Name: Fultan County Hospitai EMS EMS inddent M-502 Notified 07/16/2024
Number: DatefVime: 10:16:00
Destination:

EMS Response 2024D717132%  EMSUnitCatt 2102
Number: 9 Sign:

Upon our arrival to the scene we are met by a gentleman who reports his mother needs a mental
evaluation and he has power of attorney.

patient is found standing at the back door and is noted to be CARO x 3 and able to report there is
nothing wrong with her and her sons are wanting to put her ina Nursing Home and take her hause.
Further primary and secondary assessment neg to obvious for complaint or obvious abnormalities
noted at the present time.

ALS Assessment/Tx/Vital Sign as reported in their sections.

Patient's son continued to report patient needs to be transported to the Hospital and he has Power Of
Attormey and he produces paperwork but it's not Power Of Attomney but shows Power Of Attorney
was revoked by patient and signed by patient and a Notory Public several years ago.

This information is relayed to patient’s son and he was advised that we couldn't legally transport patient
against her wishes and she Is consclous alert and oriented and has answered all of my questions
appropriately and her Vital Signs and BGL are all within normal timits and he would have to contact
patient's PCP and go through the legal system.

Patient asked if there was any reason she needs or wanted to go to the Hospital and she again reports
no and she is staying here in her house.

AMA Form explained and signed by patient and we returned to service.

Randy Fowler NREMT-P # 11349,

Response Times and Mileage 7

PSAP/911: Not
Recorded

Disp. Notified: 07/16/2024 Scene Odom: O
10:16:00

Unit Dispatched: 07/16/2024
10:16:00

Enroute: 07/16/2024
10:17:00

At Scene: 07/16/2024
10:1B:00

At Patient: 07/16/2024
10:18:00

Depart Scene: 07/16/2024
10:49:00

inService: 07/16/2024
10:49:00

Past Medical History
Medication Allergi

Medication Allergies
No Known Drug Allergy

Medical History: Ssetatnni@Rns
Medical History Patient

Obtained From:
patient Condition
Complaint Type Complaint Duration
Chief (Primary) No Complaint See Nartrrative
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EMS Ageincy Name: Fulton County Hospitat EMS

Oestination:

Alcohol/Drug Use: None Reported

SR OREWTLIIEY T SRR ey e
i 3{ e 52 e RPN &

EMS inddent M-507 Merifted 07/1672024
Number;

DatafThwe: 10:16:00

EMS Response 202407171329 EMS Ustt Call 2102
‘Mumber: 9 Sigw:

Procedures
Size of
Time  Crew Name Locstion Equipment  Attempts Response  Success
10:33:00 Mask, Matthew  Pulse oximetry 1 Unchange  Yes
d
103300 FOWLER, Glucose Check - 1 Unchange  Yes
RANDY Blood d
1018:00 FOWLER, Patient Assessment 1 Unchange  Yes
RANDY d
Yitals
Time 8¢ Lmb  Pube Rhythm Resp Effort $p02 Qual COZ GCS Pain StrokeScale PTA RS Pr.Pusition
123300 NN Lot Arv GBI a ‘tomigh o Hegatwe No @i
[rls-]
Tine  Eye  Motor Varbal Score Qualifier
10:33:00 +4-OpensEyes  +6-Obeys commands +8 «Oriented (>2 Years); initial GCS has legitimate values
spontaneously {»2Ypars); Approptiste Smiles, oriented to sounds,  without mterventions suchas
{All Age Groups)  responsetostimulation  follows abjects, interacts intuhation and sedation

‘ Call Type/Lacation/Disposition

Cali Type: wWell Person Chack

Resp. Made: Emergent (immediate Response)
Urgency: tmmediate

Respunse: 911 Response {Scene)

Location: Residence- Single Family Home
Incident Address:

Crew Member
FOWLER, RARDY
Mask, Matthew

Exhibit§/7

A Sethet Ave
Mammath Spring, AR 72554

tevel of Certification
Paramedic
EMT

Response Delay: None/No Detay

Role
Primary Patient Caregiver-At Sceng

Drver/Piot-Response ; Other Patient Caregiver-At Scene

patient Name: Dunn, Belly
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Fulton County Hospital EMS Charge Sheet

Patient Nome: ﬁ/?;y D)f?/) Date:

Run Number: #7225~ 2

2 (LY

Charge Code Ttanspor
0 180000 | BLS- Non Emergency
o 180001 | BLS-Emergency
O 180002 _ALS-1 Non Emergency
l Q 180003 ALS-} Emergency
. 180004 _ALS-2 Emergency
‘1 AD?P9%
3

Ambulance Transport 1o Helicopter

18081 | No Tronsport

Mieoge:
{1 storting Mieage:
[0 Ending Mieage:
{3 Total Patient Loaded Mileage:

[0 By-Pass Mileage:

{1 pick up zip Code:

Notes:

Exhibitg Lz

Ambulance Origination Modifier

Transport From:
O Residence
{1 Hospitat
O skilled Nursing Facility {nursing home)
[ Physicians office
[0 scene of Accident
0 Other

Transport To:
[0 Residence
O Hospitol
[J skiled Nursing Facility {nursing home)
O Physicians office
{1 Other

Emergency Room/Accepting Physician:
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RUN: /7 '%?
DATE: 7’/6'2 o/ Fulton County Hospital
EMS Refusal of Care/ Transport Form

Patient Name:M __Q)M oos:_/ 5‘?’5 7 Aﬁfi_zé._
Patient Address: .2 yj 2 / Phone #:
cimmmgr; State: L 2p_ 255y

SSH: or DL#
Assessment
Oriented To: Yes No ' d. Sitvation & i
3. Person , I ¢. Altered level of consciousness -
b. Place - . f. Head injury =
¢. Time Z - g. Alcohol / Drugsonexam e
i i —— ————" -
Patient Advised of Following: Disposition:
_Z Medical treatment / evaluation recommended __K@l:u refused all EMS services / Care /
bulance transport recommended Transport
Further harm could result without medical Refused transport, accepted field treatment
treatment or evaluation . Released to cative{ friend
_’,_( Transporl by means Biher than ambulance Released in custody of law enforcement
could be hazardous in light of present iliness/injury Agency
" With refusal of care/transport should patient
have further problems immediately call 811 or seek
medical attention as soon as possible
S 3 -
Vitals: Times: Mileage:
Time Dispatched _2 < Odo z._
B/P Enroute ——— :
Pulce On Scene
In Service

BPM

ormed of the risks involved, and hereby release

This is to certify that | am refusing treatmenl / transport. Lhave been inf
hich may result from my decision/action.

the ambulapce service, its attendants, and its afflliates, from all responsibility w

' mDate/Time’
wolo- P By
Date/Time
EMS cres’u‘m ' : i ' Date/Yime
> EXHIBIT 17
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k —)» weB Jul 8,2024 Melissa Rogers and Police Chief Tumbough File Defamation Lawsuits Against
David and Dawn Campbell. By News Release | July 25, 2024. Melissa Rogers, a long ...
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_ - ~,ovie, billiards, and Senior
Commoaity boxes at the Izard County ...

Arcade

Arcade. Pull Pins. The tricky puzzle classic
features unlimited levels with unlimited ...

Child Speaks Out

A Sharp County man is facing 10 counts of
sexual assault in the second degree, a ...

~ Hallmark Times
‘ 9 - Breakfast & Brunch restaurant
1243 US-62, Highland, AR 72542

L e B
BT

halimarktimes.com
L\ & https:/halimarktimes.com/time ~

Time - Hallmark Times

Love
Love. There is no better chapter in God's
Word to describe love than 1 Corinthians ..

Wine Glass Craft

by Kari Hollis Here's a really easy, fun craft! |
took an empty wine bottle and filled with ...

Chocolate Zucchini Cake
% cup margarine % cup salad oil 1 3/4 cups
sugar Cream the first three ingredients. ..

Victim Identified

The victim that was inside the vehicle that
was found in the White River on February ...

How to Spice It up on Your O...
For those lucky enough to plan meals ahead
of time, | applaud you, but for myself, | ..

® o

WEBSITE  DIRECTIONS

weB Dec 5, 2021 - The truth is what we need to do is leam to manage our time better. We need to
take out all the distractions from our life and only concentrate on the important thing. We ..
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Lifestyles - Hallmark Times

wes Jul 8, 2024 - The 4th of July is a time for some good ol' American spirit, with everything from
mouthwaterin' barbecues to spectacular fireworks shows. But amidst all the joy and ...

Fxhihit
19

EXHIBIT 19



KSAR 7/19/24

% From Campbeli@i.oveJesus.com <Campbeli@ilovejesus.com>
5 To Dave Campbell <blues24seven@ymail.com>
Dete 20240814 18:28

KSAR 7/19/24
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Betty K. Dunn
435 Bethel AVE
Mammoth Spg, AR 72554

August 5, 2024
Benjamin R. Burnett, P.A.
Attorney At Law
401 E 6™ ST
Mountain Home, AR 72653

Dear Mr. Burnett:
You are notified of the following:

| reserved a life estate for and during my natural life for 435 Bethel Avenue in
Mammoth Spring, Arkansas, with remainder to Gary and Randy Dunn upon my death.
Please send me a copy of the addendum to the deed to 435 Bethel Ave.

You, Gary Dunn, Brenda Dunn, Randy Dunn and each of their offspring are placed

on notice; each person is strictly prohibited from entering onto the above-described real
estate for any purpose.

Gary Dunn, Brenda Dunn and Randy Dunn trespassed onto my property on July
16, 2024 and harassed me and my neighbors, who provide transportation and
friendship. My neighbors are welcome to my property. While | am alive, you have no
business ordering anyone around when it concerns 435 Bethel Avenue in Mammoth
Spring Arkansas. | believe you owe Dave and Dawn Campbell an apology. Randy Dunn
trespassed on 10/27/23, 10/30/23 and 07/16/24. Gary and Brenda Dunn trespassed on
07/16/24. | am very upset at Brenda Dunn for driving recklessly through my front yard
and flowers on 07/16/24, which is recorded.

Please direct Randy Dunn, Gary Dunn and Brenda Dunn to cease their harassment
against me and my neighbors immediately and do not step foot on 435 Bethel Avenue in
Mammoth Spring, Arkansas while | am here. They and theirs are trespassed!

Sincerely,

-_./j.) :Jﬁﬁ K "‘;,\’ v
1
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8/4/24, 9:04 AM List iInmates

Fulton County Sheriffs
Office

Jail Roster

inmates Released in Last 48 Hours
3 inmates shown out of 3 total

Google Play and the Google Piay logo are
trademarks of Google LLC.

Current inmates New Inmates ‘ Recent Releases

-~
Sort By : Name v Select Name :  Barlow, James C v  Select Pagesize: 10v ‘o< >
oty , K - i
i >>{
Rk |

Barfow, James C

W/M/ 36 years
Ash Flat, AR

Arrested: 7/10/2024 2:25:00 PM
Released: 8/2/2024 4:18:00 PM

Campbeli, Dave
W /M/68 years

Arrested: 8/2/2024 8:22:00 PM
Released: 8/2/2024 9:26:00 PM

W/F/33 years
Wiliiford, AR

Arrested: B/2/2024 4:57:00 PM
Released: 8/2/2024 6:11:00 PM

POSSESSION OF A CONTROLLE SUBSTANCE METH. OR COCAINE
- FELONY

By: Nams v SelectMame: Barlow JamesC v SelectPagesis: 10v  [k<] [<][=

Defendants’
Exi b, +
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(space above reserved for Recorder of Deeds certification)

This instrument prepared by Harvey S. Allen, Attorney at Law, 221 Chestnut, Thayer, Missouri 65791

WARRANTY DEED
(Unmarried person)
Know All Men by These Presents:

THAT |, Betty K. Dunn, a single person, widow and survivor of a tenancy by the entireties with
Charles L. Dunn who died 12/7/08, GRANTOR, for and in consideration of the sum of Ten and no/100
Dollars ($10.00) and other valuable considerations, in hand paid by Gary Lee Dunn and Randy Dunn, as
tenants in common, GRANTEES, the receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, hereby grant, bargain,
sell and convey unto the said GRANTEES, and unto their heirs and assigns forever, the following lands
lying in Fulton County, Arkansas:

Lots 15 and 16 in Block 13 in the Town of Mammoth Spring, Arkansas.
Subject to public roads and easements as located thereon, if any.

(GRANTOR, Betly K. Dunn, reserves a life estate for and during her natural life, with
remainder to GRANTEES, without impeachment of waste.)

To have and to hold the same unto the said GRANTEES and unto their heirs and assigns forever,
with all appurtenances thereunto belonging. And | hereby covenant with said GRANTEES that | will
forever warrant and defend the title to the said lands against all claims whatever.

WITNESS my hand and seal on this / t2 day of June, 2009,

Bt K Den——

Betty K. Dunn Q
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STATE OF MISSOURI )
. )ss
COUNTY OF OREGON )

BE {T REMEMBERED, That on this day came before me, the undersigned, a Notary Public,
within and for the county aforesaid, duly commissioned and acting Betty K. Dunn, a single person, to
me well known as the GRANTOR in the foregoing deed, and acknowledged that she had executed the
same for the consideration and purposes therein mentioned and set forth.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal at my office

this VS ™ day of June, 2009. .
— .
\. \ﬁ\w
Notary Public

My Commission Expires:
)12 /20V>

| certify that the above transfer is exempt from documentary stamps as provided forin ACA

26-60-102.
. 2L L

Grantee <°

Mailing Address of Grantee:

oy Couzs Ponl & 55O

CJeosT— Fhin, 2o £S5I75
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Source = hﬂ*ps’//wwwl éalzoom COM/thc]es/
what-is-a- i es+q+e—

Wkalimnmd?

Ahfeestntedeedlsmewayofu'ansfemngownershxpofrealpmpatythatoﬁ'e:samnnba
ofmplmngmivmges

Alifcesmtcdeedisalegaldocumentusedinrealesmtz:togmntowneishipofpropcnytoan
individual for the duration of their life. When that individual passes away, property
ownership automatically transfers to another person or entity of the original owner's

choosing. A life estate can ensure your property will transfer to your chosen recipients.

How does a life estate work?

A life estate is a type of holding where you divide ownership into two phases: a life estate
and a remainder. Asapropatyowner,youchangeﬂxeowncrshipsothatyouonlyholdﬂxc
property during your lifetime. This means nothing will be left of your interest to pass on to
someone else, such as through your will.

The second phase of ownership is the remainder. The person who owns the remainder takes
possession when the life tenant dies. They have an ownership interest during the life tenant's
lifetime but do not take possession until that person dies. An example would be where a
mother sets up her home, so she has a life estate with ber son having the remainder.

'I’hcpcrsonwhoownsthcrcalpmpuiy(inthiscxamplc, Mom) signs a deed that will pass
ﬂlcownashipoflhepropatymnomaﬁmﬂyuponhadwﬂltosomeomdsqknownasme
"remainderman” (in this example, Son). As part of the deed, Mom keeps what is called a life

estate,whichmcansshecanoonﬁmletoliveonanduseﬂlepmpenyforﬂlcrestofhetlife.

1
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Office: 870-232-0030 401 East 6 Stre
Office: 870-425-3010 Mountain Home, AR 726
Fax: 870-232-0031 office@bburnettlaw.co
ants
August 1, 2024 DCFC,”A \
s Exhibit
David and Dawn Campbell 25
440 Main Street
Mammoth Spring, AR 72554

RE: Cease and Desist/Trespass Notice

Mr. and Mrs. Campbell

Please be advised that I serve as legal counsel for Gary L. Dunn and Randy
Dunn, the owners of 435 Bethel Street, Mammoth Spring, Arkansas. Please find
the attached copy of the deed reflecting that they are the correct owners of this
property. Betty Dunn merely has a life estate for said property. Betty Dunn does
not have the authority to sell or alter the property in any fashion, as Gary Dunn and
Randy Dunn are the true and correct owners.

You are hereby placed on notice that you are not to enter onto the above-
described real estate for any purpose, as you are hereby trespassed. Should you
appear on said property, you will be arrested. You currently have misdemeanor
charges pending in the Fulton County District Court for your actions on July 16,
2024. If you should come onto the above-described property, Gary and Randy
Dunn will inform the Fulton County Sheriff Department and have you prosecuted
to the fullest extent of the law.

Please direct all future correspondence to this office, as the Dunn’s are tired
of your constant harassment.

Sincerely

Benjamin R. Bumett

EXHIBIT 25
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435 Bethel Ave. Incident Report  Randy Dunn Break-ln Documented by Dawn Campbell in Oct, 2023 \
(870)907-0572 TS

1027/23: Exhibit
2k

Today around 4:30 P.M. we saw a white car at Betty's house parked behind her

truck. We both went to the alley by our carport to walk the dog. The man and woman
waved to us while underneath Betty's carport. They then opened the door to Betty's cellar
to peer inside. The couple then stepped into Betty's back yard while looking at us, so I
stepped forward and asked if they knew how Betty was doing. The man introduced
himself as Betty's son and shook my hand. He said his mom is not doing well and would
be going into a nursing home. He stated Betty was diagnosed with dementia and
Alzheimer's many years ago. We told him Betty did not seem forgetful, only hard of
hearing. He said we did not know what Betty was like before she got Alzheimer's.

He stated he and his brother are the owners of Betty's house and tomorrow he has plans to
break off the door knobs and change the locks and put the house up for sale. He admitted
he had not seen his mom in five years, with exception to he and his brother visiting Betty
at the hospital today. He said she looked awful. I asked him if Betty acted kind toward
them and he said she had not cursed him out or called him any bad names. I informed
him how much Betty talks about him and his brother and actually seems consumed with
them and suggested he tell her he loves her to release her mind while she's going through
this. The woman accompanying him chimed in with a discussion about the importance of
forgiveness. He asked, "what if I don't forgive her?" He did not explain why he is
holding a grudge. He talked about Betty falling and told of an instance she fell in front of
her truck and crawled into the house and was soaking wet when he found her. He stated
Betty did not have the right to remove the central air unit and tree (which was

rotting). He alleged the person who received the a/c unit could face legal action for
possessing it. He alleged Betty had sold her truck to his brother for $300. He also said
Betty loved his older brother more than him. I told him Betty loves them both and talks
about both of them.

He said Betty would not be receiving anything from inside her home except for clothes
she would need in the nursing home. He said the house does not belong to Betty while
alleging she had voluntarily signed it over to them. Dave told him Betty was upset about
what had been done concerning her house. He said his older brother was going to give it
back to Betty, but he (Randy) would not sign the papers. He said she did not need the
house. Dave told him Betty had wished she could sell the house and buy something
smaller and easier to maintain. He replied that Betty was given $9,000.00 by his brother
Gary. Dave told him 9k is not very much money and that was many years ago.

HearguedwithusabouttherottentreeBettyhadremoved. He reiterated he would be
changing the locks and ordered us to stay off what he referred to as his property. I told
him it is sad he seems to love money more than his mom. We walked back to our house
while he was hollering about what sounded like an argument about his love for his
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435 Bethel Ave. Incident Report  Randy Dunn Break-in  Documented by Dawn Campbell in Oct, 2023
(870) 907-0572

mom. As I walked back to our house, the man who owns the car lot next door was
standing near the alleyway of 420 Main Street, as if witnessing the situation. DFTS’

10/29/23: F)ZJZ:) 1

We called the hospital this evening and spoke with Betty on the phone. She asked that
we please make sure her sons do not go inside her home.

10/30/23:

Yesterday evening Betty’s Grandson, Charles, and his wife Amanda visited us, because
Betty asked them to ask us to ask Chief Turnbough not to let either of her sons on her
property. They visited about an hour and said Betty was admitted to a regular room from
ICU on the evening of 10/28. I gave them a card we made for Betty with an Epoch
Times section about subdural hematomas to give to Betty, since they would likely see
Betty before we would. During this visit, Betty’s grandson stated his dad has the title to
Betty’s truck in a safe, after his aunt had removed the title from Betty’s house.

Today around 11:00 a.m., I went out back with the dogs and saw a vehicle parked behind
Betty’s truck. I hollered at Dave, I thought Randy was back. Dave quickly grabbed his
coat and went up to Betty’s. I heard Dave loudly yell, “HEY! WHAT ARE YOU
DOING, " as I was rounding up the dogs and grabbing a camera. Dave found Randy with
his backside hanging out of Betty’s window by her side door. Dave said Randy got down
from the house with the ladder he had brought and screamed at Dave to get off of his
property. Dave told him he wasn’t going anywhere and was actually ordering him to
leave. I got there about that time and saw Betty’s window open and a ladder leading up
to it. Dave told me Randy was breaking into Betty’s house. I went back down to our
house to get our wireless phone and brought it back to Dave. While Dave was calling the
Mammoth Spring Police Department, Randy ordered me off of what he referred to as his
property. I told him I was not leaving, because Betty had asked me to look after her place
to make sure neither of her sons entered her home. Randy asked me when I had last
talked to his mom and I said, “last night.” He said Betty had given him permission today
to enter her home. I told him I did not believe him and would call Betty and ask her.
Randy accused Betty of having Alzheimer’s and Dementia. I told him I did not believe
that, because we’ve never seen any signs of Betty showing memory loss. He told me I
am not a doctor and do not know.

Chief Turnbough initially refused to assist Betty despite Dave notifying him we
discovered Betty’s son in the process of climbing through Betty’s window after removing
Betty’s window a/c unit. Stil}, Chief Turnbough refused to arrive to the scene and
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435 Bethel Ave. Incident Report  Randy Dunn Break-in Documented by Dawn Campbell in Oct, 2023
(870) 907-0572

alleged Randy had a right to be there since he is Betty’s son. Chief Turnbough stated it

4

was a civil matter and there is nothing he could do to assist. Upon learning Chief DFTS
Turnbough was ignoring this attempted break-in, Randy became more belligerent. I Ex.

called Betty at the hospital and she was adamant that she did not want Randy in her home 7 E
and she called him a “LIAR” for stating she had given him permission today. Dave
spoke with Betty’s granddaughter-in-law, Amanda, for a few minutes and she said
Betty’s grandson was on his way to Betty’s house from the hospital. We let Randy know
his nephew, Charles, was on the way. Randy was on the phone with his older brother
Gary. Randy told his brother that Betty’s grandson was on his way. While waiting for
Betty’s grandson, Randy continued to tell us to leave. We continued to say, “no. ”
Randy began talking about all the things he did on Betty’s house and stated he even put
the air conditioner in. I thought he was talking about the central air unit he had been
complaining about last Friday. I did not realize Randy was referring to the window unit
he had removed in order to break into his mother’s house. A window unit was
underneath the open window Randy had been hanging out of. Randy kept getting in and
out of his car. He would get out to yell something at us and then get back into his car.

Dave then called the Fulton County Sheriff’s Department, who already sounded familiar
with the situation and informed Dave someone would be sent to Befty’s address.

I went down to our house and got Betty’s spare key she gave us so we could close and
lock the window Randy was trying to enter. While Randy sat in his car appearing to take
pictures of me, or video, I stood outside Betty’s side door as Dave went into Betty’s
house to lock Betty’s window.

After Dave emerged, Randy began to mouth again. Dave and Randy got into a heated
conversation, which I cannot remember in detail, because it concerned me that Randy
was close enough to Dave to spray saliva on him while screaming, so I grabbed Dave’s
arm and reminded Dave that Randy could be vaccinated (since multiple doctors claim
harmful shedding comes from vaccinations.) Randy seemed proud to inform us he
indeed received all his vaccines, so we both stepped far away from Randy.

At one point during today’s incident, a dark car pulled into Betty’s driveway and I think
Randy said it was his daughter and her mate. 1 stepped up the car, because I hoped to talk
to them about Betty. They did not say a word to Dave or me and 1 did not hear them say
anything to Randy. It sounded like Randy ordered them to go somewhere to do
something and it sounded like Randy said, “fimeral home.” The young man driving the
car nodded to Randy, pulled out of the driveway and disappeared. (Update 5/7/24: we
believe the girl in the car was Tonya Rochelle Dunn, who is Randy’ s,‘ daughter. It appears
Jre
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435 Bethel Ave. Incident Report  Randy Dunn Break-in Documented by Dawn Campbell in Oct, 2023
(870) 907-0572

she could have been monitoring her grandmother’s checking account and is aware of
Amanda and Charles’ suspected abuse.)

\

%15

The Fulton County Sheriff’s Department did not appear and instead sent Chief B
Turnbough and his partner; Officer Barnett. Initially, it appeared as if Officer Bumnett

was angry at us as he exited the vehicle to approach us, causing us to feel as if we had Z E
done something wrong by making the report. Dave was told there was nothing to be

done, because Randy is Betty’s son. Dave persisted in pointing out Randy’s illogical

entrance. Dave reminded both peace officers Randy had been found trying to climb

through Betty’s window and did not have a key to what Randy kept referring to as, “his
house.” Dave then stepped away from Chief Turbough’s passenger window and the

two cops and Randy were huddled up talking, which we could not hear. After their
conversation ended, I stepped up to Chief Turnbough’s passenger window as his partner

talked to Randy by Randy’s car and Dave stood by observing. Chief Turnbough stated

Betty has Alzheimer’s, or Dementia, so is going into a nursing home.

I informed Chief Tumbough, Betty has never shown any sign of memory loss to us and
she is going to the nursing home for rehabilitation because she fell and her head is
severely swollen. I informed him the nursing home may not be permanent, as Betty only
wants to go there for recovery. I also informed Chief Turnbough, Betty does not want
her sons anywhere near her house. Chief Turbough was already notified of this by Betty
when Betty fell a few months, or so ago while taking her trash to the curb. A passerby
witnessed her fall and called an ambulance. Chief Turnbough arrived on the scene. Betty
had refused medical care and asked Chief Turnbough to call us instead of either of her
sons, which Chief Turnbough obliged, by telephoning us to tell us Betty fell, refused
treatment and asked we be called.

Randy was instructed by the cops to obtain proper paperwork in order to proceed further
toward his mother’s property. Randy told the officers the paperwork stating he is the
owner of Betty’s house is on file at the courthouse in Salem and he would go retrieve it.
(Update 5/7/24: The courthouse sent Betty a copy of her deed, which states the Dunn
boys own the home and Betty gets to reside in the home as long as she is alive.)

Betty’s Grandson and his daughter, Shelby, arrived and retrieved Betty’s important
paperwork and other items, which Betty requested they do at the time of giving them her
purse, according to Betty’s granddanghter-in-law, Amanda. Dave asked them if they had
called the Fulton County Sheriff’s Department earlier, because the FCSD seemed familiar
with the situation. Charles and Shelby told us Randy had called them while he was
sitting in his car in Betty’s driveway. We were told Randy had accused us to the Fulton
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435 Bethel Ave. Incident Report  Randy Dunn Break-In  Documented by Dawn Campbell in Oct, 2023
(870) 907-0572

County Sheriff’s Department of breaking into Betty’s house, despite the fact Betty gives
us a key every time she changes her locks, due to a family member; approx. 3 times.

After Betty’s grandson, Charles, and daughter, Shelby, left, Betty’s granddaughter-in-
law, Amanda, called us from the hospital to let us know they had retrieved a copy of
Betty’s deed and Betty’s house is in an irrevocable living trust; therefore, her sons cannot
take it from her while she is alive. We were also informed her mother-in-law (Brenda)
slandered us. We were told Brenda was at the hospital today and had called Amanda out
of Betty’s room for a private conversation where she alleged we had “robbed them
blind”” when we purchased property (480 Main Street) years ago from their family. We
made an offer and Brenda’s family accepted the offer. They came back weeks later for
belongings, which we took nothing of. To the contrary, we were burdened with
disposing of the many things they rejected and left. Brenda’s false witness against was
upsetting, so we made a call.

As I listened in on the other line, Dave called Brenda’s sister, Pam, because she seems
logical and as if she has things together. Dave informed the sister of the slander against
us today. The sister admitted everyone had been in agreement when we purchased the
property and admitted we had not “robbed” them “blind.” The sister acted in disbelief
that Brenda would say that and said it does not sound like something Brenda would say.
In this phone-call, Pam alleged Betty has Alzheimer’s, or Dementia. Pam also told us
Betty is currently in the hospital as a result of falling. Dave informed Pam, Betty has
never shown signs to us of having Alzheimer’s, or Dementia. Dave also asked the sister
to contact her sister, Brenda, and ask that she please stop slandering us. Pam said her
hands are full because she was at her daughter’s in Springfield, where she has been for
about a week. Though, during that time, she had managed to learn the news about Betty.

Defendatts
Exhik""
2
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City of Mammoth Spring

DANNY BUSCH

IAAYOR 325 MAIN ST.
P.O. BOX 185
:m : PHONE 626-36 ‘
: (870) 18
CITY ATTORNEY FAX: (870) 625-7566
E-mall: i
Betty K Dunn

435 Bethel Avenue
Mammoth Spring, AR 72554

May 8, 2024

Mrs. Dunn,

Please find the following in response to your Freedom of Information Act request dated 5/2/2024 and received

in-person on 05/3/2024.

« The City of Mammoth Spring does not retain a copy of Power-of-Attorney forms. However, nor does the city

require a service to be “guted” before it changes name.

« On November 6, 2023, Amanda Dunn notified City Hall, who verified with the Mammoth Spring Police
Department, that her grandmother-in-law, Betty Dunn, was ill and unconscious following a fall. Atthat time,
Amanda Dunn presented POA papers. Also at this time, Amanda Dunn paid the required deposit of $150 and a
connect fee of $10 to have water left on in her name at 435 Bethel Avenue. Upon recelving this deposit, City
Hall changed the name on the acoount to Amanda Duna from Charles Lee Dunn (deceased). The account had

anS&OOdepos!twhichwasappliedwthemterbm.

« On May 2, 2024, Amanda Dunn came into City Hall requesting that the water at 435 Bethel Avenue be turned
off in her name. Due to the employees of City Hall being farniliar with Mrs. Dunn and past medical issues,
MayorBusdlagreedtotunmewatefonfoers. Dmnwithouthavlnsthedepositandmnnectfeetouling
$160. This decision was made based on concern for Mrs. Dunn's well-being, however, per city ordinance, a

deposit should have been required.

TheacoounthasbeenmsmredtoMrs.BeuyDum'snamperherreqm

M@m‘?‘ B De?c‘dc‘:tr}isl

Mayor Danny Busch
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NS&S hereby designate , of
%90 Mgc O te of FPrkanscs . my attomey-in-fact (hereinafter
my "“attormey-in-fact’), o act as initialed below, in my name, in my stead and for my
benefit, hereby revoking any and alf financial powers of attomey | may have executed in
the past.

EFFECTIVE DATE
(Choose the applicable paragraph by placing your initials in the preceding space)

1 -A. | grant my attorney-in-fact the powers set forth herein immediately upon
the execution of this document. These powers shall not be affected by any subsequent
disability or incapacity | may experience in the future. DCWI
or P<hibt
- B. | grant my attorney-in-fact the powers set forth herein only when it has 2

been determined in writing, by my attending physician, that | am unable to properly
handie my financial affairs. '

POWERS OF ATTORNEYAN-FACT

My attorney-in-fact shall exercise powers in my best interests and for my welfare, as a
fiduciary. My attorney-in-fact shall have the following powers:

(Choose the applicable power(s) by placing your initials in the preceding space)

B K D BANKING - To receive and deposit funds in any financial institution, and to
withdraw funds by chack or otherwise to pay for goods, services, and any other
personal and business expenses for my benefit. If necessary to effect my attorney-in-
fact's powers, my attomey-in-fact is authorized to execute any document required to be
signed by such banking institution.

SAFE DEPOSIT BOX - To have access at any time or times to any safe-
deposit box rented by me or to which | may have access, wheresoever located,
including dritting, if necessary, and to remove all or any part of the contents thereof, and
to surrender or relinquish said safe-deposit box; and any institution in which any such
safe-deposit box may be located shall not incur any liability to me or my estate as a
result of permitting my attormey-in-fact to exercise this power.

4 K> LENDING OR BORROWING - To make loans in my name; to borrow money
in my name, individually or jointly with others; to give promissory notes or other
obligations therefor; and to deposit or morigage as collateral or for security for the
payment thereof any or all of my securities, real estate, personal property, or other
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progerty cf wnatever nature and wherever situated, held by me personally or in trust for
my benefi.

& i = GOVERNMENT BENEFITS - To apply for and receive any government
beretits for which | may be eligible or become eligible, including but not limited to,
Social Security, Medicare and Medicaid.

RETIREMENT PLAN - To contribute to, select payment option of, roll-over,
and receive benefits of any retirement plan or IRA | may own, except my attorney-in-fact
shall not have power to change the beneficiary of any of my retirament plans or IRAs.

B & 1> TAXES - To complete and sign any local, state and federal tax retums on my
behalf, pay any taxes and assessments due and receive credits and refunds owed to
me and to sign any tax agency documents necessary to effectuate these powers.

Bi > INSURANCE - To purchase, pay premiums and make claims on life, health,
automobile and homeowners' insurance on my behalf, except my attorney-in-fact shall
not have the power to cash in or change the beneficiary of any life insurance policy.

£/ REAL ESTATE - To acquire, purchase, exchange, lease, grant options to .
sall, and sell and convey real property, or any interests therein, on such terms and PFIS
conditions, including credit arrangements, as my attomey-in-fact shall deem proper; to E)(
execute, acknowiedge and deliver, under seal or otherwise, any and all assignments,
transfers, deeds, papers, documents or instruments which my attomey-in-fact shall 2 b
deem necessary in connection therewith.

2 ( ) PERSONAL PROPERTY - To acquire, purchase, exchange, fease, grant
options to sell, and sell and convey personal property, or any interests therein, on such
terms and conditions, including credit arrangements, as my attorney-in-fact shall deem
proper; to execute, acknowledge and deliver, under seal or otherwise, any and afl
assignments, transfers, titles, papers, documents or instruments which my attorney-in-
fact shall deem necessary In connection therewith; to purchase, sell or otherwise
dispose of, assign, transfer and convey shares of stock, bonds, securities and other
personal property now of hereafter belonging to me, whether standing in my name or
otherwise. and wherever situated.

AKD POWERTOMANAGE PROPERTY- To maintain, repair, improve, invest,
manage, insure, rent, lease, encumber, and in any manner deal with any real or
personal property, tangible or intangible, or any interests therein, that | now own or may
hereafter acquire, in my name and for my benefit, upon such terms and conditions as
my attomey-in-fact shall deem proper.

GIFTS - To make gifts, grants, or other transfers (including the forgiveness
of indebtedness and the compietion of any charitable pledges | may have made) without
consideration, either outright or in trust to such person(s) (including my attorney-in-fact
hereunder) or organizations as my attorney-in-fact shall select, including, without
limitation, the following actions: (a) transfer by giftin advancement of bequest or
devise to beneficiaries under my will or in the absence of a will to my spouse and

ﬁ | Page 2 of 4
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descenaar:s ~ ~hatever degree: and (b) release of any life interest, or waiver,
van “sclaimer. or declination of any gift to me by will, deed, or trust

renuncia
S Y > LEGAL ADVICE AND PROCEEDINGS - To obtain and pay for legal advice,
to initiate or defend iegal and administrative proceedings on my behatf, including actions
against third parties who refuse, without cause, to honor this instrument.

SPECIAL INSTRUCTIONS: On the following lines are any special instructions limiting
or extending the powers | give to my attomey-in-fact {Write "None” if no additional
instructions are given):

AUTHORITY OF ATTORNEY-IN-FACT: Any party dealing with my attorney-in-fact

hereunder may rely absolutely on the authority granted herein and need not look to the
application of any proceeds nor the authority of my attorney-in-fact as to any action

taken hereunder. in this regard, no person who may in good faith act in reliance upon

the representations of my attomey-in-fact or the authority granted hereunder shall incur

any liability to me or my estate as a result of such act. | hereby ratify and confirm

whatever my attorney-in-fact shall lawfully do under this instrument. My attomey-in-fact
isauthorizedasheorshedeemsnecessarytobringanacﬁonincourtsothatthis DT:[S
instrument shall be given the full power and effect that | intend on by executing it. EX

LIABILITY OF ATTORNEY-N-FACT: My attomey-in-fact shall not incur any liability to 28
me under this power except for a breach of fiduciary duty.

REIMBURSEMENT OF ATTORNEY-IN-FACT: My attorney-in-fact is entitied to
reimbursement for reasonable expenses incumed in exercising powers hereunder, and
to reasonable compensation for services provided as attormney-in-fact.

AMENDMENT AND REVOCATION: | can amend or revoke this power of atiorney
through a writing delivered to my attorney-in-fact. Any amendment or revocation is
ineffective as to a third party until such third party has notice of such revocation or
amendment.

STATE LAW: This Power of Atiorney is govemed by the laws of the State of Missouri.
This is a durable power of attomey and the authority of my attomey shall not terminate if

| become disabled or incapacitated or in the event of later uncertainty as to whether |
am dead or alive.

PHOTOCOPIES: Photocopies of this document can be refied upon as though they were
originals.

h 3 Page 3 of 4
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IN LVTNESS \HEREOF thave on this Z- day of MOU embfll( .20 2,92.
executed iMis F.nancial Power of Attorney.

NEES P A e
Principal’s Signature \oF al
’ . EILED Doc LD
STATE OF m\tmﬂ’.& 2023"916
‘ 11022023
H mtﬂﬂz County, ss. 032:24 PM P
VICKIE Blsno‘/(* & 'ég
Circuit Clerk V (LI -

Ontis £ _dayof Nysmber 20235 befogajpo apeearagy - A1
, as Principal of this Power of Attorney who Provad to me
through government issued photo identification to be the above-named person, in my
presence executed foregoing instrument and acknowledged that (s)he executed the
same as histher free act and deed.

-
W—] ﬁﬂ.umw‘ m, 6@ka
m%%mw " Notary Public
mcommemmuaeaﬁ.:_.z / - / Y
| cowssovengs | My commission expires: a7 ZD/‘{
D:—%thais
SPECIMEN SIGNATURE AND ACCEPTANCE OF APPOINTMENT Exhb-\jr

L Bmng_DLu_)D_ the attorey-in-fact named above, hereby accept 26
appointment as attorney-in-fact in accordance with the foregoing instrument.

U

Attorney-in-Fact's Signature

STATE OF (11 ulleurs
(’bmei t County, ss.

Onthis Z day of AMovErpaf 20 2 3 before me appeared
as Attorney-in-Fact of this Power of Atlorney who proved to

me through govermnment issued photo identification to be the above-named person, in
my presence executed the foregoing acceptance of appointment and acknowledged
that (s)he executed the same as his/her free act and deed.

Notary Public

My commission expires: i 7/ 024

h 4 Page 4 of 4
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DREW SMITH DWAYNE PLUMLEE
PROSECUTING ATTORNEY DEPUTY PROSECUTING ATTORNEY
368 EAST MAIN STREET PO BOX 436
POST OFFICE 4050 451 NORTH MAIN STREET
BATESVILLE. AR 72503 SALEM, ARKANSAS 72576
TELEPHONE (870)793-8825 TELEPHONE (870-895-2601
FAX (870)793-8870 ‘ CELL (870421-5669
e’ FAX (870)895-4114
OFFICE OF THE
PROSECUTING ATTORNEY
16TH Judicial District
May 13, 2024
i
D c{?cnch RS
Chief Jamie Tumbough Exhibit
City of mammoth spring 2 9
160 N. 1% Street
Mammoth Spring, Arkansas 72554

RE: Amanda Dunn Investigation
Dear Chief Tumbough,

I have reviewed your file on the above investigation. At this time 1 do not feel there is sufficient
credible evidence to go forward with criminal charges.

Please contact me if you have any questions.

Respectfully submitted.
Y 44

H
"/J,'ﬂt' M.éwtﬁ*—'
Dwayne/Plum
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Dave and Dawn Campbell
440 Main Street
Mammoth Spring, Arkansas 72554-8800
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Dave and
440 Main mﬂ_,mwﬁ
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Dawn Campbell
Arkansas 72554-8800
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AR 72554
JUN 08, 2024
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Fifth Street Burglary Suspect / Tuesday May 28, 2024

statement of Dave and Dawn Campbell

On Tuesday, May 28, 2024, we were sitting on our screened front porch and observed
strange behavior from a male wearing a cap, green t-shirt and blue jeans. Attimes, he
had a grey or silver bicycle he either pushed, or rode. For a while, we witnessed the
suspect walking on the sidewalk in front of The Bank of salem. He walked near the
Methodist Church and turned around and walked back to the corner of Main and Fifth
Street. At times he went down 5th Street toward the City Recycling Center. He did this
repeatedly for what seemed ke many hours. Sometimes he rode or pushed his bike on
this route. Strangely, he seemed to go no further than the Recycling Center, or the
Methodist Church.

We continued watching the suspect and suspected he left his bicycle at or near the City
Recycling Center during the times he paced on Fifth and Main streets. At approximately
4:14 PM, with his bike in tow, on the sidewalk by the Bank of Salem’s driveway, the
suspect dropped his beverage, got on his hands and knees and appeared sick. He then
turned on his back and appeared to be resting. Dave called The Bank of Salem and
notified Brittany of what was witnessed. Brittany stated she witnessed the same and
would call the police.

Moments later, Chief Turnbough drove into the driveway and spoke to the suspect from
inside the truck. Chief Turnbough in a rolling stop, did not get out of his truck, called the
suspect, “buddy,” and quickly drove away. It appears Chief Turnbough was not at the
scene long enough to document the suspect’s name. The suspect then disappeared on
his bicycle. We did not see the suspect again.

We heard two days later about a break-in on Fifth Street.

Defendant s
Exhibit
3l
Dave Campbell
Dawn Campbell
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AFFIDAVIT OF PROBABLE CAUSE FOR ARREST

_——_#-—#

In The Matter of DAVE CAMPBELL W/M AGE: 68

-
Re: Request for Magistrates Determination for Probable Cause for Warrant of Arrest for the
Defendant on the following charges:

5-13-203. Battery in the third degree x3
(a) A person commits battery in the third degree if:

(1) With the purpose of causing physical injury to another person, the person causes
physical injury to any person,;

5-71-207. Disorderly conduct

(a) A person commits the offense of disorderly conduct if, with the purpose to cause
public inconvenience, annoyance, or alarm or recklessly creating a risk of public
inconvenience, annoyance, or alarm, he or she:

(1) Engages in fighting or in violent, threatening, or tumultuous behavior

THE UNDERSIGNED, BEING DULY SWORN, FOR HIS AFFIDAVIT FOR
PROBABLE CAUSE FOR ARREST, DEPOSES AND SAYS:

On 7/19/2024 at approximately 1:00 PM, | Assistant Chief John Barnett conducted an interview
with Gary Dunn, Randy Dunn, and Brenda Dunn. During this interview Mr. Gary stated that on
7/16/2024 at approximately 9:26 AM, he along with his wife Mrs. Brenda and brother Mr. Randy came
into City Hall to show a warranty deed of the house that their mother Ms. Betty Dunn currently resides
in at 435 Bethel Ave in Mammoth Spring, AR. After showing the deed they informed City Hall that they
were going to put up no trespassing signs on their property as soon as they left. They also told City Hall
to inform the Police Department that they might be needed because of some neighbors to the
property a Mr. Dave and Dawn Campbell being in a property dispute over the house at 435 Bethel Ave
in Mammoth Spring AR. At approximately 9:46 AM as Mr. Gary was heading into his mother’s “Ms.
Betty’s” home he noticed Mrs. Campbell was walking toward Ms. Betty’s home, she quickly turned
around and ran to her residence. Mr. Gary said that he seen Mr. Campbell become visibly irate

1 EXHIBIT 32



practically running up to their property with Mrs. Campbell right behind him. As the Campbell’s made it
onto their property Mr. Gary asked if Mr. Campbell had a weapon, they both stated they did while
placing their hands on their waste line indicating they were carrying firearms. Mr. Gary then told them
that they needed to leave the property they both refused, instead Mr. Campbell started calling Mr.
Gary and Mr. Rany idiots, constantly insulting them and their intelligence. During this time Mr. Gary
noticed his mother being visibly upset, as he tried to make his way to Ms. Betty to check on her, Mr.
Campbell stepped in front of him to block his path. Mr. Gary then tried to step around Mr. Campbell,
Mr. Campbell chest bumped Mr. Gary and stated loudly “You pushed me”! Then Mr. Campbell hit Mr.
Gary with his left closed fist in Mr. Gary’s stomach, Mr. Campbell then vigorously pushed Mr. Gary to
the ground with both hands. Mrs. Campbell then screamed at Mr. Campbell stop and calm down. Mr.
Campbell immediately turned his aggression toward Mr. Randy, Mr. Gary’s brother, Mr. Campbell
pushed Mr. Randy then yelled you pushed me, then pushed Mr. Randy even harder causing him to
stumble and he would’ve fell if he didn’t hit his back on the pole that holds the carport up. Then Mr.
Campbell turned back towards Mr. Gary and Mrs. Brenda, Mr. Gary’s wife, got out of their vehicle, went
to Mr. Campbell and while shaking her finger in his face said stop pushing my husband around. Mr.
Campbell then said nobody shakes their finger in my face, so Mrs. Brenda shook it again in his face, Mr.
Campbeli then kneed Mrs. Brenda in the middle of her lower stomach, Mrs. Benda then immediately
after being kneed said may God bless you. Mr. Campbell replied God is with me! After being kneed in
the stomach Mrs. Brenda got back in her vehicle, went to City Hall, and asked for help. By the time she
arrived back at the scene Officer Hunter Crawford was on scene. Due to the above stated facts, |
Assistant Chief John Barnett of the Mammoth Spring Police Department am charging Mr. Dave
Campbell with 3 counts of Battery in the 3" Degree and 1 count of Disorderly Conduct. End of
Statement.
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WWU/A’IW
d

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO BEFORE ME THIS )~ DAY OF S\A;IL 20,
W
E, NOTARY PUBLIC OR CLERK

My Commission Erpires: B0 434 033 BARBARA GANN
NOTARY PUBLIC - ARKANSAS

SHARP COUNTY
Commission # 12725096
My Commission Expires Aug. 23, 2033

lipmud T-22-2624

FINDING OF PROBABLE CAUSE FOR ARREST

I hereby find that the foregoing sworn Affidavit demonstrates reasonable and probable

cause for the issuance of a warrant of arrest for the defendant for the charges listed in the attached
Information and that the defendant shgfuld m and bound over for trial.

. AN(JUDGE
Dated and signed this /l'L day of 3 \&)\v/\\ ) 2;]9%’\/\\
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AFFIANT
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SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO BEFORE ME THIS QAT DAYOF g&\f .. )
| EIUDG: NOTARY 5@%& | Che C AP MMN A‘A b Y
k , D : 1E r‘sné AR 303
My Commission Expires: ﬂg _:&‘ A3 A O%2 ~— BARBARA GANN %
27 NOTARY PUBLIC - ARKANSAS

SHARP COUNTY
Commission # 12725096

Wy Commission Expires Aug. 23, 2033
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FINDING OF PROBABLE CAUSE FOR ARREST

\
ws
7
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QUL
1 hereby find that the foregoing swom Affidavit demonstrates reasonable and probable

cause for the issuance of a warrant of arrest for the defendant for the charges listed in the attached
Information and that the defendant shgtild b1 ested and bound over for trial.

AL

JUDGE

& Q&’g \
%“f Dated and signed this | T day of MY Vf\\ : 3‘;@%\\

Why Qo Bee Sodse

o
Y a@of‘ My a (‘(‘e,s"'?
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Mammoth Spring Police Department
Jamie Turnbough, Chief
John Barnett, Assistant Chief
160 NV 1% Street
Mammoth Spring, AR.72554
Phone: (870) 625-3518  Fax; (870) 625-7566

On 7/16/2024 |, Officer Hunter Crawford received a call from Chief of Police Jamie
Turnbough. The call was regarding 435 Bethel Avenue in Mammoth Spring, Ar. Betty
Dunn is residing in the house, and her children, Gary Dunn and Randall Dunn have a
Warranty deed on the house. The neighbors of Ms. Dunn, Dave and Dawn Campbell,
were at the house when Ms. Dunn’s kids showed up. When | arrived on scene, twas
greeted by Ms. Dunn, her two kids and Gary Dunn’s wife Brenda Dunn, and Dave and
Dawn Campbell. Upon arriving | was informed that there was some form of physical
altercation, but both parties insisted that the other party had started it. Gary stated
that Dave had came between Gary and Ms. Dunn and pushed him, then proceeded
to punch him in the stomach and shove him to the ground. Dave told me that Gary
had walked up to him and shoved him, causing Dave to defend himself by punching
Gary in the stomach. Deputies John Smith (FC-3) and James Cantrell (FC-9) showed
up shortly after for backup. They were told the same stories | was from both sides.
Due to not having evidence of who actually made physical contact first, we decided it
would be best to separate both parties. All parties were given police reports to
complete. We informed Gary, Randall, and Brenda that they need to get in touch
with their attorney about the property dispute, and show them a copy of the deed.

(frer  croweer M57
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Mammoth Spring Police Department
Jamie Turnbough, Chief
John Barnett, Assistant Chief
160 NV 1° Street
Mammoth Spring, AR 72554
Phone: (870) 625-3518  Fax; (870) 625-7566

On 7/19/2024 at approximately 1:00 PM, 1 Assistant Chief John Barnett conducted an interview
with Gary Dunn, Randy Dunn, and Brenda Dunn. During this interview Mr. Gary stated that on 7/16/2024
at approximately 9:26 AM, he along with his wife Mrs. Brenda and brother Mr. Randy came into City Hall
to show a warranty deed of the house that their mother Ms. Betty Dunn currently resides in at 435
Bethel Ave in Mammoth Spring, AR. After showing the deed they informed City Hall that they were going
to put up no trespassing signs on their property as soon as they left. They also tofd City Hall to inform the
Police Department that they might be needed because of some neighbors to the property a Mr. Dave
and Dawn Campbell being in a property dispute over the house at 435 Bethel Ave in Mammoth Spring
AR. At approximately 9:46 AM as Mr. Gary was heading into his mother’s “Ms. Betty’s” home he noticed
Mrs. Campbell was walking toward Ms. Betty’s home, she quickly turned around and ran to her
residence. Mr. Gary said that he seen Mr. Campbell become visibly irate practically running up to their
property with Mrs. Campbell right behind him. As the Campbell’s made it onto their property Mr. Gary
asked if Mr. Campbell had a weapon, they both stated they did while placing their hands on their waste
line indicating they were carrying firearms. Mr. Gary then told them that they needed to leave the
property they both refused, instead Mr. Campbell started calling Mr. Gary and Mr. Rany idiots, constantly
insulting them and their intelligence. During this time Mr. Gary noticed his mother being visibly upset, as
he tried to make his way to Ms. Betty to check on her, Mr. Campbell stepped in front of him to block his
path. Mr. Gary then tried to step around Mr. Campbell, Mr. Campbell chest bumped Mr. Gary and stated
loudly “You pushed me”! Then Mr. Campbell hit Mr. Gary with his left closed fist in Mr. Gary’s stomach,
Mr. Campbell then vigorously pushed Mr. Gary to the ground with both hands. Mrs. Campbell then
screamed at Mr. Campbell stop and caim down. Mr. Campbell immediately turned his aggression toward
Mr. Randy, Mr. Gary’s brother, Mr. Campbell pushed Mr. Randy then yelied you pushed me, then pushed
Mr. Randy even harder causing him to stumble and he would've fell if he didn’t hit his back on the pole
that holds the carport up. Then Mr. Campbell turned back towards Mr. Gary and Mrs. Brenda, Mr. Gary’s
wife, got out of their vehicle, went to Mr. Campbeli and while shaking her finger in his face said stop
pushing my husband around. Mr. Campbell then said nobody shakes their finger in my face, so Mrs.
Brenda shook it again in his face, Mr. Campbell then kneed Mrs. Brenda in the middle of her lower
stomach, Mrs. Benda then immediately after being kneed said may God bless you. Mr. Campbell replied
God is with me! After being kneed in the stomach Mrs. Brenda got back in her vehicle, went to City Hall,
and asked for help. By the time she arrived back at the scene Officer Hunter Crawford was on scene. Due
to the above stated facts, | Assistant Chief John Barnett of the Mammoth Spring Police Department am
charging Mr. Dave Campbell with 3 counts of Battery in the 3" Degree and 1 count of Disorderly
Conduct. End of Statement.

M55
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Incident # _24-00025 Mammoth Spring Police Department Report Date __ 07/19724
Page 10f 3 Incident Report Report Time __ 348 PM
Status Exception Clearance  Date Reporting Officer ORV/Agency
Active Not Applicable MS-5 Bamett, John AR0250200
Assigned Officer Entered By | Approving Officer
Admin

Complainant
Name

City Of Mammoth Spring

Assisting Officers

Business Address

Incident Location

160 N First ST Mammoth Spring, AR 72554

435 Bethel AVE Mammath Spring, AR 72554

{Earﬁe&PossibleDaﬁs Time Latest Possible Date | Time
. 07/16/2024 09:20 07/19/2024 15:48
# [Statute/Code Description FelMisd |Att/Comp {Loc jBias 'pn{ CATypes
1 | 5-13-203A(2) |BATTERY - 3RD DEGREE / RECKLESSLY CAUSES INJURY Misd Completed| 25 88 99
2 | 5-71-207A(1) |DiSORDERLY CONDUCT 1 FIGHTING OR VIOLENT, THREATENING, OR TUMULTUOUS BEHAV Misd Compieted| 25 88 99
MO Method Of Entry # Prems
n/a 0
Location T 13 Hway/Roed/ 37 Abandoned/Condemned 48 Industrial Site Bias Motivation Codes . .
ypes Taromnont 49 MAitary Instatiation 43 Lesbian, Gay, Bisexusl,
01 Air/Bus/Train Terminal 15 JaitPrison 38 Amusement Park 50 Park/Playground ANTI- 23 Protestant of Transgender, Mixed
G2 Bank/S&L 16 Loka/Watorway 39 Arena/StadiunvF air 51 RestArea 11 White 24 Isiamic (Musiim)  OrouR (LGBT)
03 Bar/Night Club 17 Uiquor Store grounds/Coliseum 52 School - 12 Black or African 25 Other Refigion 45'“'. st
04 emple 18 Parking Lot/Garage 40 ATM Sepanate from Bank ¥ ‘ 26 Multi-religious group 515“’"'.'
pod f/onBidy 19Rentai Storage 41 Auto Dealership 53 School - 13 American Indianor 27 Atheist/Agnostic Phys Disability
06 Construction Site Facility NewlUsed Elementary/Secondary Alaska Native 31 Arab 52 Mental Disabifity
07 Convenience Store 20 Ress 2 54 Shefter - 14 Asisn 32 Hispanicor Latino 51 Male
08 Dept/Discount Store gﬂm ngmmFadw s loss }guulhaoes.(irwp 33 Not Hispanic o 71 Transgend
Su/Dr Servica/Gas Station Dock/WhartF s'w‘ﬂ Native Hawailan or Latino
00 Dru0 s TSP 24 Specialty Siore  Modal Teminal 56 Tribel Lands Other Pacific Isiander 41 Gay (male) 72 Gender Non-Conforming
11 GovwPublic Bidg 25 Unknown/Other :glrmrm 57 Community Center gm 42 Lesbian g““"
Cyberspace Catholic Unnown
12 Grocery/Supermarket p4 Track
Suspected Of Using Criminal Activity Types [Weapon Type(s) gmmw Gsrwmdbrybeybom
i v jvati ishi 11 Firear (Auto) Object Drugs/Nerc/Sieeping
None FB’Buym‘;lRoeewmg ) gcmaumMamflPubhshmu : 12 ((AutL) 35 Motor Vehicle 85 Asphyxiation
D Distributing/Sefing T Transportimport/Transmit 13 Rifie (Auto) ‘sgpmpm Weapons ggmm
14
E Exploiting Children U Using/Consuming 158mg3(Aw) 80 Explast 99 Nove
A Simple/Gross Neglect | intentional Abuse & Torment
F Organized Abuse S Sexual Animal Abuse
Copyright Relativity Inc.© - RPS(Relativity Public Safety)
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incident# 24-00025 Mammoth Spring Police Department Report Date ___07/19724

Victim  #1 Event #5 Related EM
SSNAD/TIN Title | Name

Mr {Dunn, Gary Lee
Race White Ethnicty . DL (#, ST) Email
Not Hispanic/Latino 198011684, MO
Home Phone Work Phone Other Phone Personal Cell |Work Ceft
U$ Citizen Legat Alien Doc Type immig Doc # Nationality
es
Home Address Employer
10117 Co Rd 6550 ,West Plains, MO 85775
Work Address Occupation
Victim Type injury Type Aggravated Assault/Homicide Circumstances Relationship To Suspect
Individual None, None #1NA
Justifiable Homicide Circumstances Taken to: (Hospital Name)
None
Injury Description
Victim  #2 Event #s Related KR
SSNID/TIN Title | Name
Ms | Dunn, Brenda £
Race White Ethnicity DL (#, ST) Email
Not Hispanic/Latino 1980629850, MO
Home Phone Work Phone Other Phone Personal Cell Work Cell
US Citizen Legal Alien Doc Type immig Doc # Nationality
Yes
Home Address
10117 Co Rd 6550 ,West Plains, MO 65775 Employer
Work Address Occupation
Victim Type Injury Type Aggravated Assault/Homicide Circumstances Relationship To Suspect
Individual None, None #1 N/A
Justifiable Homicide Circumstances Taken to: (Hospital Name)
None
injury Description

Copyright Relativity Inc.© - RPS(Relativity Public Safety)
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Jul 18, 2024 2:20:48 PM Printed By: 5478691 from: FULS

th#ikt+t START OF DL RECORD ****CSN/883322§ ***DATE/20240718 TIME/135705%*

ARKADISAS DRIVER HISTORY FOR CSN: 000000000

W'DAVE DLN: w
MAT DOB: GIilRNdS®

: smm FULTON AR 72554 ISSUED: 08-31-21"
"RACE: W ‘ EXPIRES: QGID-29

EYE: GRN HAIR: GRY HGT:510 WGT:190  TOTAL POINTS; 000
VOLUNTARY ENHANCED szcmur! YES CARD' cou'mom 6831 40808
onc.w DoNOR: P

MAILING ARDR:

wsn:cu. CERT:
CLASS: D~

ENDORSEMENTS:

Motarcycles

PO BOX 13
MAMMOTH SPRIN AR 72554 g
conz—u : STATUS-Not C.rt!.flod
' su'ms NCL- Valid . CDL- N/A
RESTRICTIONS: :

c'orrectivé Lenses.

t*t*i*tt**tt*t***ii*t***tit*itit*ttt*othozt***i***i**t*t**t******t****ti**ittt
'rransfo:rod la.pense to Arhnm from Florida on: 5/26/2021

Offense Conviction Offense ' " court '_ DLN o HAZ
Date Date ‘ Location . : MAT
il . = .
.

»

*+ NO TRAFFIC VIOLATIONS EXIST **
3 -

Pag¢1of2
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Jul 18, 2024 2:21:49 PM Printed By: 5478691 from: FULS

MISSOURI DEPARTMENT OF MOTOR VEHICLES

NAM/CAMPBELL , DAVE DOB/ pRamiiNG  soc/ AN
2526 HIGH RIDGE SEX/M 4 HGT/510  WGT/200
SULLIVAN, MO 63080 m/ . B‘Iﬂlm

OLN/N102272002

STATUS: EXPIRED

I1SSUED: ' CLASS: ¥ EXPIRES: 2015¢RSES
PHOTO AVAILABLE: YES ,

Begin

ENDORSEMENTS: MOTORCYCLE. () :
Cod 1 ' : :
+++THIS INFORMATION IS PROVIDED FOR LAW ENFORCEMENT PURPOSES ONLY***

PRI gyt Y

Page 1 of 1
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Mammoth Spring Police Department
Jamie Turnbough, Chief
John Barnett, Assistant Chief
PO Box Box 185
Mammoth Spring, AR.72554
Phone: (870) 625-3518  Fax; (870) 625-7566

VOLUNTARY STATEMENT

DATE O 7 TIME 200l

SSN_Smymiagmnce - SIS  NAME: @m/ N\ YN,

DOB:o2bc/rava  TELEPHONE: SIS
DRIVER'S LICENSE STATE ffa5081  DRIVER'S LICENSB#“,

ADDRESS: Aol Wt g (Vo T Nolns Vo £5 795

I, being the ur_id_er_s_igped, ,ﬁ%ﬂ/m& being é g yeers of age, do

hereby make the following statement o _ Jonhar  Rqever]

hawving been identified as a

Fulion County Officer, knowing that I may have an attorney in my behall present and that1do not have io
make any statement nor incriminate myself in any manner. | make the statement voluntarily, of my own

free will and that such statement could later be used against me in any court of law, I Also understand that

by filling out this staternent that I know that any false statements I make either written or orallcan be

charged with filing a false report under Arkansas Code Annotated 5.54-122 and a fine and/or imprisonment. 1

declare this statement is without threat, coercion, offer of benefit, favor or offer of favor, leniency or offer of
leniency by any person or persons whatsoever.

v
L {

élz M ks I\ﬂ }11‘5 114‘57" 4"" 7 SIDMA(_A gnzg‘ wa
E(!Sl el o= dﬂiﬂ!ﬂ! - “5;a£j 6:,& ' &,4.! !;
MJ__éALJ__)ZQE__BQ;ML AL

~
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_ 1, being the undersigned, D!AAA being 5¢

Mammoth Spring Police Department
Jamie Turnbough, Chief
John Barnett, Assistant Chief
PO Box Box 185 By
Mammoth Spring, AR, 72554 JEETTET,
Phone: (870)625-3518 ~ Fax; (870) 625-7566 |

VOLUNTARY STATEMENT

DATE 7-14-202M TIME !.2° Pm

e

SSN _m___NAME: /Qam% Durn

TELEPHONE+ S
DRIVER'S LICENSE STATE_ 3% DRIVER’S LICENSE# m___

years of age, do

__hereby make the following statement to AS315 144 I~ CH IEE, BRRAE [Fhaving been identified as a

Fuilton County Officer, knowing that I may have an attorney in my behalf present and thatldo not have o
make any statement nor incriminate myself in any manner. I make the statement voluntarily, of my own

free will and that such statement could later be used against me in any court of law, I Also understand that

by filling out this statement that I know that any false statements I make either written or orall can be

charged with filing a false report under Arkansas Code Annotated 5:54-122 and a fine and/or imorisonment. |

declare this statement is without threat, coercion, offer of bencﬁt, favor or offer o..f favor, leniency or offer of
leniency by any person or persons whatsoever.

DAV E CAMBELL Pustt m e FoR NO ReAsop AND SAD |
Pustt Hrm , 1 e tord Him V D1Qn’r Pustt i HE TH £nv @osus
e HAPDER witd my,Bhek Horpind B PosT TiaT HeldS THe
Cag PoRT LY, IE pinT Tl Prst | WolLO HAVE FActew Down, He
THEF LefT me Alove EXECPT TAcking AbovT MHow STUMNA

1WA AJD (RSvetivE ME Cont START
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Mammoth Spring Police Department
Jamie Turnbough, Chief
John Barnett, Assistant Chief
PO Box Box 185
Mammoth Spring, AR 72554
Phone: (870)625-3518  Fax; (870) 625-7566

VOLUNTARY STATEMENT

DATE 3%‘)} 19 ive /,’86'/00<

ssn_§
DOB.: . 5-~32%— /?5‘/

DRIVER’S LICENSE STATE 2 2 Q DRIVER'S LICENSE#

ADDRESS: (BRE

1, being the undersigned, _M/ EE(JWV being 74 years of age, do
, . Schv . o
' ____hereby make the following statement o _M_i&D__M__, hawving been identified as a

Fulton County Officer, knowing that I may have an attorney in my behalf present and thatido not have to

make any statement nor incriminate myself in any manner. 1 make the statement voluntarily, of my own
> s ¥

free will and that such statement could later be used against me in any court of law, I Also understand that

by filling out this statement that I know that any false statements I make either written or oral I can be

charged with filing a false report under Arkansas Code Annotated 5-54-122 and a fine and/or imprisonment. i

declare this statement is without threat, coercion, offer of bcneﬁt, favor or offer of favor, leniency or offer of
leniency by any person or persons whatsoever.

GoT ud n/ Tormair CAr SHOK My
/"N/coh Y Oﬂrc@f Face ST0ed Tp) /-row/ oF
Cary 70 00 TAS Anrd sad Dou'T Pesh my
/—-Atfhdll«t‘/ Dave. <Aid N oL S//ﬂﬂef T heore
FityoR ) Ny FACe So Sk T Seme

Ohare  Thew He Aleol he T My founeR
Stomach Ard T sard Moy God Bless YEXHIBIT 32
He Said God s With me real Loud.
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 Ozark Healtheara Family Care
1307 Portar Wagoner BN. - West Plals, MO 65775
. Phone: 417-255-8645  Faxc 417-255-8649
Br. Druery Dibxon, Dr. Shannon Marsdan, Dr. John Washbuen, 'Dr. sasan $purling, Jamie Parrett, FNP

Totalnumbor ofpages: . finchuding this cover shee)

Notice 'ai' cmﬁdenﬁ:lib:
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Ozarks Hoﬂmm
1100 Kentucky Ave,
‘Wast Plains, MO 85775

XRay Report:
Signed
Pa,(bat, Dunn,Gary Lee Unit #: OMO!
, At;d#ﬁv )
-&ad&ax BEIM ) ADM Date: 07!17124
‘LociRAD R

Room/Bed:
Mﬁgb&’ John A Washburri MD

Ordering’ mmlordenng MD: Washbum,.!om A Mﬂ
:mmm, ' ;; 13002
P 3

‘PROCEDURE INFORMATION:

‘Exam: XR Left Knes:

‘Exam dateand time: 7/17/2024 10:55 AM
Age: 68 vears old -
-Clinical indication: el

:Imagiugprotowl Radiolodcexamofmmtkm
Views: 3 views..

-COMPARISON:
‘No relevant prior stutlies avallable.

FINDINGS:

AGCESSION #::A00005087380ZA XRIXR knee LT 3V* 73562
.MPRESSION‘

Signed By:  Garvin,Danie! DO Signed Date/Time: 07/1724. 1125

DO/DT: 0717124 1055

CC: Washburn John A MD
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OZH Family Care

1307 Poiter Wagonar
‘West Plains, MO 65775
Office Visit Raport:
-Slgned
MRe: omocoilills
Aacz#ﬁvomuﬂ
ADM Date: 07/18/24

Details; , S
The patient presents after being assauited earlier today.

The patient went to his mothef's-and she has a neighbor there. The patient says that her fisighbor Is
‘stirring up trouble and that he has ktnd of taken over his mom and taking advantage of her. She has
‘dementia.

He went t6 See his mom &nd the neighbor pushed him and hit him in the stomach. The patient was
turned around then and the man pushed the patient and he fell into the gravel and the grass landing
on his left [eg/hand and he feels ke hig laft knee is tender to twist and walk'on it. His ieRt Sth finger
Is aiso twisted and brulsed..
After he fell, he got up, the guy came up'ran'i! ‘belly bumped him but the patient didn't fall that time.
The patient says that David Campbell did this to him.
His left.arm is a little blocdled;
No Loc,.maafc;m:ms ma nothing.on h;s-fnghtfs:a&;as;m;sﬁg;_
Fax # 1-870-625-7565
SRy (Severe, Vetified 06/03/24:13:23)

Unknown

Penicilting ﬁgwg'y {Unknown, Verified 06/03/24 13:23)
ALG

quinacrine Allergy (Ui
Unknowiy

quinine Allergy (Unknown, Verified 06/03/24 13:23)
Unknown

hown, Verified 06/03/24 13:23)

W Lee DOB: ‘1956
Dﬂ' 07118124 !255
on; Tonya R Dunn
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OZA CLINIC 2
‘Patiant name: Dupn,Oaty Les:
Accoum #;:CV002141

i llergy (Verified 06/03/24 13:23)

‘Home Medications
- Last Reconciled 07/16/24 by John A Washburn, MD

PFSH

PFSHy

ory (Reviewad 07/16/24 @ 20:52 by John A Washburn, MD)
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QZACUNIC
‘Patient neme; Dunn,Gary Lee
Avcount ¥ CV0021413802
Done in the 1980's
Family History (Reviewed 07/16/24 @ 20:52 by John A Washbum, MD)’
‘Cancer
LUNG
CAD {coronary artery disease)
Mother: \
Social History (Reviewed. 07/16/24 @ 20:52 by John A Washburn,; MDY
Smoklm and tobacco/nicotine status: former use of tobacco/nicotine
_Quit mtus (tobaecol ni::ttne). has qa’uit ‘using Year guit tobacco: 2004 Former
'Pwvlom eecupwma history: ‘Used to work at: Regal
Dietary Caffeine: Yes Caffeine intake frequency: coffee (1)
Habits; ‘ '
Review of Systems
Narrative:
‘General: nemes fevers, cbii!s, fatigue, malsise,
Lardiovagcular: Denies chest pains
Resplratory: Denles cough, wheezing.
‘Gastrointastinal: Denles nausea, vomiting, diarrhea, constlpatim, abdominal pain,
Skin: Admits to Su—_
Vital Signs
S o 06/03/24 07116124 67/16124
13:22 . _
Height _ R
B IR
.Blood Pressure Lacation o

_-ma-umm amemuss
}‘r;ngulpﬁm Tonya R Dunn

Eaxd
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Ozarks Healthcare

1100 Kentucky Ave,.
‘West Plains; MO 65775
XRay Report
‘Sigried

Patient: Dunn,Gary Les Unit # OM00060208
DOB: 07/05/1956 Acct# Q5107868751
Age/Sex: B8 / M ADM Date: 07/117724-
Loc RAD Room/Bed
Atlending Df: John A Washburri: MD

Ordering Proviter/Qrdering MD: Washburit John A MO
‘Date of Service: 07/17/24°

Procadure(s):. XR hand LT min 3V 73130
‘Accession Number(s); ACO00B087370ZA

vaepon Number; 0717-001680

iTECHN!OUE
imaging protocol: Radiologic exam of the left hand
Views: 3 or more views.

'COMPARISON: »
No relevant prior studies availsble.

F!ND%NGS

ACCESSION: # AQOQ05087370ZA XR/XR tiand LT rain 3V 73130
IMPRESSION

1. Noaauns fm(ure or iﬁﬂm

2. Mild persistent fiexion of the small finger PIP joint.

Diclated By:  Garvin:Danel NO o
Signed By Garvin,Danvel DO Signed Date/Time: 07/17124 1123

OD/DT: 017724 1055
CC: Washbym,John A MO |
Qzatks Healthcare
Repart #.0717-06000
Patient: Dunn,Gary Lee.  NOB: SIS/ 1956
Dictation DIT° 07177241055
’{ransenption’ : ‘RAD Deoc for VRAD
[+}
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Patient. Dunn. Gary Lee

‘DOB B/ 1956

AgeiSex. 68 /M.

Loe RALY Room/Bed:
-Attending Dr; John A Washbum MD

Ozarks Healthcare
‘1100 Keritucky Ave.
West Plains, MO 65775

Xﬁzgf Raport
Signed.

Unit # OMo0059W
Accté:OV5107850MR
ADM Date: 07/17/24

Ordering Provider/Qrdering MD; Washburn, John A MO
Date of Service: 07/17724
2 km LY 3v-73562

TECHNIQUE!

Imaging protocol; Radiologic exam of the left knee.

Views: 3 views.

COMPARISCN -
No relevant prior studies available,

FINDINGS

ACCESSION # ACODO5087 3802A XR/XR knee LT 3V 73582
tMPRE$S80N

Dicisted By Garvin.Danjet DO
SignedBy.  Garvin,Daniel DO

DO/OT: 07/17/24 1055

CC: Washburn,John AMD -
Ozarks Healthcare:

Repon #,0717:00@»

1Tofy

Pelient: Dunn, Gary_ Lee DO WS 1956

Signed Date/Time: 07617124 1125
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OZA CUN!G . A 5
Patient name; Dunn,Gary | Lee
:Awount#' CV0021413802-

Diagnoses
Assauft Y09

Annual Assessments
Date m Due
'Annuai Assessment Dates &ext Due:

nt  10725/24
ment 10/25/24.

maf NextAm ~vz;:.;_

Intake

Visit Reasons: Assaulted
30

: lél the r&son for visit-related to pain mauagsment‘?» ‘No
‘Allergies

- Last Reconciled 07/16/24by John. A Washburn; MD

wmmu. DOB:3
D%c\aﬁmﬂﬂ' 07/18/24 4255
otion: Tonya R Dunn

22 EXHIBIT 32



—m—— o m ry v av

QZACLINIC 4
Patient name: Dunn,Gary Les
Account # CVO021413802

Position . Sittin
Respiration ooy | e
Pulse i » - 7
_Pulse Source:. __| Pulse Oximeter | Pulse Oximeter
Temp : ‘

—— o S— : - o e

Temp Source o CSkin____|  Tympanic
Puise Oximetry (%) ___ | e é

Oxygen Delivery Methad __Room Air

etk Rty

Oxygen Flow Rate v . _4

Physical Exam
Narrative: EXAM NARRATIVE:




Cesober 21, 2024 Page | of 4

Fulton County District Courd

23518 pm
Procket
Case #ly CR24-34
Campbell, Dave ‘ ; o,
Defendsnt Information amphe:l. 440 Main 81, Mammoth Spring . Arkansas 72584/
Name: Campbell, Dave DOB: 09/30/53 Age: 69 88N HmPhoue; S m
. Sex: Male Hi: 000 DL % AR/7944021095 WrkPhone: NCIC: I
lattorney: ce: White Wi O plo FP: x
Cuse Informatian
Caset: CR-24:-541 Filing Date:. 0722724 : Warrant First Apprar Date:
Charge Docament Information
Chyp Doett: WR-24-285 Bookingt: Witn
Viol Bate: 0772224 No Jail;
Filing Date: 07/22/.24 No fease:
Type: Warram No Release Date:
Jurisy Oity of Mammoth Spring 070 nid A 3600
PINg 0.00
Officer : Prest. Kevin 313203
Comments:
Qwuwmﬁ Inlormation
Cnu: Offs; Charge Plea Finding Dispasition
| ] Batery 3rd Degree NONE NONE NONE
Date Type Start Due Mon  Unit TE#
§722/24  Bail Fine; Qw& Fee & Restitution 3 2294 Yes S o0
. Oriter ﬁw B 551000 Adf Torab $0.00 Total Receipts: § 0.00 Balanee: 'S 51000
Bescription
072224 Warrant LB ﬁw_%«; Warrant Issued as Case# CR-24-541 on 072224, Initial Assessment for $330.00 of ?:m, $100.00 of Cost; Fees of

(84000 for Jail Booking dnd Admin Fee:$20.00 for City Jail Fee Mammoth Spring:$20.00 for County Jail Fee: ) for Total
Fees'of §

0772224 Warrant LB 80:00 ; fora Total Amount of $510.00.

08/14/24  Activity LB Case ﬁ&ggg for Arraignmenton 10/09/24

08/14724 Warrant LB Aftidavit Warrant Served by Prest, Kevin on ammimmn,

091024 Activip BH Hearing Scheduled 1o W06/ 33 { Arveighment).. Requuséed by the Defénse
10/B624  Activity BH Hearing Scheduled to 0828250 Artatgniment).




) 2 o 1 of
Qetaber 21, 2024 Fulton County District Court Page |.of |

2:35;29 pm
Dacket
Case s CR24.342
- . o
Defendant information Campbell, Dave 440 Main St. Mammath Spring . Arkansas 72534 mx
Name: Campbell, Dave DOB: 09/30/53 Age: 69 SSN: HmPhooe: SID: )
Sex: Male Hu: 0.00 DL AR 9RHI2 1099 WrkPhone: NCIC: T
rRey: Rage: White Wi 8 Enmplover: 2 ﬂ
Case Information
ase #f:  CR-24-542 Filing Date:  07/2224  Case Tvpe: Criminal First Appear Date:
Charge Document Information
WR-24-285 Accident: No Booking#:
07/:22724 Radar: No Jail:
07722724 Paged: No Release:
Warrant Seatbelt: No Redease Date:
Cite ot Mammoth Spring Specd: 67 O Bond Amft: 850,00
; BAC: B400 Bond Co:
Officer : Prest. Kevin Statutedt: 5-13-.203
i__Comments:
Charge information
" Chrg Doci: Cutd: Off#: Charge b “Plea . Disposition
$ R-24-283 i 2 Battery 3rd Degree NONE NONE NONE
hre Docl Chrg#  Date Type Deseription ; m.n Bue Mon Unit V1t Oty Ami Susp Oty
0722524 Bail Fine, Cost, Fee & Restitution ﬁ.ﬁm 2 Yes S6al000  S000
Order Toml: $ 61000 Adj Total: $0.00 Total Receipts: $0.00 Balance: $4610.00
mploves
LB AfH %5& Warrant Issued as Caset CR-24-542 on 07/22/24. Initial Assessment for $430.00 of Fine: $100.00 of Cost; Fees of
{540.00 for Jail Booking and Admin Fee:$20.00 for City Jail Fee Mammoth Sprivg:$20,00 for County Jail Fee; ) for Tota!
Feesof §
, LB RE.00 for ¢ Total Amount of $610.00.
08714724 Activity LB Case Scheduled for Arraignment on 10/09/24,
108/14/24 Warram LB Affidavit Warranr Served by Prest, Kevine o 08714724,
09/10:24 Activity BH Hearing Scheduled to 11706124 1 Arraignmient). Requested by thie Defens
1624 Activity BH Hearing Scheduled 1o 01728725 { Arraignment).




Cretober 21, 2024

Fulton County Disirict Cout

Page Fof ]

2:35:39 pm
Docker
Caxe#r CR-24543 ~
Defendant hiformation Campbell, Dave 440 Main St, Mammoth Spring , Arkansas 72554 0
) . | e
Campbell, Dave POB: 093053 Age: 69 SN HmPhone: S1D: o0
Sex: Male HE: 000 DL ¥ AR/ 944021099 WrkPhone: NCIC: T
Race: White Wi 0 Emplover: Ep: x
Case Information
Case#i: CR-24-543 Filin L 022124 :  Warrant First Appear Date:
Charge Document Information
Clirg Dogll: WR-24-285 No Booking#:
Viol Date: 07:22/24 i No Jall:
Filing Date: 07/22224 Paced: No Release:
Type: Warrant “ elense Date:
Juris: City of Mammoth Spring Speed: 0/ 0 Bopd Amt: 30,00
PIN: BAC: 6.00 Bond Co:
Officer: Prest, Kevin Statuted: $-13-203
L. Comments:
Charge Information ©
Chrg Doen: Chrgy i Off; Charge Plea Finding Hspos Disp Date
WR-24-285 i i 3 Battery 3rd Degree NONE NONE NONE
Date  Tvpe Deseription Start Due Mon  Unit T/R# Oty Amt
07/22/24  Bail . Fine. Cost, Fee & Restitution (7722724 $710.00 $0.00
Qrder Total: $710.00 Adj Total: $0.00 $ 0.00 . Balance: $ 710,80

Event Information

Date Description Emplovee
07/22/24 Warrant: LB
OT/22°24 Warrant LB
D8/14/24  Activity LB
08714/24. Warrant LB
109740124 Activity 8H
T 1624 Activity BH

Event ¥ mw,a

Affidavit Warrant Issued as Cased CR-24-543 on 07/22/24. Initial Assessment for $530.00 of Fine: $100.00 of Cost: Fees of
($40.00 for Jail Booking and Admin Fee:$20.00 for City Jail Fee Mammoth Spring;$20.00 for County Jail Fee: ) for Total

Fees of §
£3.00 1 tor a Toml Amount of 871

0.00,

Case Scheduled for Arraignment on 1070924,
Affidavit Warram Served by Prest Kovin on 0871424,

Hearing Scheduled to 1 106/24 { Artaignnwent). Requested by the Defénse,

Hearig Schedoled to 01 2823 { Armslignment).




Ocober 21, 2024
2:35:48 pom

Fulton County District Court

Puocket
Casg i CR-24.544

Page + ol

) Yav o
Defesdant fnlormation Campbell, Dave 440 Main St, Mammoth Spring . Arkansas 72554 00
Name: Campbetl Dave DOR: 09/30/55 Ager 69 e dh, 0 HmPhone: h1isd %
Sex: Male He: 000 DL #: AR /944021099 WrkPhone: CIC: T
Ruace: White Wi 0 Emplover: EP: ﬂ
Case Infarmation
Case fi: CR-24-544 Filing Date:  07/22/24  Case Type; Criminal Case Category:  Warrant First Appear Date:
Charge Document Information
Chry Docki: "WR-24.285 Accident: No Bookingd:
Viol Date; 07/22724 Radar: No dail:
Fitin r 07:22724 Paced: No Release:
Type: Warrant . Senthelt: No Release Date:
Juris: City of Maminoth Spring Speed: 0/ 0 Bond Amt: $:0.00
PIN#: BAC: 800
Officer: Prest, Kevin 71207
Cominenty:
Gharge Inforsiation ,
) Doc Cont:  Oft: Charge _ Plea Finding Disposition Disp Date ™
{ 1 Disorderly Conduct NONE NONE NONE
¢ Doc Chigii Date Type Description Start Dug Mon  Unit T/ # Div Amt SUs
WR-24:285 1 §7:22124  Bail Fine: Cost. Fee & Restitgtion 6772224 Yes $:26500 $ 0.00

Order Total: $265.00 Adj Total: $0.00

Total Receipts: 8 000

Balance: § 265.00

722724 Warrant

0722124 Warrant
08714724 Activity
08714724 “Warrant
09/10/24  Activity
1071224 Activity

m?w_zwhw
LB

LB
LB
LR
BH
BH

Exent Text

Affidavit Warrant Issued as Case® CR=24-544 on 07722/24. Initial Assessment for $125.00 of Fine; $100.00 of Cost: Fees of
(§20.00 for City Jail Fee Mammoth Spring;$20.00 for County Jail Fee: ) for Total Fees of $40.00 © for 2 Total Amountof

$265.00.

Case Scheduled for Arraignment on 100924,

Affidavit Warrant Served by Prost, Kevin on 08/14/24,

Hearing Scheduled 1o 11/06/24 { Arraignmant). Reguested by the Defense,
Hearing. Schodiled 1o 0128/25 ¢ Arraignnwent):
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07/16/24 9-1-1 Call to Fulton County Sheriff's Department from Dave Campbell

DISPATCHER: Fulton County 9-1-1. What is your emergency?

DAVE CAMPBEL: 435 Bethel.

DISPATCHER: What’s going on?

DAVE CAMPBELL: In Mammoth — Mammoth Spring.

DISPATCHER: What’s going on?

DAVE CAMPBELL: Randy and Gary Dun, uh, have a thing at the City Hall here
in Mammoth Spring.

DISPATCHER: Uh-huh.

DAVE CAMPBELL: They’re not supposed to be up there at her property and
they’re up there trying to accost her right now.

DAWN CAMPBELL: And threatening us.

DAVE CAMPBELL: And they’re threatening us. We’ve been taking care of her
For three-and-a-half years.

DISPATCHER: Okay. What is your name?

DAVE CAMPBELL: Dave Campbell and my wife Dawn Campbell and we’re
fixing to go out there.

DISPATCHER: All right. Are there any weapons involved?

DAVE CAMPBELL: I’'m gonna be carrying. I don’t what know what they’ve
got. I never met one of the gentlemen.

DISPATCHER: All right. Well, I will get officers right there. Make sure your
weapon stays holstered.

DAVE CAMPBELL:- Yeah. Unless I need it for self defense. Right?

DISPATCHER: Well, yeah. Unless —

DAVE CAMPBELL: Yeah. Okay. Thank you.

1 EXHIBIT 34
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07/16/24 9-1-1 Call to Fulton County Sheriff’'s Department from Dave Campbell

DISPATCHER: That’s a last step. Okay?

DAVE CAMPBEL: Right. Right.

DISPATCHER: All right.

DAVE: Gotit. All right. Okay. Thank you

DISPATCHER: Bye-bye

DAVE CAMPBELL: Thanks. Bye-bye.
CERTIFICATE OF TRANSCRIPTION

I, Catrenia Dawn Campbell, served as a Certified Shorthand Reporter for the State of
Oklahoma. This transcript was from the audios of the 07/16/24 phone-call to 9-1-1 by

Dave Campbell and can be verified with the file located on the following secure web
link:

https://www.moarknews.com/911call.html

Respectfully Submitted,
/s! Cotremnia Doawn Comppell
Catrenia Dawn Campbell 10/09/24
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TRANSCRIPT
From Video Evidence

For
Incident Report At
435 Bethel Avenue
Mammoth Spring, AR
on July 16, 2024

Parties Present:

Betty Dunn, Dave Campbell, Dawn Campbell, Gary Dunn,
Randall Dunn, Brenda Dunn, Mammoth Spring Police
Officer Crawford, Fulton County Investigator Smith,
Fulton County Deputy Cantrell and the Fulton County
Ambulance Service

EXHIBIT 35
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July 16, 2024 Incident Report Transcript — 435 Bethel Avenue

RECORDING NO. 1

RANDY OR GARY DUNN: You’'re supposed to stay off this place.(00:04)
DAWN CAMPBELL: We want to check on Betty.

DAVE CAMPBELL: They’re on their way, *sshole. (00:06)

DAWN CAMPBELL: Betty is our friend.(00:07)

RANDY DUNN: No, she is not your friend. (00:08)

DAWN CAMPBELL (to Gary Dunn): HEY, HEY! (00:09)

(As Dave entered Betty’s carport, Gary Dunn slapped Dave with a laminated notice
Defendants made for Betty to warn her not to use the stove and dryer at the same
time, since they are on the same circuit. Gary was holding the notice in his hands,
which he took from Betty’s home. As Dave walked toward Betty, who was standing
at her side doorway, Gary pushed Dave as Dave approached Betty’s steps.)

GARY DUNN: Don’t you come up here. You ain’t going to do nothing. (00:13)
DAWN CAMPBELL: We are going to check on Betty. (00:14)
(Gary Dunn pushed on Dave for approximately 10 seconds.)
DAVE CAMPBELL: I am going to stand on the porch and the cops are on their
way. (00:15)
GARY RANDY: Not on the porch.
DAWN CAMPBELL (to Gary Dunn): Hey, get off of him. (00:18)
(Dave turned around and pulled a punch to Gary’s stomach.) (00:18.)

(Gary did not seem fazed by the hit to the stomach; as Gary waved his finger and
stolen sign.) (0:19)

GARY DUNN: He hit me. That’s assault. (00:21)
DAWN CAMPBELL: He did not. (00:21)

DAVE CAMPBELL: He pushed me. (00:21)

1
EXHIBIT 35
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July 16, 2024 Incident Report Transcript — 435 Bethel Avenue

DAWN CAMPBELL: Dave. (00:23)

RANDY DUNN: Now, he’s gonna go to jail. (00:23)

DAWN CAMPBELL: Dave, leave him alone. (00:23)

DAVE CAMPBELL: Yeah, you betcha I hit you; you’re a little *sshole. (00:23)
RANDY DUNN: Now, he’s gonna go to jail. (00:25)

DAWN CAMPBELL: Hey, I’ve got it on camera. He hit first. (00:29)

DAVE CAMPBELL: He touched me. (00:31)

RANDY DUNN: He did not. (00:31)

DAVE CAMPBELL: He kept pushing the sh*t out of me. Now, back off

me.(:31)

DAWN CAMPBELL: He sure did. (00:33)

RANDY DUNN (to Dave Campbell): Don’t -- You can’t go in this house. It’s

mine and Gary’s. (00:37)

DAWN CAMPBELL: Betty lives here. (00:38)
DAVE CAMPBELL: Oh, is it? (00:38)
RANDY DUNN : Yes. (00:38)

DAVE CAMPBELL: Well, that’s funny, because they’ve got paperwork down

there that says it’s not yours. (00:41)

DAWN CAMPBELL: Okay. Let’s let Betty talk. (00:42)

RANDY DUNN: All they’ve got now it says it is. (00:45)

DAWN CAMPBELL: Let’s let Betty talk. Let’s let Betty talk. Okay? (00:45)
GARY DUNN: She needs an evaluation. (00:47)

DAVE CAMPBELL: Is this Gary? Is this Gary? (00:49)
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GARY DUNN: Yes. (00:50)
BETTY DUNN: That’s him. (00:50)
DAVE CAMPBELL: Sh*t. He’s just as bad as this guy. (00:52)

DAWN CAMPBELL: Do you want to go with him, Betty? Do you want to go

with him? (00:54)

BETTY DUNN: No. (00:55)

(Betty Dunn shook her head from side to side indicating she did not want to go.)

RANDY DUNN: He ain’t taking her nowhere. (00:56)

DAWN CAMPBELL: (to Betty) Well, if you don’t want to go, you don’t have to

go. (00:57)

GARY DUNN: It’s not even up to her. (00:59)

DAWN CAMPBELL: Yes, itis. (1:00)

GARY DUNN: This is the hospital. (1:01)

DAVE CAMPBELL: The hospital? (01:02)

BETTY DUNN: Oh, you’ll think hospital. This is my home. (1:03)
DAWN CAMPBELL: You don’t have to take her to the hospital. (01:04)

DAVE CAMPBELL: Let’s see it. Let’s see it, because you’re going to have to

show the cops here in a second, because they’re on their way after I called, *sshole.

BETTY DUNN: This is my home. (1:09)

GARY DUNN: Let’s see where you’ve got it that we own this. (1:10)

DAWN CAMPBELL: What? (1:12)

DAVE CAMPBELL: You own the house? You took her house away from your
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mother?

RANDY DUNN: No, we didn’t.

DAVE CAMPBELL: That’s fine and dan —(01:12)
RANDY DUNN: She give it to us.(1:14)

DAVE CAMPBELL: She give it to you? (01:16)

RANDY DUNN: Yes, back when she had some sense, before the dementia

kicked in so bad. (1:21)

DAVE CAMPBELL: Oh, that makes a lot of sense giving her house away of forty

years. (01:23)

DAWN CAMPBELL: Okay. Okay. (00:24)

RANDY DUNN: Yeah. (01:25)

DAWN CAMPBELL: Dave, let’s just wait for the cops to get here. (01:26)
BRENDA DUNN: Yeah, you’ll think cops, Hun. (01:29)

DAWN CAMPBELL: Well, they’re on their way. (01:31)

BRENDA DUNN: Yeah. They need to be. (01:33)

DAWN CAMPBELL: Yeah, they do. (01:34)

BRENDA DUNN: There ain’t no sense in none of yuns doing this. (01:35)
DAWN CAMPBELL: Doing what? (01:35)

BRENDA DUNN: What you’re doing.(01:37)

DAWN CAMPBELL: What are we doing? (01:37)

RANDY DUNN: You’re trying to get this house, is what you’re doing. (01:39)
DAWN CAMPBELL: We don’t want this house. (01:40)

BETTY DUNN (looking at Randy Dunn) : Yes, they want the house. (01:43)
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DAWN CAMPBELL: What? (01:44)

BETTY DUNN: (Looking at Randy DUNN) They want the house. (01:46)

DAWN CAMPBELL: We don’t want your house. (01:47)

DAVE CAMPBELL: These guys want your house. (01:50)

GARY DUNN: No. What for? (01:51)

RANDY DUNN: (on phone) You need to get the cops up here to 435 — 535
Bethel. (inaudible) (01:52)

DAVE CAMPBELL '(to Gary) You’re a piece of work, Man. (01:55)

GARY DUNN: Well, what about you and that Woodland Lakes estates up in
Missouri? That was -- (01:59)

DAVE CAMPBELL: They stole our land. I'll be happy to talk about it. We’ve
got a webpage called WoodlandLakesNews.com. (2:00)

DAWN CAMPBELL: That’s right. (02:03)

DAVE CAMPBELL: You can go there, *sshole, and read about it. (2:03)

DAWN CAMPBELL: That is right, Sir. (02:05)

DAVE CAMPBELL: Because it’s all documented. They stole our land. (02:09)

DAWN CAMPBELL: It’s all fraud. It’s all fraud. (02:10)

DAVE CAMPBELL: What do you mean, Woodland Lakes? Who gives a rat’s
*ss. Woodland Lakes. (02:12)

GARY DUNN: He called me, “*sshole.” That’s assault. (02:18)
DAWN CAMPBELL: You are an *sshole. I think you’re an *sshole. I think
you’re a big-time *sshole. (02:19)

DAVE CAMPBELL: When you come up and you start pushing on my *ss, that’s
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assault. (02:19)

RANDY DUNN: He didn’t push on you. (02:20)

GARY DUNN: I didn’t hit you. (02:21)

DAVE CAMPBELL (to Gary Dunn): You hit me first. You’re a f***ing liar.
(02:24)

DAVE CAMPBELL (to Randy Dunn): You know what? You’re f***ing Randy
Dunn. (2:26)

DAWN CAMPBELL: (to Brenda Dunn) And you said we stole from your family
and we didn’t steal anything. You’re a liar, too, Lady. (02:27)

DAVE CAMPBELL: (to Randy Dunn) You weren’t even watching when he came
out pushing on me. (02:28)

RANDY DUNN: (to Dave Campbell) I was, too. I was standing right here.
(02:32)

DAWN CAMPBELL (to Gary Dunn) : You stay away from me, Sir. (02:34)

DAVE CAMPBELL: (to Randy Dunn) Well, then you did see him push on me,
*sshole. You just said he was pushing me away. (02:35)

GARY DUNN: [ was trying to get to her. (02:35)

RANDY DUNN: No, I didn’t say it. You’re not putting words — (02:37)
(Dave Campbell was standing in front of Betty Dunn, who was at her side door.)

DAVE CAMPBELL: (to Randy) Back the f*** up. (02:38)

RANDY DUNN: You touched me this time. (02:39)

DAWN CAMPBELL: (to Randy Dunn) Listen. No. Stop. (2:40)

DAVE CAMPBELL: (to Randy Dunn) Get the f*** away from me. (02:40)
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GARY DUNN: Brenda, get in the car and get down there in a hurry. (02:42)

(Randy Dunn approached Dave Campbell and pointed his finger near Dave’s face.)
(02:43)

DAVE CAMPBELL: (to Randy Dunn) Get the f*** away from me. (02:44)

DAWN CAMPBELL (to Randy Dunn): Randy, stop hitting my husband. (02:44)

DAVE CAMPBELL: (to Randy Dunn) You keep touching me and I’m gonna kick
your *ss. (2:46)

RANDY DUNN: I didn’t touch you. (02:46)

DAWN CAMPBELL: (to Randy Dunn) Yes, you did. I saw you. (02:48)

DAVE CAMPBELL: You put your fat *ss up against mine. You backed up
against me. (2:50)

RANDY DUNN: No, you walked up against me. (02:51)

DAWN CAMPBELL: (to Randy Dunn) Yes, you did. I’ve got you on camera
and you need to calm down. (02:53)

GARY DUNN: Brenda’s going to the City now. (02:56)

DAVE CAMPBELL: Right here, Dude. (02:57)

RANDY DUNN: You pushed up right up to me. (02:57)

DAVE CAMPBELL: Right here on film. (2:58)

BETTY DUNN: All of you leave.

DAWN CAMPBELL: Get. Get.

RANDY DUNN (to Betty Dunn): Huh?

DAWN CAMPBELL: Get out of here. (3:00)

BETTY DUNN: This is my house. (03:01)
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DAWN CAMPBELL: Ran -- Betty said to leave and you need to leave. (03:01)
BETTY DUNN: This is my house.

DAVE CAMPBELL: She’s telling you to get off her property.(03:04)

DAWN CAMPBELL: Leave. Leave. (03:04)

RANDY DUNN: We can come in and inspect this house anytime we want to.

(03:07)

DAWN CAMPBELL: (to Randy Dunn) You will not. (03:08)
DAVE CAMPBELL: You can also fix the sh*t that’s wrong with it? (03:09)

GARY DUNN: Well, you wouldn’t give us a damn key where we can get in to

help. (03:11)

RANDY DUNN: Did you know that she’s —(03:11)

DAVE CAMPBELL: Why would I give this *sshole a key? (03:13)

GARY DUNN: Well, how was I gonna fix it? (03:16)

DAVE CAMPBELL (to Gary) It’d be like giving you a key, wouldn’t it? (03:18)
DAWN CAMPBELL: You’re not going to fix it. (03:18)

BETTY DUNN: You haven’t been to see me in seven years. (03:20)

RANDY DUNN: (to Betty Dunn) And I didn’t want to see you today. (03:22)
DAVE CAMPBELL You know, you two are younger than me. (03:23)

DAVE CAMPBELL: You look like a f***ing old man. (03:25)

GARY DUNN: How old are you? That’s because I work. (03:26)

DAVE CAMPBELL: I’ll be 69 in a couple of months. How old are you? (03:29)
GARY DUNN: I'm 68. (03:30)

DAVE CAMPBELL: You were born in 57. I was born in 55. (03:33)
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GARY DUNN: No. I was born in ’56. You just ain’t very good Math. (03:36)

DAVE CAMPBELL: Oh, you were born in *56? (03:36)

DAWN CAMPBELL: Will y’all stop? (03:37)

DAVE CAMPBELL: I’'m just going by what somebody told me. (03:39)

DAWN CAMPBELL: Will y’all just stop right now and think of Betty? Think of
this lady right here. (03:44)

GARY DUNN: We are. (03:44)

DAVE CAMPBELL: Yeah, you are. That’s why you’re trying to kick her out. .
(03:45)

DAWN CAMPBELL: This is all about her. (03:45)

DAVE CAMPBELL: Get away from her house. (03:46)

GARY DUNN: No, you can’t — (03:48)

DAVE CAMPBELL: Get away from her house. (03:49)

RANDY DUNN: This is our house. (03:50)

DAVE CAMPBELL: Then show me some paperwork. (03:53)

RANDY DUNN: It’s at the City Hall. (03:53)

DAVE CAMPBELL: Well, then go get it. (03:54)

GARY DUNN: Now, why don’t you go down there? You won’t go, because
you’re afraid to go. (03:58)

DAVE CAMPBELL: Idon’t need to. I don’t need to. I’m defending Betty.
(03:59)

DAWN CAMPBELL: Stop, I've got to say something. Stop, I want to say
something. Jamie , the chief of police, already told us there is a paper at the city hall that

9
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says y’all are not allowed here until she is dead. NOW GET OUT OF HERE NOW!
(04:08)

RANDY DUNN (to Dawn Campbell): No, it doesn’t. You’re not our boss.
(04:10)

DAWN CAMPBELL: Get out of here. Betty wants you gone. Now, get. Get out
of here. (4:14)

RANDY DUNN: I didn’t hear her say nothing. (04:15)

GARY DUNN: We’re not going, because you’re mentally incompetent. (04:16)

BETTY DUNN: Get. Get, Get. (04:16)

DAWN CAMPBELL: Get out. She is not mentally incompetent. (04:17)

DAVE CAMPBELL (to Gary Dunn): You’re full of sh*t. Talk about mentally
incompetent. (04:19)

GARY DUNN: At least I worked all my life. Have you ever worked? (04:23)

BETTY DUNN: I’ve got company coming. (04:33)

DAVE CAMPBELL: Have I ever worked? (04:24)

RANDY DUNN: Who you got coming? (04:25)

DAWN CAMPBELL: Her family. Now, get out of here. (04:25)

GARY DUNN: Who’s her family? (04:28)

DAWN CAMPBELL: She has a lot of family on her other side; not your side.
Now, go. (04:30)

GARY DUNN: Like who? Truman? (04:31)

RANDY DUNN: On who’s side? (04:32)

DAWN CAMPBELL: It’s none of your business. (04:33)

10
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GARY DUNN: That’s it. (04:34)

DAWN CAMPBELL: It’s none of your business. (04:36)

GARY DUNN: It is, too. It’s my business. (04:37)

DAWN CAMPBELL: No, it’s not, because you don’t take care of her. (04:41)

DAVE CAMPBELL: Your family. You haven’t seen your mom in five years,

*sshole. (04:43)

DAWN CAMPBELL: She wants — (04:44)

GARY DUNN: You’re a liar right there, aren’t ya? (4:45)

DAVE CAMPBELL: Is that right? We’ve been here four years. (04:46)
GARY DUNN: Well, I seen her Saturday night. (04:46)

DAVE CAMPBELL: Well, yeah, you did, because we saw you up here. (04:48)
GARY DUNN: I used to come up. (04:48)

DAWN CAMPBELL: That was Friday. (04:49)

DAVE CAMPBELL: You told her to get our van out of her yard, the van that

makes it looks like somebody lives here. (04:53)

GARY DUNN: It doesn’t matter. That’s a trash pile. (04:55)
DAVE CAMPBELL: You’re an *sshole, Man; you guys are *ssholes. (04:54)

DAWN CAMPBELL: It made her feel comfortable, because it kept people away

from breaking in. (04:59)

DAVE CAMPBELL: You’re a lying *sshole. (04:59)

DAWN CAMPBELL: And then you made her move that van. You are a lowlife.

(05:00)

RANDY DUNN (to Dave Campbell): A warrant’s out for you. (05:04)

11
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DAWN CAMPBELL: You don’t even care about her safety. (05:04)

DAVE CAMPBELL: A warrant? (05:05)

GARY DUNN: You haven’t seen low until you go to court. (05:06)

DAVE CAMPBELL: You better watch what the hell you say, because that’s
slander. (05:10)

BETTY DUNN: (Laughing.) (05:10)

DAWN CAMPBELL: We’re ready. Hey, I’ll take you on in court, F**¥er.
(05:11)

DAVE CAMPBELL: That little bitch over there, your wife, she did the same
thing up there at the hospital. You’re lucky we don’t sue your *ss. (05:14)

GARY DUNN: For what? (05:15)

DAWN CAMPBELL: For defamation. Defamation. (05:16)

DAVE CAMPBELL: For slander and defamation. Just like this little f***er’s
doing right now. (05:20)

DAWN CAMPBELL: We have until — we have until January. (05:22)

DAVE CAMPBELL (pointing to Randy) This little son of a bitch is saying we’ve
got a warrant out for us. (05:23)

RANDY DUNN: I didn’t say you’ve got a warrant out. (05:26)

GARY DUNN: He didn’t say a warrant. They’ve got it down there and they’re —
(05:27)

DAVE CAMPBELL: They’ve got a warrant down there for me? (05:30)

DAVE CAMPBELL: Well, let’s be clear when you say there’s a warrant out.
(05:33)
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GARY DUNN: No, they’ve got it down there. It’s to keep you off of this
property. (05:34)

DAWN CAMPBELL: You’re a liar, Gary. You’re a liar, because I already talked
to Jamie Turnbough and he said there’s a letter to keep y’all out of here. Now, leave.
(05:40)

GARY DUNN: No. We was just down at City Hall. (05:40)

(Gary Dunn steps into Dawn Campbell’s personal space.)

DAVE CAMPBELL: Back away from my wife. (05:41)

DAWN CAMPBELL: (to Gary) Stay away from me. I do not want your breath
on me. (05:44)

GARY DUNN: (to Dave) Then get a -- Get away from my mother. (05:45)

BETTY DUNN: Ha. Your mother .(05:45)

GARY DUNN: When I was trying to get to my mother you pushed me down and
hit me. (05:48)

DAVE CAMPBELL: Everybody around here knows we’ve been taking care of
your mom for three years. Over three years. (05:50)

GARY DUNN: Because you’re owed money. (05:53)

DAWN CAMPBELL: We don’t want any money. We’re the one that pays.
(05:55)

DAVE CAMPBELL: (to Gary while pointing at the bank across the street) Listen
here, that right there is in your name. All that money sh*t is in your name. So you’re
gonna look like a long-gone-mad mother f**%er. (06:02)

GARY DUNN: She took it all off. (06:03)
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DAWN CAMPBELL (to Gary) Why are you taking — (06:04)

DAVE CAMPBELL: (to Randy) She didn’t like you. (to Gary) For some reason
she likes your *ss. (06:06)

GARY DUNN: That’s because I’m honest. (06:07)

DAWN CAMPBELL: (to Gary) Hey, why are you taking that? Why are you
taking that paper? (06:11)

DAVE CAMPBELL: Oh, you’re honest? By saying that we’re wanting her
money? (06:11)

DAWN CAMPBELL: (to Gary) Why are you taking that paper? (06:11)

GARY DUNN: We’re taking this to a lawyer. (06:13)

DAWN CAMPBELL: Why? (06:13)

RANDY DUNN: (to Dave) 1 didn’t say you had a warrant out. (06:14)

GARY DUNN: Because somebody has changed the power on that. (06:17)

DAWN CAMPBELL For what? Nobody changed the power. (06:18)

GARY DUNN: It was hooked up to thirty. (06:19)

DAVE CAMPBELL: Oh, yeah, yeah, yeah. Sure it was. Sure it was. (06:22)

RANDY DUNN: The dryer runs on a 30 amp and the stove top runs on a 50 amp.
(06:23)

GARY DUNN: (to Dave) How much did you get for the central heat and air?
(06:26)

RANDY DUNN: It’s not the same one. It’s always on a different circuit. (06:27)

GARY DUNN: How much did you get for the central heat and air that you put on
Craigslist? (06:29)
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DAWN CAMPBELL: We didn’t get anything from anything. (06:31)

(Brenda Dunn returned from City Hall and drove through Betty Dunn’s front yard,
across her sidewalk and through her flowers.) (06:33)

(Dave Campbell’s arms are behind his back. Gary Dunn looked at Dave’s waist.)
(06:36)

GARY DUNN (to Dave): Are you carrying a weapon? (06:37)

DAVE CAMPBELL: Yes, I am. The cops know. I told them. (06:39)

DAWN CAMPBELL: SoamI. (06:39)

GARY DUNN: Get it off. This is private property and you have to leave. (06:43)

DAWN CAMPBELL: This is Betty’s property. (06:45)

DAVE CAMPBELL: You are a notch away from being knocked on your *ss.
(06:47)

RANDY DUNN: It’s not Betty’s property. (06:48)

GARY DUNN (to Betty Dunn): Mom, it’s not. (06:48)

DAWN CAMPBELL: Betty lives here. Betty has a deed.(06:50)

RANDY DUNN: (to Brenda Dunn) What did they say? (06:52)

BRENDA DUNN: They’re on the way. (06:53)

DAVE CAMPBELL: Yeah, that’s what they say. They had to get out of bed.
(06:53)

BRENDA DUNN (to Gary) Get away from him. You get back from him. (06:58)

DAWN CAMPBELL: Please, please stay away. (06:58)

DAVE CAMPBELL: Yeah. Get back from me. (06:58)

GARY DUNN (to Brenda Dunn): Okay. Did you tell them he assaulted me

(7:00)
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DAWN CAMPBELL: (to Gary Dunn) You assaulted him first and I have it on
camera. (07:02)

GARY DUNN: How did I assault him? I was trying to get to her. (07:03)

DAWN CAMPBELL: You came up and pushed him. (07:05)

DAVE CAMPBELL: You came up and pushed me twice before you got knocked
on your *ss. (07:06)

GARY DUNN: I was trying to get to her. (07:08)

DAWN CAMPBELL (to Gary Dunn): You put your hands on him. (07:10)

DAVE CAMPBELL (to Gary Dunn): Over there, you were trying to get in here?
You're a-- (07:11)

GARY DUNN (to Dave Campbell): You put your hands on me right there before
--(07:13)

DAWN CAMPBELL (to Gary Dunn): You put your hands on him first. (07:14)
(Gary Dunn moved quickly toward Dawn Campbell and into her personal space.)

GARY DUNN (to Dawn Campbell): Lady, why don’t you go on back. (07:16)

DAWN CAMPBELL: I’'m not. (07:16)

DAVE CAMPBELL: (to Gary Dunn) Back off my wife. (07:16)

RANDY DUNN: And you pushed him again. (07:17)

GARY DUNN (to Randy Dunn): Take the video.

DAVE CAMPBELL: (to Gary Dunn) Back off my wife. (07:18)

DAWN CAMPBELL: Yeah, because -- (07:18)

DAVE CAMPBELL: (to Gary Dunn) Back off my wife. (07:21)

GARY DUNN: You back away from my — (07:21)
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DAVE CAMPBELL: (to Gary) Back off my wife and my friend. (07:24)

(Brenda Dunn aggressed upon Dave Campbell and violated his personal space.)
07:24)

BRENDA DUNN (to Dave Campbell): Get —(07:25)

(Brenda Dunn pointed her finger near Dave Campbell’s face.) (07:25)

DAVE CAMPBELL: (to Brenda Dunn) You get the f*** out of here. (07:25)

GARY DUNN: You hit her «(07:27)

DAVE CAMPBELL (to Brenda) I don’t like you and you’d better get the f***
out of here. (07:28)

(Dave squared away his position and when Brenda placed her stomach on his, Dave
pushed Brenda out of the way with his stomach. He squared away to prevent her
from falling and she did not fall. His hands were behind his back.) (07:28)

(Gary Dunn never asked his wife if she was injured.)

GARY DUNN: Okay. That’s assault right there. That’s another one. (07:29)

DAWN CAMPBELL: No. She is in his face. He didn’t even touch her with his
arms. (07:32)

BRENDA DUNN: (to Dave) God be with you. (07:33)

DAVE CAMPBELL: Yeah. God be with me. I think He is with me. Thank you
very much. (07:36)

BRENDA DUNN: No, He’s not. (07:36)

GARY DUNN (to Randy): Video him when he’s pushing Brenda. (07:38)

DAVE CAMPBELL: (to Brenda) How many times do you go to McDonald’s?
(07:39)

BRENDA DUNN: (to Dave) Just leave my husband alone. Leave her alone.

17
EXHIBIT 35



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

July 16, 2024 Incident Report Transcript — 435 Bethel Avenue

Leave him alone. Leave ‘em all alone. (07:42)

DAVE CAMPBELL: Do you eat at McDonald’s a lot? (07:43)

RANDY DUNN: No, we don’t eat at McDonald’s. (07:44)

DAVE CAMPBELL: Oh, you don’t. (07:44)

GARY DUNN: No.

DAWN CAMPBELL: Why don’t y’all go home and go back to your business?
(07:46)

DAVE CAMPBELL: Yeah. Why don’t you go piss off somebody else? (07:47)

DAWN CAMPBELL: You never took care of her. Why do you want to take her
now? So you can take her house? (07:50)

BRENDA DUNN: Because she’s the one that called us. (07:51)

RANDY DUNN: Have you seen the way she treats us? (07:52)

(Officer Crawford parked in the alleyway between 440 Main and 435 Bethel.)

GARY DUNN: (pointing at Dave) Him is the — He -- He is the one that is causing
the trouble. (07:53)

BETTY DUNN: NO, HE AIN’T. (7:54)

RANDY DUNN: Yes, he is. (07:55)

DAVE CAMPBELL (to Officer Crawford): Crawford, you better call for backup.
(08:02)

BETTY DUNN (referring to Dave): He’s the one that takes me places. (08:04)

GARY DUNN (to Officer Crawford): We’ve been assaulted. (08:06)

DAWN CAMPBELL: He’s lying. (08:07)

GARY DUNN: Me, Randy and my wife. (08:07)
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DAWN CAMPBELL (to Officer Crawford): He’s lying. (08:07)

DAVE CAMPBELL (to Dawn Campbell): Baby. Baby. Baby, get over here.
(08:10)

DAWN CAMPBELL: He is lying. (08:10)

DAVE CAMPBELL (to Dawn Campbell): Let them go over there and whine.
(08:15)

GARY DUNN: He called me every name — every name I can think of. (08:15)

RANDY DUNN: They’re not supposed to be on this property. This is mine and
his property. (08:16)

DAWN CAMPBELL: I have it all on camera. (08:18)

BETTY DUNN: Ain’t that -- THIS IS MY HOUSE. (08:20)

RANDY DUNN (to Betty): IT IS NOT. (08:21)

DAWN CAMPBELL: They’re trying to get — (08:24)

DAVE CAMPBELL: You guys get the hell out of here. They’ve got a letter
down at City Hall that says you aren’t supposed to be here. (08:28)

RANDY DUNN: No, they don’t. (08:29)

GARY DUNN: Who wrote the letter? (08:30)

DAWN CAMPBELL: Jamie told me. (08:30)

DAVE CAMPBELL: Jamie’s the one that told us about it. I guess it’s from the
County. (08:31)

DAWN CAMPBELL: Jamie told me. (08:32)

GARY DUNN: Well, I bet you it’s from you. (08:33)

DAWN CAMPBELL: No, Jamie told me there’s a letter. (08:35)
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DAVE CAMPBELL: (to Gary) You’re so full of crap. (08:36)
RANDY DUNN: He assaulted him twice and me once. (08:37)
DAWN CAMPBELL: He’s lying; he is lying. (08:39)

DAVE CAMPBELL: If he comes up and pushes on me some more, he’s gonna get

knocked on his *ss again. (08:42)

GARY DUNN: I didn’t push on him. (08:43)

DAWN CAMPBELL: (to Gary Dunn) Yes, you did. (08:44)
GARY DUNN: I was trying to get to my mother. (08:44)
GARY DUNN: That’s my pen. (08:45)

RANDY DUNN: They both have weapons and they were told to get off of this

property. (08:47)

DAVE CAMPBELL: Good. Go getit. (08:49)

RANDY DUNN: (to Officer Crawford) Did you see that? (08:50)

GARY DUNN: I want to see my mother. (08:50)

DAWN CAMPBELL: They’re trying to take Betty away against her will. (08:53)

DAVE CAMPBELL: You’re not seeing your mother. She does not want to see

you, Butthole. (08:53)

BETTY DUNN: No, I don’t. No. (08:55)

OFFICER CRAWFORD: Y’all are not helping anything. (08:56)
DAWN CAMPBELL: No. (08:57)

DAVE CAMPBELL: Then tell them to get the hell out of here. (08:57)
DAWN CAMPBELL: Now that he’s here, we can — (09:00)

DAVE CAMPBELL: I don’t want them hurting her. (09:02)
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DAWN CAMPBELL: They’re not going to hurt her with — They’re not going to
hurt her in front of Crawford. (09:08)

RANDY DUNN: We ain’t gonna hurt her. If I was gonna hurt her, I'd’ve hurt
her a long time ago. (09:06

DAVE CAMPBELL: Kicking her out of her house, no, that’s not hurting her, nah.
(09:07)

DAWN CAMPBELL: They’re not going to hurt her in front cf a cop. (09:08)

DAVE CAMPBELL: Not coming to see her in the last five years, that’s not
hurting her. (09:09)

RANDY DUNN: Hey, you know what? The nicest thing she ever —(09:13)

GARY DUNN (while pushing Randy out of the carport) Back up. He’s gonna
arrest him. (09:13)

DAWN CAMPBELL: What? (09:13)

OFFICER CRAWFORD: So, okay, I need both sides. (09:16)

DAVE CAMPBELL: You’re gonna arrest me? You’re gonna arrest me? (09:18)

DAWN CAMPBELL: No, he’s making stuff up. (09:19)

DAVE CAMPBELL: Okay; he said it. (09:20)

OFFICER CRAWFORD: Okay. Now, what happened? (09:22)

RANDY DUNN: He knocked him down. (09:22)

GARY DUNN: He knocked me down. (09:22)

DAWN CAMPBELL: Because he pushed Dave. (09:23)

GARY DUNN: [ was trying to get in there to my mother. (09:24)

DAVE CAMPBELL: He pushed me twice. (09:26)
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GARY DUNN: He pushed me because I was trying to get in there to my mother.

And I never pushed you. (09:27)

DAWN CAMPBELL: You did, too. (09:28)

DAVE CAMPBELL: You’re a lying Sacajawea. (09:31)
BETTY DUNN: Oh, my God. If this ain’t a mess. (09:33)
GARY DUNN: He assaulted my wife. (09:33)

DAVE CAMPBELL: Because she got up and got in my face and pushed me.

(09:36)

GARY DUNN: She got up there and you was the one that assaulted --.(09:39)
DAWN CAMPBELL: No, you pushed him first. (09:40)

DAVE CAMPBELL: Yeah. (09:41)

RANDY DUNN: No, he didn’t. (09:42)

DAWN CAMPBELL: Yes, he did. (09:42)

GARY DUNN: Call (indiscernible) from Arkansas State Police in Mountain

Home and get him over here. (09:47)

DAVE CAMPBELL: Yeah. That’ll doit. That’ll do it. (09:47) He can change

the law? Yeah. (09:49)

GARY DUNN: Yeabh, it will. (09:51)
BETTY DUNN: If you want the house —09:51)
GARY DUNN: It is Kauffman. (09:53)

DAVE CAMPBELL: Why won’t you sell the house? Why won’t you let her get

another house? (09:56)

GARY DUNN: We will. (09:58)
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DAVE CAMPBELL: No, you won’t. You won’t let her have her share. You
guys stole her share. You guys stole her share. (10:00)

RANDY DUNN: She don’t get a share. No, she was -- That was her idea to do
that. (10:01)

DAVE CAMPBELL: When somebody dies without a will, the kids get 50 and the
spouse gets 50. You guys took it all. You took 100 percent of it. (10:09)

DAWN CAMPBELL: That way she will have some money for her assisted living.
(10:08)

RANDY DUNN: It was her idea was because she was afraid she would have to
go to the nursing home. (10:10)

DAVE CAMPBELL: Because she gets to live here until she dies, which is what
she is wanting to do. You guys need to be out of here. (10:17)

GARY DUNN (to Officer Crawford) Arrest him for assault. (10:16)

OFFICER CRAWFORD (to Gary Dunn) I'm going to go talk to your wife real
quick. (10:18)

(Officer Crawford goes to speak with Brenda Dunn, who is in standing by her
vehicle.) (10:22)

RANDY DUNN: That’s just like, you want us to fix the porch, you want us to do
that tree. You want us to do all this work, but you don’t want us here. (10:29)

DAWN CAMPBELL: We want you here. We want you here to take care of your
mom. (10:33)

BETTY DUNN: You don’t come over to see me; none of you. (10:34)

RANDY DUNN: Why would I? You know the best thing you ever called me?
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The truest thing you ever called me? (10:39)

DAVE CAMPBELL: Asshole? (10:39)

DAWN CAMPBELL: Dave. Hey —(10:41)
RANDY DUNN : It was a son of a bitch. (10:42)
DAVE CAMPBELL: There you go. (10:42)

RANDY DUNN: She said I was a son of a bitch. And that was the best thing you

ever said to me. (10:44)

BETTY DUNN: Oh, boy. Oh, boy. Oh, boy. (10:51)

RANDY DUNN: It means my mother, whoever it is, is a bitch. (10:52)
BETTY DUNN: P’ll say. (10:53)

DAVE CAMPBELL: How does that make you feel, Dude? (10:54)
RANDY DUNN: It makes me feel great. (10:55)

DAVE CAMPBELL: Oh, yeah, sure it does. Yeah, I know, because you’re that

guy. You’re that guy and you know it. (11:00)

RANDY DUNN: You’re a psychologist too, right? (11:01)

DAVE CAMPBELL: More than you. More than you, yeah. More than you. You

taken psychology? (11:07)

RANDY DUNN: Oh, yeah. (11:07)
BETTY DUNN: If this is not a disgrace. (11:08)
DAWN CAMPBELL: Itis. Sad. (11:08)

DAVE CAMPBELL: Oh, good, then you ought to figure this one out easy

enough. (11:15)

DAWN CAMPBELL: Look, just don’t talk to him. Don’t talk to him. He’s way
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below your—he’s way below you. (11:16)

RANDY DUNN: He’s above everybody. He’s right under God, ain’t he? (11:17)

GARY DUNN (to Officer Crawford) (Indiscernible section) -- He’s not supposed

to be here. Itold him. (Indiscernible section) We’re gonna have him marked as no

trespassing.

BETTY DUNN: Oh, listen to that. (11:22)

DAWN CAMPBELL: He’s saying we’re not supposed to trespass, Betty. We’re

up here helping you and he’s saying we can’t trespass. (11:27)

there.

DAVE CAMPBELL: No paperwork. Not one paperwork. You say it’s down
Well, why didn’t he have it? (11:27)

RANDY DUNN: Well, [ don’t (11:28)

DAVE CAMPBELL: Get the heck out of here. You don’t belong here. (11:30)
RANDY DUNN: DON’T YOU TELL ME WHAT TO DO. (11:30)

DAVE CAMPBELL: I’m telling you for Betty’s behalf, get out of here. (11:33)
RANDY DUNN: It’s none of your business. (11:33)

DAWN CAMPBELL: Dave, let -- Betty is right here. She can tell him. (11:35)
DAVE CAMPBELL: She did. She already told him. (11:37)

RANDY DUNN: You don’t tell me.

DAVE CAMPBELL (to Randy Dunn): She told you to get out of here. (11:39)

RANDY DUNN: (to Officer Crawford) And he’s told them — They’re both armed

and he’s told them both to leave. (11:42)

DAVE CAMPBELL: The Sheriff’s Department knows we’re armed. We told

them. (11:44)
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DAWN CAMPBELL: It’s for our protection. (11:45)
RANDY DUNN: (pointing to Dave) He’s the one that’s the bully. (11:49)
GARY DUNN: You’re not even supposed to be up here. (11:51)

DAVE CAMPBELL: I’'m the bully? You guys are the ones pushing on me and

I’m the bully? (11:52)

RANDY DUNN: You pushed him and then you come right up to me. (11:55)

DAVE CAMPBELL: Right, right, right. We’ll see what the video shows. Okay,

Dude? (11:57)

DAWN CAMPBELL: No, he came pushing Dave when he came up here. (11:56)
RANDY DUNN: No, he didn’t. (12:00)

DAWN CAMPBELL: Yes, he did and I have it on here. (12:01)

RANDY DUNN: Well, let’s see it. (12:02) _

DAVE CAMPBELL: You guys are quite the little family. Uh-huh. (12:02)
RANDY DUNN: Uh-huh. (12:03)

DAVE CAMPBELL: Uh-huh. (12:04)

RANDY DUNN: Well, we was raised by a great mother. (12:05)

DAWN CAMPBELL: Yeah, you were. (12:05)

DAVE CAMPBELL: Yeah; she is a great lady. (12:07)

RANDY DUNN: Yes. (12:08)

DAVE CAMPBELL: Yeah. (12:08)

BETTY DUNN: Well, they take me to —(12:12)

RANDY DUNN: We didn’t even ask for part of this for our sister. (12:13)

BETTY DUNN: Oh? (12:14)
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DAVE CAMPBELL: Oh, your sister? (12:15)

DAWN CAMPBELL: What? What sister? (12:15)

RANDY DUNN: Our sister.

DAVE CAMPBELL: You have a sister? (12:16)

RANDY DUNN: Yes. (12:17)

DAWN CAMPBELL: Where is she? (12:18)

DAVE CAMPBELL: Who is she? (12:19)

RANDY DUNN: I’m not telling y’all. (12:20)

BETTY DUNN: Oh, God.

DAVE CAMPBELL: Well, good. Tell her to come on down. She might have
sense. (12:23)

DAVE CAMPBELL Apparently, she’s staying out of here while Betty’s alive in
her house. (12:26)

RANDY DUNN: I wish she could be here. (12:27)

BETTY DUNN: If anybody takes me to the doctor, or anywhere, he takes me.
She takes me to the doctor. Don’t charge me a penny. (12:36)

RANDY DUNN: That’s okay. I took you to the doctor many times and didn’t
charge you a penny. I’ve come down here and worked on your house. (12:42)

DAWN CAMPBELL: But, you’re trying to take her house away from her and
we’re not. (12:46)

DAVE CAMPBELL: Yeah. You also broke into it. You took her air conditioner
- (12:47)

RANDY DUNN: We’re not trying to take her house. We’re just trying from —
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y’all from getting it. (12:49)

DAWN CAMPBELL: We’re not gonna get her house. We don’t want her house.
(12:53)

RANDY DUNN: What does she need with this house? (12:54)

DAWN CAMPBELL: So she can stay in Assisted Living. (12:56)

DAVE CAMPBELL: We’ve got a lot of witnesses that go against what you’re
saying and you’d better get the hell out of here and quit slandering us, or you’re going to
be in trouble. (13:00)

RANDY DUNN: (to Officer Crawford) Hey, tell him to shut up to me. He can’t
tell me what to do. (13:04)

OFFICER CRAWFORD: They’ve got a deed for the house. (13:05)

RANDY DUNN: Yeah. (13:06)

DAVE CAMPBELL: They have a deed for the house, Crawford. We’ve been
through this before. (13:07)

DAWN CAMPBELL: But it has Betty on there. (13:08)

GARY DUNN: YOU AIN’T BEEN TO COURT. (13:11)

DAVE CAMPBELL: They have the house, but they don’t show you the
addendum. She gets to live here until she dies. (13:13)

DAWN CAMPBELL: It’s in the deed. If youread —(13:15)

DAVE CAMPBELL: They have to stay out of here. They are supposed to fix
things that are broke, but they don’t. (13:17)

DAWN CAMPBELL: Hey, if you read the deed — (13:19)

DAVE CAMPBELL: They never help her. (13:19)
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GARY DUNN: But, they won’t let us in the house to do it. (13:20)

DAVE CAMPBELL: Oh, is that right? (13:22)

RANDY DUNN: (to Dave Campbell) Every time we come here you’ve got to
bring your ugly *ss up here. (13:24)

BETTY DUNN: Oh—(13:27)

DAVE CAMPBELL: That’s because your mom has friends. (13:28)

DAWN CAMPBELL: Because you came up here to break in. You were up here
breaking into her house. (13:31)

RANDY DUNN: We didn’t break in the house. I did not. (13:33)

DAWN CAMPBELL: You did last October. (13:33)

RANDY DUNN: I opened that window. And this -- I'm supposed to have a key
to it. (13:37)

DAVE CAMPBELL: No, this is Betty’s house right now. (13:37)

DAVE CAMPBELL: You’re the landlord, Dude. A lot of people rent houses and
this is equivalent to rent. (13:40)

GARY DUNN: She ain’t renting — she ain’t renting the house. (13:43)

DAWN CAMPBELL: But, she’s the -- she is the tenant here. She lives here.
(13:45)

DAVE CAMPBELL: She’s been here 40 years. (13:45)

RANDY DUNN: No, she hasn’t. (13:46)

DAWN CAMPBELL: Well, however long. (13:48)

RANDY DUNN: Years? (13:48)

DAWN CAMPBELL: However long. (13:49)
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RANDY DUNN: She ain’t been here that long.

DAWN CAMPBELL: However long. (13:50)

RANDY DUNN: What’s your goofy-*ss point? (13:51)

GARY DUNN (to Officer Crawford): She needs evaluated. (13:54)
DAVE CAMPBELL: Listen to him, Man. (13:55)

DAWN CAMPBELL: She looks fine to me. (13:56)

DAVE CAMPBELL: Look how they’re treating their mom. (14:00)

DAWN CAMPBELL: She doesn’t need an evaluation. We just took her to the

doctor the week before last. (14:04)

RANDY DUNN: No, it’s not the same doctor. (14:04)

DAWN CAMPBELL: So, they’re going to take you to a different doctor, Betty.

They’re planning on taking you to a different doctor. (14:11)

DAVE CAMPBELL: What did he -- What did he just show you? (14:10)
DAWN CAMPBELL: The deed. (14:12)

DAVE CAMPBELL: What did he just show you he won’t show us? (14:12)
DAWN CAMPBELL: The deed. (14:13)

DAVE CAMPBELL: That letter? (14:13)

GARY DUNN: You've gotit. You were sending it. (14:15))

DAWN CAMPBELL: It was the deed. (14:15)

DAVE CAMPBELL: I can’t believe this. (14:18)

RANDY DUNN: We don’t have to show you anything. You’re not the boss.

(14:20)

GARY DUNN: We’ve got a Warranty Deed and you know it. (14:25)
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DAWN CAMPBELL: But, Betty’s name is on it. (14:26)
DAVE CAMPBELL: That doesn’t mean a thing. (14:26)
RANDY DUNN: No, it ain’t. (14:27)

DAWN CAMPBELL: She lives — She lives in the house. (14:30)

GARY DUNN: Ifitis, it’s because you printed it off like you do all that other
stuff. (14:32)

DAWN CAMPBELL: You’re a -- you're a liar. (14:33)

(In this area of video: Gary and Officer Crawford are in background speaking
together as Officer Crawford is on the phone — appearing oblivious to Dave
Campbell, who the City erroneously alleges is aggressive and both of who are aware
Dave Campbell had a holstered pistol at that time.) (14:32)

RANDY DUNN: Well, she can’t run a copy — a calcu — a computer, or a --(14:37)

DAVE CAMPBELL: You can’t even say it. What’s the difference? (14:38)

RANDY DUNN: Well, I know, because I’'m aggravated. Who’s copying these
letters off and sending them to him? It ain’t her doing it. (14:44)

DAWN CAMPBELL: Well, whoever Betty wants to do it can do it. (14:46)

BETTY DUNN: I sign my name, don’t 7 (14:49)

DAVE CAMPBELL: Notice, he got their side of the story, but he’s not getting
ours. (14:51)

DAWN CAMPBELL: Well, he will. (14:52)

(Officer Crawford and Gary Dunn return to the Incident scene.)
GARY DUNN: Well, he knows. (14:53)

DAVE CAMPBELL: He knows? He just knows? (14:54)
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GARY DUNN: A weapon — Why don’t you ever go down to City Hall anymore?
(14:58)

DAVE CAMPBELL: Because I don’t like them. I don’t trust them. (15:02)

DAWN CAMPBELL: Look, why are — why are you worried about us, sir?
(15:02)

DAVE CAMPBELL (indicating to Officer Crawford): He knows why I don’t go
down there. He was there and witnessed it on April 1*. He knows why. (15:05)

DAWN CAMPBELL: Listen, hey, shhhh, just don’t talk. (15:08)

DAVE CAMPBELL: When someone tells me I can’t touch my wife — (15:08)

GARY DUNN: Because there’s something going on. (15:09)

DAWN CAMPBELL: Just don’t talk right now. (15:10)

GARY DUNN: There’s something going on here that’s not right. (15:12)

DAVE CAMPBELL: These guys — we never even knew them. (15:15)

OFFICER CRAWFORD: So, what is your side of the story? (15:13)

DAVE CAMPBELL: What is our story? (15:16)

DAWN CAMPBELL: Dave walked up here and he pushed Dave. (15:17)

DAVE CAMPBELL: Betty here had a need. She needed to go to the doctor. She
needed to go to grocery stores. His son came in here. You know it. You picked up the
police report. (15:26)

DAWN CAMPBELL: From last October. (15:27)

DAVE CAMPBELL: How could you not see this? (15:28)

DAWN CAMPBELL: Last October he broke in. (15:30)

DAVE CAMPBELL: You picked up the police report that Betty filled out and
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gave to you and you did absolutely not a frigging thing. (15:35)

GARY DUNN: You mailed it to me, though? (15:36)
DAWN CAMPBELL: What? (15:37)
DAVE CAMPBELL: Do what? (15:37)

GARY DUNN: You mailed me a bunch of stuff about Amanda and Charles.

(15:41)

Betty.

DAVE CAMPBELL: We mail you stuff all the time for Betty. (15:41)
DAWN CAMPBELL: For Betty. We mail for Betty. (15:43)

GARY DUNN (to Officer Crawford): See? (to Campbells) Quit doing it for
Don’t do it no more. (15:45)

RANDY DUNN: Quit doing it for Betty. It better be from her. (15:46)
DAWN CAMPBELL.: It is from her. (15:47)

DAVE CAMPBELL: You’re not going to tell me what to do. (15:46)
RANDY DUNN: 1 JUST DID. (15:47)

DAVE CAMPBELL: Well, that doesn’t mean a thing to me. (15:49)
OFFICER CRAWFORD: Hey —<(15:49)

RANDY DUNN: Don’t do it for her. (15:50)

DAWN CAMPBELL: (to Randy Dunn) Okay. Let’s just calm down. (15:50)

DAWN CAMPBELL: (to Officer Crawford) Hey, can we talk to you without

these guys interfering and chiming in? (15:54)

RANDY DUNN: No. (15:55)
DAVE CAMPBELL: Yeah, really. Back them up so we can talk. (15:55)

DAWN CAMPBELL: We didn’t chime in when they were talking to you. This
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isn’t right. (16:00)
OFFICER CRAWFORD: Okay. (16:01)
RANDY DUNN: You’re on our property, too. (16:01)
OFFICER CRAWFORD (to Randy Dunn) Okay — (16:03)

GARY DUNN: Charles — Uh, Randy — (16:04)

OFFICER CRAWFORD: (to Randy Dunn) Just let them talk for a minute. Okay,

Buddy? (16:05)
BETTY DUNN: This is my house. (16:11)

DAVE CAMPBELL: This is Betty’s house. (16:12)

DAWN CAMPBELL: And Betty can tell you what happened today. (16:15)

RANDY DUNN: She won’t. She lies. (16:17)

DAWN CAMPBELL (to Randy Dunn) What? (16:20)

DAVE CAMPBELL: The lack of education is showing right here. (16:22)

RANDY DUNN: Yeah? (16:23)
OFFICER CRAWFORD: Okay. Continue the story. (16:24)

DAWN CAMPBELL: Yeah. (16:24)

DAVE CAMPBELL: Okay. As long as you can assure me they’re not going to

interfere. (16:27) We’ve been taking care of Betty for over three years. You know that.

You’ve seen the stuff. You were here when this butthole — (16:32)

DAWN CAMPBELL: No, he wasn’t. It was the other two. (16:37)

DAVE CAMPBELL: Well, you’re familiar with it. You came up here and got the

police report. When he was breaking into the house --(16:41)

DAWN CAMPBELL: The other two cops. (16:41)
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DAVE CAMPBELL: As a matter of fact, you know what Betty -- (16:42)

DAWN CAMPBELL: It was not —It was not him, Dave. (16:44)

DAVE CAMPBELL: I think Betty wants to press charges against him for
breaking into her house. Isn’t that right? (16:46)

BETTY DUNN: Yes. (16:48)

DAVE CAMPBELL: Yes. We need a police report to file papers on him for
breaking into her house. (16:52)

DAWN CAMPBELL: October 30™. (16:53)

DAVE CAMPBELL: You saw he removed the air conditioner and you— well —
(16:56)

RANDY DUNN: I put that air conditioner in there. (16:57)

DAWN CAMPBELL: That’s irrelevant. (16:59)

DAVE CAMPBELL: You could have built the house and it doesn’t make any
difference, Dude. (17:03)

DAWN CAMPBELL: Yeah. (17:04)

DAVE CAMPBELL: Where’s your brain? (17:07)
(Brenda Dunn, who is sitting in her car, interrupts by hollering from her car.)

BRENDA DUNN (to Dave Campbell): Betty wouldn’t have filed no charges if
you wouldn’t have opened your mouth, either. (17:07)

GARY DUNN (to Brenda Dunn): She does what he says. (17:09)

DAVE CAMPBELL: Anyway, we’ve been taking care of her. We run her to the
store (17:12)

DAWN CAMPBELL: Take her to the doctor. (17:14)
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DAVE CAMPBELL: They accuse us of taking her money. This guy here, he’s the
P.0O.D. on her bank for every dime she has. He’s the P.O.A. (sic). (17:20)

DAWN CAMPBELL: Yeah, we don’t get money from Betty. (17:20)"

DAVE CAMPBELL: We’ve never tried to interfere. (17:21)

RANDY DUNN: What is P.O.A.? (17:22)

DAWN CAMPBELL: P.O.D. (17:23)

BETTY DUNN: I don’t know. (17:24)

DAVE CAMPBELL: P.O.D. You’re the P.O.D. (17:26)

GARY DUNN: What is the P.O.D.? (17:27)

BETTY DUNN: I don’t know. (17:27)

DAVE CAMPBELL: Payable on death. If she dies, you were getting everything.
He wasn’t getting a dime, other than the fact that you stole her house. (17:32)

RANDY DUNN: Yes, because — (17:33)

DAVE CAMPBELL: We come up here -- we’ve been mowing her grass. We’ve
been taking care of everything — every need Betty has. Every need. (17:39)

DAW'N CAMPBELL: We bring her food and we got her set up on food. (17:42)

DAVE CAMPBELL: Betty had a fall and she was -- the side of her face was out
here like this. These guys -- (17:45)

BETTY DUNN: -- didn’t even come see me. (17:49)

DAVE CAMPBELL: -- said to us that they talked to her and she gave them
permission to come into the house. (17:53)

DAWN CAMPBELL: Which was a lie. (17:55)

! Clarification: We never charge Betty. Sometimes she insists on paying for yard work.
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DAVE CAMPBELL (to Officer Crawford): So, he decided to go home, get a
ladder, put it right here, take out the air conditioner that was in here. And I don’t care
who put it in. And he had his *ss hanging out the window. (18:02)

RANDY DUNN: No, I didn’t. I never even got on the ladder. (18:04)

DAWN CAMPBELL (to Randy Dunn): Yes, you did. (18:04)

RANDY DUNN: No, I didn’t. (18:05)

DAWN CAMPBELL (to Randy Dunn): Oh, yes, you did. (18:05)

RANDY DUN: No, I didn’t. (18:06)

DAVE CAMPBELL: I went over there and I scared him. And he got out of there.
And we went round and round and around. Jamie would not come up here with Barnett.
(18:14)

DAWN CAMPBELL: That’s what started all of our problems. (18:15)

DAVE CAMPBELL: So, we call the Sheriff’s Office. The Sheriff’s Office made
them come out here. (18:20)

DAWN CAMPBELL: And that’s why Jame — (18:20)

DAVE CAMPBELL: Barnett was getting on to us. (18:21)

DAWN CAMPBELL: That’s why they hate us. (18:22)

DAVE CAMPBELL: That’s why we’re having problems down there and why
what happened on April 1%, because they’re scum. They won’t do a thing they’re
supposed to do. This guy went on and on about how this is their house. Well, Jamie
finally said, well, it makes sense. Why wouldn’t he have a key if Betty said, come into
my house. So, he didn’t have a key. He had a ladder. He took out an air conditioner and

left it on the ground. We finally hauled it out of here. (18:47)
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RANDY DUNN: It’s a good air conditioner. (18:49)

DAWN CAMPBELL: Well, Betty said it didn’t work. (18:51)

DAVE CAMPBELL: She didn’t want it. It was tainted. (18:51)

DAWN CAMPBELL: Yeah. (18:53)

DAVE CAMPBELL: So —(18:54)

BETTY DUNN: I had to buy another one, but that’s fine. (18:57)

RANDY DUNN: There wasn’t anything wrong with that and I didn’t hurt it.
(19:00)

DAWN CAMPBELL: Well, you took it out of her house. (19:01)

BETTY DUNN: No. Huh-uh. (19:02)

RANDY DUNN: I put it in and I put the one in upstairs. (19:04)

GARY DUNN: You never said you would give him a key. You never told him
when he asked. (19:07)

DAVE CAMPBELL: Why would I give him a key? Betty begged us when she
was in the ambulance — getting into the ambulance, she begged us not to let them in her
house; begged us. (19:14)

DAWN CAMPBELL: Not to let them in. (19:13)

DAVE CAMPBELL: -- not to let them in her house. Begged us. (19:15)

OFFICER CRAWFORD: Today? (19:16)

DAWN CAMPBELL: When we were walking up here, he came and pushed
Dave. (19:21)

DAVE CAMPBELL: Back when he was breaking into her house, she wants to

file a complaint, too. Right now, she wants to file. (19:26)
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DAWN CAMPBELL: And Dave pushed him back and he fell down. (19:24)
RANDY DUNN: Why would he be speaking for her? (19:26)

GARY DUNN: Randy, just be quiet. (09:27)

DAVE CAMPBELL: She wants to file. (09:27)

GARY DUNN: He’s digging the hole deeper and deeper. (19:28)
OFFICER CRAWFORD: What about today? (19:29)

DAWN CAMPBELL: Yeah. Today. (19:30)

OFFICER CRAWFORD: That’s what I’'m here for right now. (19:32)
GARY DUNN: We came up here — (19:36)

DAVE CAMPBELL: Well, this has been prearranged. (19:36)
DAWN CAMPBELL: Well, when we walked up here — (19:37)

DAVE CAMPELL: Because they said they were coming up here to take her out

of here. Because Betty doesn’t want to leave her house, obviously. (19:40)

DAWN CAMPBELL: And so, Dave walked up here to check on Betty and he

pushed at — pushed Dave and Dave pushed him back and he fell. (19:48)

(Deputy John Smith Arrived to the scene.)

(Dave Campbell shook hands with Investigator Smith and introduced himself.)
(19:48)

DAWN CAMPBELL (to Investigator Smith): Hey. (19:49)
DAVE CAMPBELL (to Investigator Smith): Glad to meet you.(19:49)

DAWN CAMPBELL: He fell down backwards as Dave pushed him back. He

pushed Dave first and then Dave -- (19:55)

GARY DUNN: I did not, Ma’am. (19:56)
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DAWN CAMPBELL: Yes, you did. (19:57)

GARY DUNN: I was trying to go to my mother. (19:59)

DAVE CAMPBELL: I would have never allowed --

DAWN CAMPBELL: Well, I can’t help what you were doing, but that’s what
you did. Okay? (20:03)

GARY DUNN: That’s just what he done and then he turned around and hit me in
the stomach. (20:06)

DAVE CAMPBELL (to Gary Dunn): No, you took your hands and you pushed
me twice. (20:07)

GARY DUNN: You’re a liar (20:08)

DAWN CAMPBELL (to Gary Dunn): You did, too. (20:09)

RANDY DUNN: It’s just like you walked up to me and pushed me. (20:12)

DAVE CAMPBELL: Because you were belly butting me, just like his wife.
(20:15).

DAWN CAMPBELL: Yeah. (20:13)

RANDY DUNN: No, because you walked up to me and pushed me. (20:14)

DAWN CAMPBELL: No. Randy walked up to Dave and put his belly on Dave’s
belly and Dave pushed him off. (20:20)

GARY DUNN: I want him arrested for assault. (20:23)

BETTY DUNN: Why don’t you act like I’m your mother then? (20:24)

RANDY DUNN (to Betty Dunn): Because you ain’t. (20:25)

DAVE CAMPBELL: You guys ought to be ashamed of yourselves calling her

your mother. (20:26)
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RANDY DUNN (to Betty Dunn): You told him you wasn’t his mother. (20:27)

DAWN CAMPBELL (to Investigator Smith): They’re trying to take her against
her will. (20:30)

DAVE CAMPBELL: You of all people, Man. She just went on and on about how
much she loves you. (20:33)

GARY DUNN (to two officers): Assault. Him. (20:34)

DAWN CAMPBELL: He assault (sic) Dave first. (20:37)

GARY DUNN: He assaulted me. (20:38)

DAWN CAMPBELL: This guy assaulted first. (20:38)

GARY DUNN: He assaulted Randy. And he assaulted my wife. (20:39)

DAWN CAMPBELL: This guy right here. (20:41)

GARY DUNN: And we want something done now. (20:42)

DAVE CAMPBELL: Ican’t imagine —(20:44)

DAWN CAMPBELL: We’ll be filing, too, because you filed first — or, hit first.
(20:47)

DAVE CAMPBELL.: I can’t imagine what either one of these guys you’re talking
to right now, what they would have done if you three had’ve done the same thing to
either one of them. (20:54)

DAWN CAMPBELL: They’re getting an ambulance for you, Betty. (20:55)

INVESTIGATOR SMITH: Allright. So, what’s the story. I need to hear the
story. One person at a time. I don’t want multiple people talking. (20:57)

DAWN CAMPBELL: Right. (20:58)

DAVE CAMPBELL: Beautiful. Let’s step over here. (21:00)
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GARY DUNN: Nope. Say it where we can hear ya. (21:02)

INVESTIGATOR SMITH: We’re going to be right here.(21:03)

DAWN CAMPBELL (to Gary Dunn) You can hear. (21.03)

DAVE CAMPBELL: Okay. These guys won’t be able to keep their mouths shut.
(21:04)

INVESTIGATOR SMITH: One person talking at a time. (21:05)

DAVE CAMPBELL: So we moved in. We bought this house (motioning next
door) about four years ago and — (21:11)

GARY DUNN: (laughing) That’s -- You’re hearing things now. (21:14)

DAVE CAMPBELL: -- we’re living there. We’re her neighbor. And Betty here
— we saw a need for Betty. We got to knowing her here, because she was already having
family problems.

GARY DUNN: (Indiscernible.) (21:25)

DAVE CAMPBELL: And so we took care of her. We’ve been taking care of her
for three to three-and-a-half years and we’ve been mowing her grass. We’ve been taking
her to the hospital. We go out and eat. We do everything. (21:34)

GARY DUNN: (Indiscernible.) (21:36)

DAVE CAMPBELL: We had never met these two guys, never, until he was
breaking in. And she wants to file a police report for him breaking in last October.
(21:40)

(Gary Dunn is talking at the same time as Dave Campbell as is indiscernible.)

DAWN CAMPBELL: October 30™. (21:41)

DAVE CAMPBELL: October 30", He came to us,
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MEDIC: Hi Mrs. Dunn. My name’s Randy. (21:48)

DAVE CAMPBELL.: -- because Betty had already told us she didn’t want them in
the house.

MEDIC (to Mrs. Dunn): How are you doing? (21:49)

DAVE CAMPBELL: She doesn’t want anything to do with them.

BETTY DUNN: I was doing all right until they came in and are trying to take my house.
(21:50)

DAVE CAMPBELL: When their dad died, Betty’s husband, he didn’t leave a
will, so apparently they went through probate. The probate thing says she gets to live in
this house until she dies. (22:02)

MEDIC: Oh, no, who’s that? (21:57)

BETTY DUNN: My boys. You can have the keys to the house any time you want
‘em. (22:06)

(Dave Campbell’s statement to the officers is interrupted by second conversation.)

GARY DUNN: We’ve asked and your neighbor there wouldn’t give us the key.
(22:08)

DAVE CAMPBELL: It’s not my position to give a key to somebody when Betty
told us not to. (22:10)

BETTY DUNN: No. (22:10)

RANDY DUNN: Well, she’s not supposed to be by herself, anyway. (22:18)

BETTY DUNN: (Laughing.)

MEDIC: Well, that’s fine. As long as she answers my questions --
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(Jay, the director from the senior center arrived to pick Betty up for lunch and
Bingo.) (22:19)

DAVE CAMPBELL.: Betty, do you want to go play Bingo? (22:22)

DAWN CAMPBELL: Betty, do you want to go play Bingo? (22:24)

DAVE CAMPBELL: C’mon. (22:26)

DAWN CAMPBELL: Go. You can go. And that way you can get your papers.
(22:28)

MEDIC: Let’s walk up there to the ambulance. (22:30)

GARY DUNN: No, no, don’t bother her. (22:32)

DAWN CAMPBELL: She wants to go play Bingo. (22:33)

GARY DUNN: Don’t bother her. She’s having an evaluation with him right now.
(22:36)

BETTY DUNN: Oh, God, A Mighty. (22:38)

MEDIC: Let’s go up here to this ambulance where we can talk. Okay? All right?
Away from everybody. Okay? (22:44)

DAVE CAMPBELL: That was my thoughts, but — (22:44)

DAWN CAMPBELL: Yeah. (22:47)

DAVE CAMPBELL: They’ve got to make it a cluster you-know-what here.
(22:50).

BETTY DUNN: They don’t care anything about me. (22:52)

MEDIC: Okay. Well, can I — Can we walk up here and let me get your vital
signs? And maybe just talk a little bit. Okay? (22:58)

DAVE CAMPBELL: She’s so tired of people coming by here and taking her pulse
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and taking all that and taking pictures of her house and then they don’t do anything.
(23:00)

MEDIC: I understand. (23:02)

DAVE CAMPBELL: They don’t do a thing. (23:05)

DAWN CAMPBELL: Yeah. (23:06)

DAVE CAMPBELL: These guys — his son and daughter-in-law robbed her. They
went down here while she was on her back.

(Investigator Smith had stepped away.)

DAVE CAMPBELL (to Investigator Smith): Hey. Hey. (23:12)

DAWN CAMPBELL: They gota P.O.A. Well, he’s -- (23:20)

DAVE CAMPBELL (to Investigator Smith who had walked away) Hey, Smith,
you need to hear this.

DAWN CAMPBELL: Well, he’s --

DAWN CAMPBELL: When she fell — She apparently fell in the bathroom,
probably because of sugar, hit the side of her face and it was swollen up like this. While
she was up in the hospital over the next couple of days, his daughter-in-law — (23:31)

DAWN CAMPBELL: (indicating to Gary Dunn) His son. (23:32)

DAVE CAMPBELL: -- went and got a P.O.A. and got somebody to go up to the
hospital while she was in intensive care on her back with her head swollen — (23:42)

(Gary or Randy Dunn were talking indiscernibly.) (23:42)

DAVE CAMPBELL: See, they can’t be quiet — and got a P.O.A. Betty didn’t

know it. We had to argue with Betty about the P.O.A. We finally went down to the bank

and that’s when we found out that his daughter-in-law robbed Betty of $4,500.00,
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$1,700.00 in cash, got the title to the truck, which he had already stolen through a cousin
that came by to help Betty. (24:01)

GARY DUNN: (Laughs loudly.) (24:02)

DAVE CAMPBELL: Took the title. Anyway, she went and got a lost title and
got the truck in her name. (24:06)

DAWN CAMPBELL: And they took Betty’s truck. (24:08)

DAVE CAMPBELL: They moved a pit bull in here the same week that they
moved in. Couldn’t believe it. And that’s when everything went south. Well, after
about a month or two, Betty came running down the hill to tell us that — (24:20)

DAWN CAMPBELL: That she was locked into her house and that she had no
food. (24:24)

DAVE CAMPBELL: That she was locked in. Because we told them that she was
— that these guys, who don’t care about their mother, needs to build a ramp out here.
(24:28)

RANDY DUNN: There’s a ramp right out front on that concrete right there.
(24:32)

DAVE CAMPBELL (to Officers) Can you handle these guys? (24:33)

DAWN CAMPBELL: (to Randy Dunn) She was locked. She couldn’t access it.
(24:34)

DAVE CAMPBELL: So — Betty — Betty -- well she wanted a ramp out here for
Betty. (24:55)

(Dave’s conversation with the officers is indiscernible.)

RANDY DUNN: She can, too. (24:35)
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DAWN CAMPBELL: (to Randy Dunn) They locked her -- They locked her in.
(24:36)

RANDY DUNN: Well, it ain’t locked now. (24:37)

DAWN CAMPBELL: (to Randy Dunn): It was when they lived with her.
(24:39)

RANDY DUNN: Okay. But, now, it’s okay. (24:40)

DAWN CAMPBELL: But, it wasn’t then. (24:41)

RANDY DUNN: But, it is now. (24:43)

DAWN CAMPBELL: She was locked in for months. She was locked in her house
for months. (24:46)

RANDY DUNN: (Inaudible.)

DAWN CAMPBELL: I know. But, imagine being locked into your house for
months. That sucks. (24:52)

BETTY DUNN (to MEDICs): I don’t need to go to the hospital. (24:54)

MEDIC: Well, just let me get your vital signs. Okay? All right? Can we do that
for you? (24:57)

DAVE CAMPBELL: Well --

BETTY DUNN: I’ve had more vital signs than — (25:01)

DAWN CAMPBELL: Hey, Betty. It’s okay, Betty. He just wants to check and
see how you’re doing right now. It’s your decision if you want to go to the hospital.
(25:08)

MEDIC: I just want to make sure you’re okay. (25:07)

(Dave’s conversation with the officers is indiscernible.)
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BETTY DUNN: I am okay. My house is clean. (25:09)

DAWN CAMPBELL: Well, he just wants to check your numbers. (25:11)

DAVE CAMPBELL (to Officers) -- and they put a hasp on the inside where she
couldn’t get out. Well -- (25:17)

MEDIC: I’ve been here before. Don’t you remember? I picked you up off the
pavement when you fell. (25:18)

DAWN CAMPBELL: Hey, he just wants to check your sugar — your blood sugar
and your high blood pressure — your blood pressure. (25:20)

DAVE CAMPBELL (to Officers): -- she came out one day of the house
(inaudible) a pit bull knocked her down. (25:23)

MEDIC: Do you remember when you tripped over your comforter out here.
(25:24)

DAWN CAMPBELL: Yeah, last July, I think. (25:26)

BETTY DUNN: I remember. (25:27)

MEDIC: I was the one that helped you up. (25:30)

DAWN CAMPBELL: Yeah. (25:32)

BETTY DUNN: Yes, [ remember. I’ve got a good memory part of the time. I’'m
88 years old. (25:37)

DAVE CAMPBELL: (to officers) (partially inaudible) I’'m 68 years old. You
know, you just don’t go up shoving people. When you go up shoving on people, you’re
gonna get knocked on your *ss. Okay? (inaudible) That’s the story. (inaudible) (25:40)

GARY DUNN (to Officer Crawford): (Indiscernible portion.) I was trying to get
to my mother (25:48)
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MEDIC: And you look like you’re good to go. I just want to get your blood
pressure. (25:41)

DAWN CAMPBELL: He just wants to confirm you’re doing good. (25:43)

MEDIC: Okay? (24:44)

DAWN CAMPBELL: He just wants to confirm. It’s okay. (25:46)

MEDIC: (to Dawn Campbell): Are you the neighbor? (25:48)

DAWN CAMPBELL: Yeah, yeah. (25:50)

MEDIC: Does she trust you? (25:51)

DAWN CAMPBELL: Yeah. I think. (25:52)

MEDIC: You can come with us. (25:54)

DAWN CAMPBELL: Well, I want to get this on video. (25:55)

MEDIC: I understand.(25:56)

DAWN CAMPBELL: People have been lying against us and so now I record
everything. Just like, we came up here —(26:00)

DAVE CAMPBELL (to Officers): She just moved her account. (26:02)

DAWN CAMPBELL (to Medic Randy): -- this guy pushed Dave and Dave
pushed him back and he wants to press charges on Dave. (26:06)

DAVE CAMPBELL (to Dawn Campbell): Hey, Babe? (26:08)

DAWN CAMPBELL: (to Dave Campbell): Huh? (26:07)

DAVE CAMPBELL (to Dawn Campbell): Jay’s got that paperwork Betty was
worried about.

DAWN CAMPBELL: (to Dave Campbell): Okay. Okay. Let me go and get it.

DAVE CAMPBELL (to Dawn Campbell): If he’s still here. He may not be here.
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(26:12)

DAWN CAMPBELL (to Dave Campbell): Did he already leave? (26:14)

DAVE CAMPBELL (to Dawn Campbell): I don’t know. He may have.

DAVE CAMPBELL (to Officers): So, we go out and eat, we go grocery
shopping, we take her to West Plains. We went and got her a pair of glasses so she could
read. She had trouble with her medicine. (26:31)

MEDIC: Ms. Betty, are you a diabetic. (26:33)

BETTY DUNN: Yes. (26:34)

MEDIC: Yeah, I thought so. You take pills, don’t you? (26:37)

(END OF RECORDING No 1 — 26 minutes 40 seconds)
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RECORDING NO. 2 is 13 Minutes)

DAVE CAMPBELL: She couldn’t read. She couldn’t see up close. So she had
trouble taking her medicine. We just got her glasses last Saturday. (00:08)

DAWN CAMPBELL: She couldn’t read the packets. (00:08)

MEDIC: Okay. (00:09)

DAVE CAMPBELL: So, now she can see. (00:11)

DAWN CAMPBELL: She’s doing a lot better. (00:10)

DAVE CAMPBELL: Now, she’s doing a lot better. There’s nothing — She
doesn’t have dementia. (00:14)

DAWN CAMPBELL: Well, we don’t know. (00:15)

DAVE CAMPBELL: I'm retired from the post office as a postmaster. I was a
city carrier for years. And I’ve dealt with a lot of people. A lot of people with dementia
and Alzheimer’s and what have you. (00:21)

MEDIC: Well, we’re gonna find out. We’ll get vital signs and I’ll ask some
questions. (00:23)

DAWN CAMPBELL: Yeah. Good, good, good. (00:25)

DAVE CAMPBELL: Betty, this is important. So — She gets frustrated. She’s
been through this a hundred times. Just like Crawford, he came over and dropped off the
paperwork and then left. And we didn’t see him for ten days. Had to call him back to
come back out and get the paperwork. Nobody ever investigated her getting robbed by
this guy’s son. Nobody ever investigated that. (00:44)

DAWN CAMPBELL: To our knowledge. (00:44)

GARY DUNN: They didn’t investigate about you coming in after everybody’s in
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bed, either. (00:47)

DAWN CAMPBELL (to Gary Dunn) What? (00:48)

GARY DUNN: In her lock box, her money’s missing. (00:49)

DAWN CAMPBELL (to Gary Dunn) What are you talking about? You are full of
it. (00:52)

GARY DUNN: Crawford, he don’t like you people and you can tell it. (00:55)

DAVE CAMPBELL: Yeah, [ know he doesn’t, because he thumbs ups the people
that hate us. That’s why I always go like this (indicating a thumbs up) when I drive by
him, because he’s on their side. We know that. That’s why we don’t go to city hall,
because he witnessed what happened April 1*. (01:07)

GARY DUNN: How come you to move out of Gainesville? (1:09)

DAVE CAMPBELL: Yeah. Barry O’Dell; him thumbs upping his postings and
stuff. (01:14) That’s not a good thing to do when you’re supposed to be neutral. (01:15)

DAWN CAMPBELL (to Investigator Smith): He called us a fool. He called us a
fool on Facebook and said a bunch of stuff about us. (01:15)

DAWN CAMPBELL (to Officer Crawford): And you’re like thumbs up. He
took a picture of Dave’s butt in the air and you’re like -- (01:19)

DAVE CAMPBELL: Yeah. I don’t like that. (01:21)

DAWN CAMPBELL: Because we feel like that was like — I mean, we feel like
we have a case against that guy and then to have the authorities like saying — (01:30)

DAVE CAMPBELL: We’ve got a case against the city for what you guys did and
it’s all on film. Except for the film Barry relied on, on June 10™. And then Busch, when

we wanted a copy of it, says it doesn’t exist. How do you slander somebody in front of
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the whole town down there and —(01:42)
DAWN CAMPBELL: And then won’t produce the video? (01:45)

DAVE CAMPBELL: And then won’t give us the video? That’s a court deal.
(01:49)

DAWN CAMPBELL: Yeah. But, that’s a different issue. Let’s just focus right
now on Betty. (01:51)

DAVE CAMPBELL: That’s a whole different issue. Right now, all we’re
concerned about is her safety. She wants peace of mind. She’s been going up to the
senior center. That’s why Jay’s here is to take her up there so she can play dominoes and
what have you. Huh? These guys -- (02:05)

DAWN CAMPBELL: He’s gone. He left. (02:00)

DAVE CAMPBELL: They play dominoes and what-have-you. (02:02)

INVETIGATOR SMITH: He said something about Bingo. (02:04)

DAVE CAMPBELL: Yeah.(02:04)

INVESTIGATOR SMITH: So, what’s the situation going on today? Who called?
(02:05)

DAWN CAMPBELL: Dave called. (02:07)

DAVE CAMPBELL: We called originally (02:07).

DAWN CAMPBELL: Because Betty told us Sunday — Satur — (02:11)

DAVE CAMPBELL: These guys just need to leave. (02:14)

DAWN CAMPBELL: No. Sunday night she said, my boys -- Gary just called and
said that they’re coming with — they’re going to take me to the doctor or take me to the

nursing home and change the locks on the house. She was upset. And so— (02:23)
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(Gary Dunn approaches Mr. Campbell and Investigator Smith and is inaudible.)

INVESTIGATOR SMITH (to Gary Dunn): I only need one person talking at a
time right now. I really want to get to the bottom of it. (02:28)

DAWN CAMPBELL: And so yesterday, we watched all day and they never
showed. Well, this morning when I let the dogs out, I saw them pulling in, so I went and
told Dave. He called 9-1-1. We walked up here and Gary came and pushed him. (02:35)

DAVE CAMPBELL: Twice. (02:35)

DAWN CAMPBELL: Twice. And then Dave was like, get away from me. He
pushed him back and then he rolled. This guy (indicating to Gary Dunn who is standing
beside Investigator Smith). (02:42)

GARY DUNN: Did you not hit me in the stomach? (02:42)

DAVE CAMPBELL: Yes, I did. Anybody that comes up and shoves me is gonna
get hit in the stomach, or face. (02:46)

DAWN CAMPBELL: Yeah. Yeah. He charged at him. (02:46)

DAVE CAMPBELL: These guys are (sic) older than me. Believe it or not I’'m
the senior here. (02:51)

GARY DUNN: Ifhe’s got a gun, [ want him off the property now. (02:53)

DAVE CAMPBELL: You don’t have that call, Dude. You don’t have anything in
your hand that says that. (02:57)

GARY DUNN: The one I —says I own it. (02:58)

DAVE CAMPBELL (to Gary Dunn): Jamie sent your little brother over to the
County to get the paperwork. (03:02)

GARY DUNN: No, he didn’t. (03:03)
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INVESTIGATOR SMITH: He has the deed to the house? (03:04)

DAVE CAMPBELL: Jamie sent him to go get the paperwork — (03:07)

DAWN CAMPBELL: She has life. She has life. Life Rights. (03:08)

DAVE CAMPBELL: --to show that they have a right to come into — break into
the house. (03:13)

DAWN CAMPBELL: Betty does. They have -- Their deed goes into effect when
Betty’s dead. (03:15)

DAVE CAMPBELL: He lied to us the day she was in the hospital by saying that
he went to the hospital and she gave him permission to come here. So he goes home —
(03:21)

RANDY DUNN: She did. (03:22)

GARY DUNN: I never did see him at the hospital. (03:24)

DAVE CAMPBELL: You hear this? He’s verifying it right now. So, he goes
home and gets a ladder. (03:26)

RANDY DUNN: She called me and Gary into the hospital room. (03:27)

DAWN CAMPBELL: Let him talk. (03:28)

RANDY DUNN: No. He don’t need to do all the talking. She had me and Gary
go in the hospital. (03:34)

DAVE CAMPBELL: He had his *ss hanging out and was breaking into her
house. Does that sound like a mom gave him permission? (03:34)

RANDY DUNN: And she said, I’m not gonna be able to stay at home anymore.
We might as well sell the house and stuff. That’s why I came down to get into the house.
(03:42)
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DAWN CAMPBELL: We called Betty on the phone that morning and she was
livid. (03:46)

RANDY DUNN: I know. That’s the Dementia showing. (03:45)

DAVE CAMPBELL: Jamie told us there’s a letter down there at city hall that
says that she has rights to live here until she dies and they have no business here. (03:47)

DAWN CAMPBELL: And that’s the reason why that y’all left. (03:49)

DAVE CAMPBELL: So, all you have to do is -- I don’t want to talk to Jamie,
because I think he’s an *ss. (03:53)

DAWN CAMPBELL: Well, because of what he did to us on April 1%, (03:56)

INVESTIGATOR SMITH: Jamie who? (03:56)

DAVE CAMPBELL: Jamie Turnbough. (03:57)

DAWN CAMPBELL: He told Dave never to touch me on the arm again. We
wanted to leave the meeting. He goes, “DON’T YOU EVER TOUCH YOUR WIFE LIKE
THAT AGAIN.” And it freaked us out. I am still freaked out. I don’t -- I am scared for
my life here. (04:09)

DAVE CAMPBELL: On April 1* -- April 1* we were going down the laundry list
of the failures of this police department. He knows it. He was sitting there watching.
And we — Busch cut us off and said, you’re done. He wouldn’t even let us talk. We were
the only citizens there. There was 9 men; Plumlee, Busch, the four guys, this guy.
(04:26)

DAWN CAMPBELL: So, he goes, “C’mon, Baby, let’s go.” (04:24)

DAVE CAMPBELL: Yeah, they don’t want to hear this, but it’s true. (04:30)

DAWN CAMPBELL: Yeah. And then we went back to the meeting, because I
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was so rattled that he did that, he was goading Dave, going, “BE A MAN. GET BACK IN
THAT ROOM.” Because Dave didn’t want to go back into that meeting. He wanted to
goad him. (04:41)

DAVE CAMPBELL: What would you do if you were in a public place and a cop
came up, especially if you weren’t a cop — I know you’re a cop and I’'m not — and came
up and looked you in the face. He didn’t‘even get up off his chair. 04:47)

DAWN CAMPBELL: No. (04:48)

DAVE CAMPBELL: He looked me in the face and this guy witnessed it
(referencing Officer Crawford). He says —(04:52)

RANDY DUNN: (Inaudible.)

(Dave is interrupted by Randy Dunn, who was under the carport.) (04:53)

DAWN CAMPBELL: -- Don’t ever touch yéur wife like that again. (04:55)

DAVE CAMPBELL: -- Don’t ever touch your wife like that again. All T did -
(04:58)

DAWN CAMPBELL: He touched me on the elbow and said, “C’mon, Baby, let’s
go.” (05:00)

DAVE CAMPBELL: [said, “C’mon, Baby, lét 's go.” Because they said we were
done. We were ready to leave. Does that souﬁd aggressive? No. (05:03)

DAWN CAMPBELL: They were trying to build a case against us, obviously.
(05:06)

DAVE CAMPBELL: So, these guys are bad guys. He’s part of it. We tried to
tell him at the beginning, stay away from these guys; they’re not good. (05:1 1)

DAWN CAMPBELL: Well, we suspect since — (05:13)
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DAVE CAMPBELL But he’s thumbs up-ing it, you know, so, That’s the deal.
(05:16)

INVESTIGATOR SMITH: He liked a post? (05:18)

DAVE CAMPBELL: Yeah, he liked the post against us. (05:21)

DAWN CAMPBELL Yeah. On Facebook. Barry O’Dell’s been attacking us
since May. And we didn’t even know it. We went back and looked and saw all these
negative posts that Barry O’Dell did on us and Hunter likes a lot of them. (05:29)

DAVE CAMPBELL: And by the way, while Betty’s laying on her back in the
hospital with her face out there like this — It was the whole side of her face, not just her
eye, this girl starts telling people that we’re bad. (indicating to Brenda Dunn) (05:40)

DAWN CAMPBELL: That we stole their house. We bought that saloon. (05:41)

DAVE CAMPBELL: We bought this building over there from her family — from
her mom. (05:44)

DAWN CAMPBELL: People told us that she said that. (5:45) That we robbed
them blind. That was the quote. (5:50)

DAVE CAMPBELL: She starts to slander stuff there. These guys are not good
people. Betty knows that and does not want them here. (05:51) They finagled the house
from her and they do get the house when she dies. Jamie acknowledged that. And
nothing should change. (06:00)

(Dave’s voice is difficult to hear due to Randy Dunn’s interruption, as follows):
RANDY DUNN: Well, I’ve got a little surprise for you when you die. (06:02)
BETTY DUNN: What? (06:04)

RANDY DUNN: I’ve got a little surprise for you when you die. (06:07)
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INVESTIGATOR SMITH: So, who’s supposed to be here? (06:07)

BETTY DUNN: What? I can’t hear you. (06:09)

DAVE CAMPBELL: When he — Betty. We have that building over there. (06:14)

RANDY DUNN: You don’t have to be buried next to my dad. We’re next of kin,
so we can have you put off anywhere, or cremate you. (06:17)

BETTY DUNN: Oh, can you? (06:17)

DAVE CAMPBELL (to officers): Betty wants these guys out of here. (06:18)

RANDY DUNN: We can. We’re next of kin. (06:20)

DAVE CAMPBELL: Betty is the only one who is supposed to be here. We live
there. We have that building over there we got from her family (indicating to Brenda
Dunn). Betty wants these guys out. (06:20)

BETTY DUNN: I’ve lived here for almost forty years and you’re gonna cut me
off? (06:27)

RANDY DUNN: You ain’t lived here for forty years. (06:28)

DAVE CAMPBELL (to officers): So, he was just going to break into his mom’s
house while she was in intensive care. (06:31)

INVESTIGATOR SMITH: She lives here? (06:31)

DAVE CAMPBELL: Yeah. (06:32)

INVESTIGATOR SMITH: No one else does? (-6:32)

DAWN CAMPBELL: No. (6:33)

INVESTIGATOR SMITH: It’s her property? (06:34)

DAVE CAMPBELL: It’s her property. (06:35)

GARY DUNN: No, it’s not her property. Come here and I’'ll show you. (06:38)
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DAVE CAMPBELL: Okay. To be clear, it’s irrelevant, Dude. Show us the
addendum. (06:40)

DAWN CAMPBELL: She has life—she has life — whatever they call that. It’s in
an — what do you call it? A -- Estate? (06:47)

DAVE CAMPBELL: Betty wants the addendum so she can tell what the deed is
for, but they won’t give it to her, but that’s fine. These guys keep — (06:52)

GARY DUNN: She’s got a copy of it. (06:53)

DAWN CAMPBELL: Betty has the deed. (06:55)

DAVE CAMPBELL: But you can take that deed and you can show the officers.
(06:54)

DAWN CAMPBELL: She’s got a copy of it inside. We gave it to her. (06:57)

DAVE CAMPBELL: It doesn’t mean a thing except for the fact that she gets to
live here until she dies. Yeah, that’s it. It’s that simple. (07:02)

RANDY DUNN: But we don’t have to let everyone else in here, though. (07:05)

DAVE CAMPBELL (to Deputy Cantrell): Glad to meet you. This is my wife
Dawn. (07:05)
(Deputy Cantrell arrived to the scene around 06:23) Dave shakes his hand at 07:05)

DAVE CAMPBELL: And Betty’s the one that lives here. She’s the one over
there everybody’s giving a hard time. She just wants to live her life; sit out here on the
porch. (07:13)

DAWN CAMPBELL: They’re trying to take her against her will. (07:15)

DAVE CAMPBELL: And they’re trying to throw her out of her house. (07:16)

RANDY DUNN: And she’s sending him letters. Every week or so, sending
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letters and stuff. (07:19)

DAWN CAMPBELL: Not every week. I think Betty sent three, like, since April.
(07:20)

INVESTIGATOR SMITH: What were the letters saying? (7:21)

DAVE CAMPBELL (to Dawn Campbell): Babe, we need the letters. (07:25)

DAVE CAMPBELL: So the letters — the gist of the letters is, they tied this house
up 16 years ago when their dad died and so ((07:34)

DAWN CAMPBELL: Well, it went through probate. (07:38)

DAVE CAMPBELL: I know good and well Betty wasn’t involved with any of
that. (07:40)

DAWN CAMPBELL: Obviously, it went through — (07:41)

RANDY DUNN: Yes, she was. It went to a lawyer. (07:42)

DAVE CAMPBELL: She didn’t have the money to buy them out. (07:45)

DAWN CAMPBELL: Yeah. (07:45)

DAVE CAMPBELL: So, they went over here and got an attorney in Thayer.
(07:47)

DAWN CAMPBELL: A probate attorney. (07:48)

DAVE CAMPBELL: He became a judge in "97. (07:48) But in *96, he wrote up
some papers; a deed and the addendum, which they stole all of her paperwork. So, we
don’t have the addendum. We had to go to the courthouse to get the deed. We took her
to the Sheriff’s Department to file a police report. And they said no. After they told us
they were going to handle it, we told them what we thought about this place, then they

put Crawford on it. (08:14)
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DAWN CAMPBELL: But back to the deed, let’s focus on the deed. (08:15)

DAVE CAMPBELL: So the deed, all it says is Betty gets to live here until she
dies. (08:19)

DAWN CAMPBELL: Yeah. (08:21)

DAVE CAMPBELL: We don’t have the addendum, so we don’t have all the
paperwork. But that’s the bottom line. These guys need to go. That’s it. It’s that simple.
(08:27)

RANDY DUNN: You mean, he’s gonna run us off our own property? (08:29)

DAWN CAMPBELL: (to Randy Dunn) We’re not running you off. (08:30)
We’re not. (08:32)

DAVE CAMPBELL: You’re a landlord. If you’re not here to fix that rotted thing
up there (indicating to leaking balcony with a plastic-covered door). Get rid of that tree,
put your mom a stoop (sic “ramp ”) out here. Why isn’t there a stoop (sic) out here?
(08:37)

GARY DUNN: She can go on the concrete out front. (8:39)

DAVE CAMPBELL: Well, that’s fine and dandy, your daughter-in-law locked
her in her house. (08:44)

DAWN CAMPBELL: They locked her in. She couldn’t access her door. (08:44)

RANDY DUNN: So, she’s got that ramp right now, right? (08:47)

DAVE CAMPBELL: Why wouldn’t you want to spend a hundred bucks to put a
ramp out here? The letters that were written covers all of that. (08:50)

RANDY DUNN: I didn’t know anything about it. (08:51)

DAWN CAMPBELL: That’s what — that’s what — (08:54)
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DAVE CAMPBELL: The letters that were written covers all of it. (08:56)

RANDY DUNN: She can’t write me a letter. (08:57)

GARY DUNN: No, it don’t. And I got that letter — Saturday is when I got that
letter. (08:58)

DAVE CAMPBELL: The latest one — (09:01)

GARY DUNN: (to Dave Campbell) And would you get out of the way of me.
(9:00)

DAVE CAMPBELL: The latest one — Well, it’s about the third time that we’re
following up on it. This time we sent pictures, pictures of the porch up there, the oven in
there is hooked up with the same circuit as the dryer. She needs a stoop here, the carpet.
This guy witnessed his mom fall the other day. She tripped over the carpet. She goes out
—(09:22)

GARY DUNN: She fell on purpose, because she’s a dumb nut. (09:26)

DAVE CAMPBELL: The carpet, DHS said, needs to be re-stretched. We sent all
that information to them. (09:27)

DAWN CAMPBELL: That’s what was on the letter. (09:28)

DAVE CAMPBELL: Those are the things; all right? (09:30)

DAWN CAMPBELL: It’s all the things like DHS said needed to be tended to in
her house. (09:31)

DAVE CAMPBELL: I'm not — We’re not trying to get her money. If we were,
we would have our name on the POD over here at the bank. But, she wanted to put Gary
on there. We suggested she not. (09:41)

DAWN CAMPBELL: But, then she did. And that’s how it is. (09:43)
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DAVE CAMPBELL: I think she’s fixing to change it. There’s another relative
that deserves it a lot more than these guys. (09:46)

DAWN CAMPBELL: She has a -- She has a niece. (09:47)

DAVE CAMPBELL: She loved her son so much. This guy (indicating to Gary).
Not this one (indicating to Randy). That one. (09:52)

DAWN CAMPBELL: Yeah, Gary. (09:52)

INVESTIGATOR SMITH: Is this her son as well? (09:54)

DAVE CAMPBELL: Yes. This is her son and that’s her son. (09:56)

DAWN CAMPBELL: We caught him breaking in. He was breaking into her
house last October when she was in the hospital. (10:03)

DAVE CAMPBELL: It’s her son that broke (sic “moved”) into the house. (10:02)

INVESTIGATOR SMITH: That’s the daughter-in-law (indicating to Brenda, who
is sitting in her car)? (10:06)

DAVE CAMPBELL: Stepson? (10:09)

DAWN CAMPBELL: Okay. That’s Gary’s wife; yeah; Gary’s wife. (10:10)

BRENDA DUNN: (inaudible) (10:10)

DAVE CAMPBELL (to Brenda Dunn): Who are you married to? (10:11)

DAWN CAMPBELL: She’s married to Gary. (10:12)

DAVE CAMPBELL: I thought you were married to Gary. I thought Charles was
his son. (10:15)

BRENDA DUNN: Yeah. (10:14)

DAVE CAMPBELL: Well, that makes you his mom. (10:15)

DAWN CAMPBELL: Well, step-mom; step-mom. (10:17)
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BETTY DUNN (to Randy and Gary): Don’t come around here ever again.
(10:21)

DAVE CAMPBELL: Oh, they got a POA while she was on her back in the
hospital. Yeah, that’s right. Then they broke into her house then. (10:29)

INVESTIGATOR SMITH (to Officer Crawford): All right. Let’s talk. I’'m going
to talk to these officers. (10:27)

DAWN CAMPBELL: (to Investigator Smith) Okay. (10:29)

DAVE CAMPBELL: Okay. Good luck with that. (10:29)

DAWN CAMPBELL: Wow. (10:36)

BETTY DUNN (to Dave and Dawn Campbell): Sit down. Make yourselves
comfortable. (10:37)

DAWN CAMPBELL: We’re too rattled. (10:40)

DAVE CAMPBELL: You know, I will say, I’m retired from the post office after
29 and-a-half years and I was a postmaster for years, | was a city carrier for years. I was a
clerk. You don’t see that many people as a clerk, except for at the window. I’ve dealt
with tons of people. I told the doctor last — two weeks ago today — two weeks ago
yesterday, that I haven’t seen any signs of dementia with her. None. (10:58)

MEDIC: She answered all my questions. (10:59)

DAVE CAMPBELL: Yeah. (11:00)

DAWN CAMPBELL: Yeah. (11:00)

DAVE CAMPBELL: The real estate lady from Hardy, Fran, she came by and she
goes — As she was leaving — because she was talking about listing the house. We

thought, if they want money so bad, if they let her sell the house and let her have

65
EXHIBIT 35



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

July 16, 2024 Incident Report Transcript — 435 Bethel Avenue

something so she can go out and buy a house. She’s with it, Man. She’s not missing a
beat. (11:15)

DAWN CAMPBELL: She is with it. (11:15)

DAVE CAMPBELL: So-(11:17)

MEDIC: Her blood pressure is good. Her vital signs are good. (11:19)

DAWN CAMPBELL: Good. Yay, Betty. (11:20)

MEDIC: This gentleman says he has Power of Attorney. I need the paperwork.
(11:21)

DAVE CAMPBELL: No, he does not. (11:22)

DAWN CAMPBELL: Who? (11:22)

MEDIC: I need to see the paperwork. (11:23)

DAWN CAMPBELL: Yeah. (11:25)

DAVE CAMPBELL: That’s right. Make sure you see the paperwork, because
these guys are habitual liars. (11:28)

DAWN CAMPBELL: I don’t think Betty signed one. (11:28)

MEDIC: I mean, if they have —(11:30)

DAWN CAMPBELL: Their — Their granddaughter had one and they dissolved it.
(11:33)

DAVE CAMPBELL: Yeah. And they robbed her blind. And they took $4,500
out of her bank and they took her pickup truck. (11:35)

DAWN CAMPBELL: And I don’t think anybody’s done it since. (11:35)

MEDIC: Okay. If they have paperwork, I don’t have no choice. (11:35)

DAWN CAMPBELL: Iknow; I know. (11:37)
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DAVE CAMPBELL: Right. They don’t have paperwork. (11:38)

DAWN CAMPBELL: But, she dissolved the paperwork that was in effect.
(11:42)

MEDIC: Okay. So-(11:43)

DAVE CAMPBELL: Yeah. They keep saying they’ve got all of this stuff, but
they don’t. (11:47)

DAWN CAMPBELL: Well, they can produce it if they have it. Gary used to
have one and Betty dissolved it. (11:52)

DAVE CAMPBELL: Why are they hiding the addendum? Why won’t they let
Betty have the addendum? 1 don’t get that. (11:58)

DAWN CAMPBELL: Because then they have to fix the house? (11:59)

DAVE CAMPBELL: Yeah. Because it tells the truth. (12:02)

BETTY DUNN: Well, I am for the one that’s the best for me. (12:09)

DAWN CAMPBELL: Well, yeah. That wants your best interests; that’s all that
matters. (12:12)

DAVE CAMPBELL: Right. You need to be. Why would you want somebody
who’s trying to rob you blind and put you out on the street? That’s exactly what they’re
doing. (12:17)

MEDIC: Or put you in a nursing home? (12:18)

DAWN CAMPBELL: Yeah. I know. (12:19)

DAVE CAMPBELL: Well, that’s what they’re really trying to do, because then
they feel like they can have the house. (12:22)

DAWN CAMPBELL: Yeah. (12:23)
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DAVE CAMPBELL: We’re here to take care of her. (12:24)

DAWN CAMPBELL: Well, when she was in the hospital in November — or
October. October 26" is when she fell and October 30" was when Gary was — or Randy
was breaking in. He said, she’s going in the hospital. I’'m going to sell all of her stuff.
I’m changing the locks. We’re going to sell the house and all she needs is the clothes that
she’ll need in the nursing home. That’s what he said. (12:40)

DAVE CAMPBELL: That was last October. (12:40)

MEDIC: Well, that’s sad. (12:41)

DAVE CAMPBELL: Itis. (12:41)

DAWN CAMPBELL: Yeah. (12:42)

MEDIC: We’ve only got one mama. (12:42)

DAWN CAMPBELL: 1Iknow. (12:44)

DAVE CAMPBELL: I can’t tell you how many people that have thanked us for
helping her. (12:45)

MEDIC: I’'m going to go talk to the officers. (12:47)

BETTY DUNN: You’ve only got one mama. (12:49)

DAWN CAMPBELL: That’s right. (12:49)

BETTY DUNN: It’s the truth. (12:51)

DAWN CAMPBELL: That is right. I’'m sorry you didn’t get to go play Bingo.
We can take you up there. We can take you up there and drop you off up at the senior

center once all this is done. (13:00)

(END OF RECORDING.)
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CERTIFICATE OF TRANSCRIPTION

I, Catrenia Dawn Campbell, served as a Certified Shorthand Reporter for the State of
Oklahoma. I am a resident of Mammoth Spring. This transcript was created from a
video recording I made at 435 Bethel Avenue in Mammoth Spring, Arkansas on July 16,
2024. The numbers at the end of each statement are the approximate time of each
statement’s ending. Some statements were stated at the same time and indiscernible to
me. To verify each statement, the video evidence is located at the following secure web
links at You Tube:

https://youtu.be/iOXR0yjHgNM

https://youtu.be/5L5_SEVOeb8

Evidence exonerating Dave Campbell from Gary Dunn, Randy Dunn and Brenda Dunn’s
false charges is available at the following secure web links:

https://www.moarknews.com/ReportGaryl.eeDunnAttack.docx;
https://www.moarknews.com/ReportRandyDunnAttack.docx;
https://www.moarknews.com/ReportBrendaDunnAttack.docx.

Respectfully,

/s/ Cotrendar Doawn Campell

Catrenia Dawn Campbell revised 10/15/24
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DISPATCH
CALLS

For
Incident Report At
435 Bethel Avenue
Mammoth Spring, AR
on July 16, 2024



Dispatch Call Detail

Call #: C5503 - Domestic Disturbance

Received Date/Time: 07/16/2024 09:54:27 Taken By: Bell, Jenni
Initial Call Type: Domestic Disturbance Calier Name Amb Run#: AM24-00887
Cleared Date/Time: 07/16/2024 11:26:03 Phone:
Cleared By: Bell, Jenni Caller Loc.:

Location: 435 Bethel

Units Dispatched
Dispatched| Enroute | Arrived Transport | Trans Dest| Cleared [At Station |Mileage Trms To
FC3 - Smith, John (FCSO) 07/16/2024 {07/16/2024 07/18/2024
09:59:36 11:25:32 11:26:06
FCS - Cantrell, James (FCSO) 07/16/2024 |07/16/2024 [07/16/2024 07/16/2024
] 10:02:32 10:02:33  }10:29:07 11:23:58
2102 - Fulton EMS (Fulton EMS) 07/16/2024 |07/16/2024 {07/16/2024 07/16/2024
10:15:52 10:15:54 {10:17:59 10:50:18
MS7 - Crawford, Hunter (MSPD) 07/16/2024 [07/16/2024 |07/16/2024 07/16/2024
10:27:27 10:27:30  {10:27:32 11:268:06
| Narrative }
Date/Time Dispatcher Narrative
07/1612024 09:59:40  Hutchison, Linda DAVE CAMPBELL 870-907-0572 SAID THEY TAKE CARE OF ELDERLY FEMALE NEXT
DOOR AND RANDY AND GARY DOWN ARE NOT TO BE OVER THERE AND THEY ARE
MAKEING THREATSAND A SCENE
07/16/2024 10:00:46  Hutchison, Linda S/0 CALLED MS3 HE SAID HE IS NOT ALLOWED OVER THERE SO | WILL HAVE TO
CALL CO OFFICER BECAUSE HE HAS NO ONE ELSE ON
07/16/2024 10:01:14  Hutchison, Linda FC3 HEADED THAT WAY AND WAS ADVISED DAVE CAMPBELL SAID HE IS PACKING
07/16/2024 10:14:42  Hutchison, Linda 911-NEED AMBUANCE TO CHECK QUT ELDERLY FEMALE
07/16/2024 10:27:59  Hutchison, Linda FC3 COMING INTO MAMMOTH NOW
07/16/2024 10:50:25 Hutchison, Linda 2102 CLEAR OF SCENE NO PT TRANSPORT
[ Dispositions |
Unknown,
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Fulton County Arkansas Dispatch Calls Following Dave Campbell’s 9-1-1 Call on 07/16/24

JAMES TURNBOUGH WAS CALLED BY 9-1-1 DISPATCHER ON 07/16/24:

(9:55:06 w/ Dispatcher Linda Hutchisen)
JAMES TURNBOUGH: Hello.

DISPATCHER: Hey, uh, Randy and Gary Down (sic) are up at 435 Bethel, uh,
threatening and yelling and screaming and the neighbor, uh, Dave Campbell is headed
over there, because they’re not supposed to be over there with that old lady. We’ve been
through this a dozen times.

JAMES TURNBOUGH: Uh-huh.

DISPATCHER: He says he’s packing. And he’s headed that way. I told him,
“you 'd better not unpack.”

JAMES TURNBOUGH: Well, I'm not supposed to be there, so you’ll have to
send an officer.

DISPATCHER: You’re not supposed to be there?

JAMES TURNBOUGH: Huh-uh.

DISPATCHER: Okay.

JAMES TURNBOUGH: Uh, no, civilly, uh, he just — he’s requested that I not go
ona call. So-

DISPATCHER: Okay. Do you have anybody else in Mammoth on duty?

JAMES TURNBOUGH: No. Do you?

DISPATCHER: I’ve got a few, but they’re a long ways off.

JAMES TURNBOUGH: Yeah. I would just send them.

DISPATCHER: Okay.

JAMES TURNBOUGH: Yeah, because he ain’t gonna be happy no matter what.
So -
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DISPATCHER: All right. Thank you.

JAMES TURNBOUGH: All right. Uh-huh.

DISPATCHER: Bye.

JAMES TURNBOUGH: Bye.

ASST. CHIEF JOHN BARNETT CALLED DISPATCH ON 07/16/24.
(10:07:36 w/ Dispatcher Linda Hutchison)

DISPATCHER: Fulton County Sheriff’s Office.

JOHN BARNETT: Hey, this is MS-5.

DISPATCHER: Yes.

JOHN BARNETT: Do you have any deputies close to Mammoth?

DISPATCHER: I’ve got ‘em headed that way. But, no, they’re n(;‘z:lose. They

came out of Salem.

JOHN BARNETT: Okay. Understood. I didn’t know if you did or not.
DISPATCHER: Jamie said nobody else was on duty, so —

JOHN BARNETT: Well, Hunter is.

DISPATCHER: Oh. Well -

JOHN BARNETT: But there’s a lot of people arguing, so I was just hoping to

have somebody there.

DISPATCHER: Okay.

JOHN BARNETT: Yeah.

DISPATCHER: So, is Hunter going over?
JOHN BARNET:: Hunter’s there.
DISPATCHER: Oh.

JOHN BARNETT: So, that’s the reason I was calling to see if you had one close.

2
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I didn’t know.

DISPATCHER: Yes, I have two officers heading that way.

JOHN BARNETT: Ididn’t know if Jamie called. The secretary called me.

DISPATCHER: Oh. Okay.

JOHN BARNETT: That’s the reason I was trying to get a hold of you, but Jamie
did apparently.

DISPATCHER: Okay. Well, they called — they called here and I said, “they
called 9-1-1.” So --

JOHN BARNETT: Gotcha. Understood.

DISPATCHER: We went from there. But — Thank you.

JOHN BARNETT: I appreciate it.

DISPATCHER: Uh-huh. Bye-bye.

JOHN BARNETT: Bye.

JAMES TURNBOUGH CALLED DISPATCH ADMITTING HE WAS WRONG:
(10:14:00 w/ Dispatcher Linda Hutchison)

DISPATCHER: Yes, sir.

JAMES TURNBOUGH: I forgot about Hunter. He’s there. But they’re gonna
need a deputy, because they don’t trust us.

DISPATCHER: Yes, MS-7 is there and we have — They’re asking for an
ambulance. They neighb — someone else is. And we have 3 a few minutes out and 9
en route.

JAMES TURNBOUGH: Thank you.

DISPATCHER: You’re welcome, sir.

JAMES TURNBOUGH: They’ve requested I do not go through the sheriff. So -

3
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DISPATCHER: Oh, no. We understand. We have people heading that way.

JAMES TURNBOUGH: Okay.

DISPATCHER: And 7 did call us saying that he needed help. So, we’re three
minutes from there.

JAMES TURNBOUGH: Okay.

DISPATCHER: Okay.
HUNTER CRAWFORD CALLED 9-1-1 FOR AN AMBULANCE ON

07/16/24 - (10:11:01 w/ Dispatcher Linda Hutchison)

DISPATCHER: Fulton County Sheriff’s Office.

OFFICER CRAWFORD: Uh, hey, could -- I need an am -- ambulance for an
evaluation of an elderly person.

DISPATCHER: Okay. Where at?

OFFICER CRAWFORD: Uh - One second. Hey, what’s your address?

GARY DUNN: 435 Bethel Avenue.

OFFICER CRAWFORD: 435 Bethel.

DISPATCHER: Okay. All right. I’ll get an ambulance out there.

OFFICER CRAWFORD: All right. Thank you.

DISPATCHER: Uh-huh.

(END OF TRANSCRIPTION)
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CERTIFICATE OF TRANSCRIPTION

I, Catrenia Dawn Campbell, served as a Certified Shorthand Reporter for the State of
Oklahoma. This transcript was created from the audios of the 07/16/24 phone calls with
Fulton County Sheriff’s Department and can be verified with the file located on the Flash
Drive Exhibit respectively titled as follows:

1. 07-16-24 09.55.06 Phone (5003) — (870) 847-5905(1).wav;

2. 07-16-24 10.07.36 Wireless Caller (870) 710-1996 — Phone (2601.wav;
3. 07/16/24 10.11.01 Wireless Caller (870) 710-3430 — Phone (2602).wav;
4. 07/16/24 10/14.00 Jamie Turnbough (870) 847-5905 — Phone (2602.wav.

Respectfully Submitted,
/s/ Cotrentior Dawwn Campbell
Catrenia Dawn Campbell 10/08/24

EXHIBIT 36



ExHiBIT 37

TRANSCRIPT
Of
DISPATCH
CALLS

For
Incident Report At
435 Bethel Avenue
Mammoth Spring, AR
on October 30, 2023



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

Fulton County Arkansas Dispatch Calls on 10/30/23

GARY DUNN CALLED FULTON COUNTY SHERIFF’S DEPARTMENT
OCTOBER 30, 2023 (12:19:28):

DISPATCHER: Fulton County Sheriff’s Department. This is Logan. How may I
help you?

GARY DUNN: This is Gary Dunn. I’'m at West Plains, Missouri. My mother is
in the hospital up here and my brother is at her house at 435 Bethel in Mammoth. And
he’s down there and two of the neighbors has come in down there and to run him off and
cussing him and things like that.

DISPATCHER: All right. You said it was your brother?

GARY DUNN: Yes, sir, it’s my brother. Randy Dunn.

DISPATCHER: Rand. All right.

GARY DUNN: Yeah.

DISPATCHER: 435 Bethel?

GARY DUNN: 435 Bethel.

DISPATCHER: Okay. And you said the neighbors came in screaming and
hollering and trying to run him off?

GARY DUNN: Yeah. And -

DISPATCHER: Do they have permission to be on the property.

GARY DUNN: Na-no. We own —me and him own the property.

DISPATCHER: Okay.

GARY DUNN: Our mother lives there.

DISPATCHER: Okay.

GARY DUNN: She’s in the hospital.

DISPATCHER: All right. Well —
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Fulton County Arkansas Dispatch Calls on 10/30/23

GARY DUNN: That guy’s been — That guy’s been trying to buy the property and

he can’t do it and he wants us all off. And --

DISPATCHER: Okay. All right. Gary, I’m showing a phone number (417) 256-

4583. Is that good for you?

GARY DUNN: Yeah. That’s it.

DISPATCHER: All right. I’ll get an officer out there. Okay?
GARY DUNN: Okay. Thank you very much.
DISPATCHER: Not a problem. You have a good day, sir.

GARY DUNN: Okay. Bye.

JAMES TURNBOUGH IS CALLED BY 9-1-1 TO 435 BETHEL AVENUE

(10/30/23 at 12:21:05)
DISPATCHER: 435 Bethel, it’ll be my call.
JAMES TURNBOUGH: Hello.
DISPATCHER: Hey, are you on, Jamie?
JAMES TURNBOUGH: No.
DISPATCHER: Who’s on for me — for Mammoth?
JAMES TURNBOUGH: What have you got?
DISPATCHER: I’ve got —-
JAMES TURNBOUGH: With me. What have you got?

DISPATCHER: Oh, okay. I’ve got, uh, 435 Bethel. Randy Dunn is there. Him

and his brother, Gary, own the house. Neighbors are trying to come — Neighb -- Gary
said neighbors are coming in on Randy, hollering, cussing and screaming at him and

trying to run him off.

JAMES TURNBOUGH: Oh, okay. All right. We’ll be up there in a little bit.

2
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DISPATCHER: Okay. Thank you.
DAVE CAMPBELL CALLS 9-1-1 TO 435 BETHEL AVENUE
(10/30/23 — 12:24:38)

DISPATCHER: Fulton County Sheriff’s Office.

DAVE CAMPBELL: Hi. Yes, ma’am. My name’s Dave Campbell and I live —
My wife Dawn and I live at 440 Main Street in Mammoth.

DISPATCHER: Uh-huh.

DAVE CAMPBELL: And the neighbor behind us fell and she’s in the hospital
and has a brain bleed. And she’s doing much better a few days later, but her sons, one in
particular thinks that this is his house now because she’s dying. Well, we talked to her.
She’s doing really well. She’s up at West Plains. And she’s estranged. She doesn’t want
anything to do — She didn’t even want him notified, but the hospital apparently
accidentally called him ,because he was on a prior, uh, chart. So we caught him breaking
and entering into her house and the local police says it’s a civil matter. I take issue with
that, because here’s a guy breaking into our neighbor’s house and he has no right to be
here. And, uh —

DISPATCHER: Is the house 435 Bethel?

DAVE CAMPBELL: Yes.

DISPATCHER: Okay. We just received a call on that.

DAVE CAMPBELL: Beautiful.

DISPATCHER: And officers are headed that way.

DAVE CAMPBELL: Beautiful. Thank you so much.

DISPATCHER: You’re welcome.

DAVE CAMPBELL: Okay.

EXHIBIT 37
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Fulton County Arkansas Dispatch Calls on 10/30/23

DISPATCHER: Bye-bye.
DAVE CAMPBELL: Bye-bye.

(END OF TRANSCRIPTION)

CERTIFICATE OF TRANSCRIPTION

I, Catrenia Dawn Campbell, served as a Certified Shorthand Reporter for the State of
Oklahoma. This transcript was created to the best of my ability and is taken from the
audios of the 10/30/23 phone calls with Fulton County Sheriff’s Department and can be
verified with the file located on the Flash Drive Exhibit respectively titled as follows:

1. 10-30-23 12.19.28 Gary Dunn (417) 256-4583 Phone (2602).wav;
2. 10-30-23 12.21.05 Phone (2602) -847-5905.wav;
3. 10-30-23 12.24.38 Campbell Dave (870) 907-0572 — Phone (2602).wav;

Respectfully Submitted,

/s/ Cotrenda Dawwn Campbell

Catrenia Dawn Campbell 10/04/24
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REPORT OF 435 BETHEL A VENUE, MAMMOTH SPRING, AR — JULY 16EX3IPIT 38
TRANSCRIPT / PHOTO EVIDENCE EXONERATING DAVE CAMPBELL.
(Note: The notated time is the approximate time of each statement’s ending.)

. Gary Dunn Attack 1

2 RANDY DUNN: You’re supposed to stay off this place.(00:04)

-

i’-“‘, A

3

4 DAWN CAMPBELL: We want to check on Betty. (00:05)
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REPORT OF 435 BETHEL AVENUE, MAMMOTH SPRING, AR - JULY 16, 2024EX- 38
TRANSCRIPT / PHOTO EVIDENCE EXONERATING DAVE CAMPBELL:
(Note: The notated time is the approximate time of each statement’s ending.)

6 DAVE CAMPBELL: They’re on their way, Asshole. (00:06)

7 DAWN CAMPBELL: Betty is our friend. (00:07)
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REPORT OF 435 BETHEL AVENUE, MAMMOTH SPRING, AR - JULY 16, 2024
TRANSCRIPT / PHOTO EVIDENCE EXONERATING DAVE CAMPBELL:
(Note: The notated time is the approximate time of each statement’s ending.)

y16 o:56aM (1)

10

11 RANDY DUNN: No, she is not your friend. (00:08)

12 DAWN CAMPBELL (to Gary Dunn): HEY, HEY! (00:09)

13
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REPORT OF 435 BETHEL AVENUE, MAMMOTH SPRING, AR - JULY 16, 2024
TRANSCRIPT / PHOTO EVIDENCE EXONERATING DAVE CAMPBELL:
(Note: The notated time is the approximate time of each statement’s ending.)
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REPORT OF 435 BETHEL AVENUE, MAMMOTH SPRING, AR - JULY 16, 2024
TRANSCRIPT / PHOTO EVIDENCE EXONERATING DAVE CAMPBELL.:
(Note: The notated time is the approximate time of each statement’s ending.)
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REPORT OF 435 BETHEL AVENUE, MAMMOTH SPRING, AR - JULY 16, 2024
TRANSCRIPT / PHOTO EVIDENCE EXONERATING DAVE CAMPBELL:
(Note: The notated time is the approximate time of each statement’s ending.)

GARY DUNN: Don’t you come up here. You ain’t going to do nothing. (00:13)

EXHIBIT 38



22

23

REPORT OF 435 BETHEL AVENUE, MAMMOTH SPRING, AR - JULY 16, 2024
TRANSCRIPT / PHOTO EVIDENCE EXONERATING DAVE CAMPBELL:
(Note: The notated time is the approximate time of each statement’s ending.)
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REPORT OF 435 BETHEL AVENUE, MAMMOTH SPRING, AR - JULY 16, 2024
TRANSCRIPT / PHOTO EVIDENCE EXONERATING DAVE CAMPBELL:
(Note: The notated time is the approximate time of each statement’s ending.)

DAWN CAMPBELL: We are going to check on Betty. (00:14)
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32

REPORT OF 435 BETHEL AVENUE, MAMMOTH SPRING, AR - JULY 16, 2024
TRANSCRIPT / PHOTO EVIDENCE EXONERATING DAVE CAMPBELL:
(Note: The notated time is the approximate time of each statement’s ending.)

DAVE CAMPBELL: I am going to stand on the porch and the cops are on their way.

(00:15)

GARY RANDY: Not on the porch.
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REPORT OF 435 BETHEL AVENUE, MAMMOTH SPRING, AR - JULY 16, 2024
TRANSCRIPT / PHOTO EVIDENCE EXONERATING DAVE CAMPBELL:
(Note: The notated time is the approximate time of each statement’s ending.)

® » X O @ Ed

£ July 16 9:56 AM (1]

33
34 DAWN CAMPBELL (to Gary Dunn): Hey, get off of him. (00:18)

35
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REPORT OF 435 BETHEL AVENUE, MAMMOTH SPRING, AR - JULY 16, 2024
TRANSCRIPT / PHOTO EVIDENCE EXONERATING DAVE CAMPBELL.:
(Note: The notated time is the approximate time of each statement’s ending.)

¢ wyieoseam (1] @ P N @ T Edit

(Gary Dunn pushed on Dave for approximately 10 seconds — from 00:08 to 00:18.)
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REPORT OF 435 BETHEL AVENUE, MAMMOTH SPRING, AR - JULY 16, 2024
TRANSCRIPT / PHOTO EVIDENCE EXONERATING DAVE CAMPBELL:
(Note: The notated time is the approximate time of each statement’s ending.)

39 DAWN CAMPBELL (to Gary Dunn): Hey, get off of him. (00:18)

40

41

EXHIBIT 38
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44

REPORT OF 435 BETHEL AVENUE, MAMMOTH SPRING, AR - JULY 16, 2024
TRANSCRIPT / PHOTO EVIDENCE EXONERATING DAVE CAMPBELL:
(Note: The notated time is the approximate time of each statement’s ending.)

(Note: Gary’s arm is on Dave’s back.)

< wyreoseam () @ P N @ W Edit
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46
47

REPORT OF 435 BETHEL AVENUE, MAMMOTH SPRING, AR - JULY 16, 2024
TRANSCRIPT / PHOTO EVIDENCE EXONERATING DAVE CAMPBELL:
(Note: The notated time is the approximate time of each statement’s ending.)

July 16 9:56 A

July 16 9:66 AM

(Gary did not seem fazed and continued to wave his finger and stolen sign.) (0:19)
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REPORT OF 435 BETHEL AVENUE, MAMMOTH SPRING, AR - JULY 16, 2024
TRANSCRIPT / PHOTO EVIDENCE EXONERATING DAVE CAMPBELL:
(Note: The notated time is the approximate time of each statement’s ending.)

s O @ > 0O W &

July 16 9:56 AM
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REPORT OF 435 BETHEL AVENUE, MAMMOTH SPRING, AR - JULY 16, 2024
TRANSCRIPT / PHOTO EVIDENCE EXONERATING DAVE CAMPBELL:
(Note: The notated time is the approximate time of each statement’s ending.)

wysessam () @ P X @ W Edi

GARY DUNN: He hit me. That’s assault. (00:21)
DAWN CAMPBELL: He did not. (00:21)

DAVE CAMPBELL: He pushed me. (00:21)

< wyessean h @ P W o W Edit
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REPORT OF 435 BETHEL AVENUE, MAMMOTH SPRING, AR - JULY 16, 2024
TRANSCRIPT / PHOTO EVIDENCE EXONERATING DAVE CAMPBELL:
(Note: The notated time is the approximate time of each statement’s ending.)
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61

REPORT OF 435 BETHEL AVENUE, MAMMOTH SPRING, AR - JULY 16, 2024
TRANSCRIPT / PHOTO EVIDENCE EXONERATING DAVE CAMPBELL:
(Note: The notated time is the approximate time of each statement’s ending.)

A( Gary Dunn is seen falling.)* (00:23)
DAWN CAMPBELL: Dave. (00:23)

RANDY: Now, he’s gonna go to jail. (00:23)
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64

65

REPORT OF 435 BETHEL AVENUE, MAMMOTH SPRING, AR - JULY 16, 2024
TRANSCRIPT / PHOTO EVIDENCE EXONERATING DAVE CAMPBELL:
(Note: The notated time is the approximate time of each statement’s ending.)

DAWN CAMPBELL: Dave, leave him alone. (00:24)

DAVE CAMPBELL: Yeah, you betcha I hit you; you’re a little asshole. (00:24)

EXHIBIT 38
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REPORT OF 435 BETHEL AVENUE, MAMMOTH SPRING, AR - JULY 16, 2024
TRANSCRIPT / PHOTO EVIDENCE EXONERATING DAVE CAMPBELL:
(Note: The notated time is the approximate time of each statement’s ending.)

66

67 RANDY DUNN: Now, he’s gonna go to jail. (00:25)

68

EXHIBIT 38
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71

REPORT OF 435 BETHEL AVENUE, MAMMOTH SPRING, AR - JULY 16, 2024
TRANSCRIPT / PHOTO EVIDENCE EXONERATING DAVE CAMPBELL:
(Note: The notated time is the approximate time of each statement’s ending.)
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REPORT OF 435 BETHEL AVENUE, MAMMOTH SPRING, AR - JULY 16, 2024
TRANSCRIPT / PHOTO EVIDENCE EXONERATING DAVE CAMPBELL:
(Note: The notated time is the approximate time of each statement’s ending.)
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77

78

REPORT OF 435 BETHEL AVENUE, MAMMOTH SPRING, AR - JULY 16, 2024
TRANSCRIPT / PHOTO EVIDENCE EXONERATING DAVE CAMPBELL:
(Note: The notated time is the approximate time of each statement’s ending.)

DAWN CAMPBELL.:

Hey, I’ve got it on camera. He hit first. (00:29)
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REPORT OF 435 BETHEL AVENUE, MAMMOTH SPRING, AR - JULY 16, 2024
TRANSCRIPT / PHOTO EVIDENCE EXONERATING DAVE CAMPBELL:
(Note: The notated time is the approximate time of each statement’s ending.)

79 DAWN CAMPBELL: Hey, I’ve got it on camera. He hit first. (00:29)

wyreoseam (] @ P N @ W Edit

80

81

82 DAVE CAMPBELL: He touched me. (00:31)

83 RANDY DUNN: He did not. (00:31)
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REPORT OF 435 BETHEL AVENUE, MAMMOTH SPRING, AR - JULY 16, 2024
TRANSCRIPT / PHOTO EVIDENCE EXONERATING DAVE CAMPBELL:
(Note: The notated time is the approximate time of each statement’s ending.)

84 DAVE CAMPBELL: He kept pushing the shit out of me. Now, back off me. (00:31)
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REPORT OF 435 BETHEL AVENUE, MAMMOTH SPRING, AR - JULY 16, 2024
TRANSCRIPT / PHOTO EVIDENCE EXONERATING DAVE CAMPBELL:
(Note: The notated time is the approximate time of each statement’s ending.)
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87

88 DAWN CAMPBELL: He sure did. (00:34)
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REPORT OF 435 BETHEL AVENUE, MAMMOTH SPRING, AR - JULY 16, 2024
TRANSCRIPT / PHOTO EVIDENCE EXONERATING DAVE CAMPBELL:
(Note: The notated time is the approximate time of each statement’s ending.)
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REPORT OF 435 BETHEL AVENUE, MAMMOTH SPRING, AR - JULY 16, 2024
TRANSCRIPT / PHOTO EVIDENCE EXONERATING DAVE CAMPBELL:
(Note: The notated time is the approximate time of each statement’s ending.)

RANDY DUNN (to Dave Campbell): Don’t -- You can’t go in this house. It’s mine and

Gary’s. (00:37)
DAWN CAMPBELL: Betty lives here. (00:38)
DAVE CAMPBELL.: Oh, is it? (00:38)

RANDY DUNN : Yes. (00:38)
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REPORT OF 435 BETHEL AVENUE, MAMMOTH SPRING, AR - JULY 16, 2024
TRANSCRIPT / PHOTO EVIDENCE EXONERATING DAVE CAMPBELL:
(Note: The notated time is the approximate time of each statement’s ending.)

RANDY DUNN : Yes. (00:38)

DAVE CAMPBELL: Well, that’s funny, because they’ve got paperwork down there that

says it’s not yours. (00:41)
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REPORT OF 435 BETHEL AVENUE, MAMMOTH SPRING, AR - JULY 16, 2024
TRANSCRIPT / PHOTO EVIDENCE EXONERATING DAVE CAMPBELL:
(Note: The notated time is the approximate time of each statement’s ending.)

104
105 DAWN CAMPBELL: Okay. Let’s let Betty talk. (00:42)

July 16 9:56 AM
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REPORT OF 435 BETHEL AVENUE, MAMMOTH SPRING, AR - JULY 16, 2024
TRANSCRIPT / PHOTO EVIDENCE EXONERATING DAVE CAMPBELL:
(Note: The notated time is the approximate time of each statement’s ending.)

July 16 9:56 AM
'}
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107

July16 9:56 AM  [i

108

109 RANDY DUNN: All they’ve got now it says itis. (00:45)
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REPORT OF 435 BETHEL AVENUE, MAMMOTH SPRING, AR - JULY 16, 2024
TRANSCRIPT / PHOTO EVIDENCE EXONERATING DAVE CAMPBELL:
(Note: The notated time is the approximate time of each statement’s ending.)

110

111

112

113 GARY DUNN: She needs an evaluation. (00:47)
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REPORT OF 435 BETHEL AVENUE, MAMMOTH SPRING, AR - JULY 16, 2024
TRANSCRIPT / PHOTO EVIDENCE EXONERATING DAVE CAMPBELL:
(Note: The notated time is the approximate time of each statement’s ending.)

4 July 16 9:56 AM [1_’] ® P O W Edit

DAVE CAMPBELL: Is this Gary? Is this Gary? (00:49)
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REPORT OF 435 BETHEL AVENUE, MAMMOTH SPRING, AR - JULY 16, 2024
TRANSCRIPT / PHOTO EVIDENCE EXONERATING DAVE CAMPBELL:
(Note: The notated time is the approximate time of each statement’s ending.)

July 16 9:66 AM M @® P X @ W Edt

117

118 GARY DUNN: Yes. (00:50)

119 BETTY DUNN: That’s him. (00:50)

120

121 (Gary Dunn is back on his feet and standing near Dave and Dawn Campbell.) (00:51)
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135

REPORT OF 435 BETHEL AVENUE, MAMMOTH SPRING, AR - JULY 16, 2024
TRANSCRIPT / PHOTO EVIDENCE EXONERATING DAVE CAMPBELL:
(Note: The notated time is the approximate time of each statement’s ending.)

wyieoseam (1] @ P N
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DAVE CAMPBELL: Shit. He’s just as bad as this guy. (00:52)

DAWN CAMPBELL: Do you want to go with him, Betty? Do you want to go with
him? (00:54)

BETTY DUNN: No. (00:55)
RANDY DUNN: He ain’t taking her nowhere. (00:56)

DAWN CAMPBELL: (to Betty) Well, if you don’t want to go, you don’t have to go.
(00:57)

GARY DUNN: It’s not even up to her. (00:59)

DAWN CAMPBELL: Yes, itis. (1:00)

GARY DUNN: This is the hospital. (1:01)

DAVE CAMPBELL: The hospital? (01:02)

BETTY DUNN: Oh, you’ll think hospital. This is my home. (1:03)

DAWN CAMPBELL: You don’t have to take her to the hospital. (01:04)

35 EXHIBIT 38



136
137

138

139

140

141

142

143

144

145

146
147

148
149

150

151

152

153

154

155

156

157

158

159

REPORT OF 435 BETHEL AVENUE, MAMMOTH SPRING, AR - JULY 16, 2024
TRANSCRIPT / PHOTO EVIDENCE EXONERATING DAVE CAMPBELL:
(Note: The notated time is the approximate time of each statement’s ending.)

DAVE CAMPBELL: Let’s see it. Let’s see it, because you’re going to have to show the
cops here in a second, because they’re on their way after I called, Asshole. (1:05)

BETTY DUNN: This is my home. (1:09)

GARY DUNN: Let’s see where you’ve got it that we own this. (1:10)

DAWN CAMPBELL: What? (1:12)

DAVE CAMPBELL: You own the house? You took her house away from your mother?
RANDY DUNN: No, we didn’t.

DAVE CAMPBELL: That’s fine and dan —(01:12)

RANDY DUNN: She give it to us.(1:14)

DAVE CAMPBELL: She give it to you? (01:16)

RANDY DUNN: Yes, back when she had some sense, before the Dementia kicked in so
bad. (1:21)

DAVE CAMPBELL: Oh, that makes a lot of sense giving her house away of forty years.
(01:23)

DAWN CAMPBELL: Okay. Okay. (00:24)

RANDY DUNN: Yeah. (01:25)

DAWN CAMPBELL: Dave, let’s just wait for the cops to get here. (01:26)
BRENDA DUNN: Yeah, you’ll think cops, Hun. (01:29)

DAWN CAMPBELL: Well, they’re on their way. (01:31)

BRENDA DUNN: Yeah. They need to be. (01:33)

DAWN CAMPBELL: Yeah, they do. (01:34)

BRENDA DUNN: There ain’t no sense in none of yuns doing this. (01:35)
DAWN CAMPBELL: Doing what? (01:35)

BRENDA DUNN: What you’re doing.(01:37)
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REPORT ON RANDALL DUNN 435 BETHEL AVENUE - JULY 16, 2024 -
TRANSCRIPT / PHOTO EVIDENCE EXONERATING DAVE CAMPBELL:
(Note: The notated time is the approximate time of each statement’s ending.)

Randall Dunn Attack:

DAVE CAMPBELL: (to Randy Dunn) You weren’t even watching when he came out
pushing on me. (02:28)
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REPORT ON RANDALL DUNN 435 BETHEL AVENUE - JULY 16, 2024 -
TRANSCRIPT / PHOTO EVIDENCE EXONERATING DAVE CAMPBELL:
(Note: The notated time is the approximate time of each statement’s ending.)

RANDY DUNN: (to Dave Campbell) I was, too. I was standing right here. (02:32)

July 16 9:56 AM
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REPORT ON RANDALL DUNN 435 BETHEL AVENUE - JULY 16, 2024 -
TRANSCRIPT / PHOTO EVIDENCE EXONERATING DAVE CAMPBELL:
(Note: The notated time is the approximate time of each statement’s ending.)
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REPORT ON RANDALL DUNN 435 BETHEL AVENUE - JULY 16, 2024 -
TRANSCRIPT / PHOTO EVIDENCE EXONERATING DAVE CAMPBELL:
(Note: The notated time is the approximate time of each statement’s ending.)

DAVE CAMPBELL: (to Randy Dunn) Well, then you did see him push on me,
Asshole. You just said he was pushing me away. (02:35)

GARY DUNN: I was trying to get to her. (02:35)
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REPORT ON RANDALL DUNN 435 BETHEL AVENUE - JULY 16, 2024 -
TRANSCRIPT / PHOTO EVIDENCE EXONERATING DAVE CAMPBELL:
(Note: The notated time is the approximate time of each statement’s ending.)
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REPORT ON RANDALL DUNN 435 BETHEL AVENUE - JULY 16, 2024 -
TRANSCRIPT / PHOTO EVIDENCE EXONERATING DAVE CAMPBELL:
(Note: The notated time is the approximate time of each statement’s ending.)

~ July 16 9:56 AM MH @ »p X

RANDY DUNN: No, I didn’t say it. You’re not putting words — (02:37)
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REPORT ON RANDALL DUNN 435 BETHEL AVENUE - JULY 16, 2024 -
TRANSCRIPT / PHOTO EVIDENCE EXONERATING DAVE CAMPBELL:
(Note: The notated time is the approximate time of each statement’s ending.)
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REPORT ON RANDALL DUNN 435 BETHEL AVENUE - JULY 16, 2024 -
TRANSCRIPT / PHOTO EVIDENCE EXONERATING DAVE CAMPBELL:
(Note: The notated time is the approximate time of each statement’s ending.)
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DAVE CAMPBELL (to Randy Dunn): Back the fuck up. (02:38)
4 wyeossan () @ P N @ W Edi
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REPORT ON RANDALL DUNN 435 BETHEL AVENUE - JULY 16, 2024 -
TRANSCRIPT / PHOTO EVIDENCE EXONERATING DAVE CAMPBELL:
(Note: The notated time is the approximate time of each statement’s ending.)
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REPORT ON RANDALL DUNN 435 BETHEL AVENUE - JULY 16, 2024 -
TRANSCRIPT / PHOTO EVIDENCE EXONERATING DAVE CAMPBELL:
(Note: The notated time is the approximate time of each statement’s ending.)

R e i

DAWN CAMPBELL: (to Randy Dunn) Listen. No. Stop. (2:40)

DAVE CAMPBELL: (to Randy Dunn) Get the fuck away from me. (02:40)
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REPORT ON RANDALL DUNN 435 BETHEL AVENUE - JULY 16, 2024 —-
TRANSCRIPT / PHOTO EVIDENCE EXONERATING DAVE CAMPBELL:
(Note: The notated time is the approximate time of each statement’s ending.)
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REPORT ON RANDALL DUNN 435 BETHEL AVENUE - JULY 16, 2024 -
TRANSCRIPT / PHOTO EVIDENCE EXONERATING DAVE CAMPBELL:
(Note: The notated time is the approximate time of each statement’s ending.)
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REPORT ON RANDALL DUNN 435 BETHEL AVENUE - JULY 16, 2024 -
TRANSCRIPT / PHOTO EVIDENCE EXONERATING DAVE CAMPBELL:
(Note: The notated time is the approximate time of each statement’s ending.)
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REPORT ON RANDALL DUNN 435 BETHEL AVENUE - JULY 16, 2024 -
TRANSCRIPT / PHOTO EVIDENCE EXONERATING DAVE CAMPBELL.
(Note: The notated time is the approximate time of each statement’s ending.)

July 16 9:56 AM LT']

GARY DUNN: Brenda, get in the car and get down there in a hurry. (02:42)
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